MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION
MI BERIZIRER AT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REEEBHMHETZBRAA]) '
(Stock code A& {pt55E: 1555)

B

e

Annual Report F 3k




Company Information

Financial Summary

Operating Summary

Chairman’s Statement

Directors and Senior Management

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Management Discussion and Analysis
Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NEER

IABS R
BEME

B S
oo AR B
B IR
B
B e L o
T8 7 A BT
TR VIS
A PrER B e &
e A A B R
A B ERER

B R S R B R



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter

Mr. Tian Hongtao

Non-executive Director
Ms. Xie Na

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Mei Jianping

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller

Mr. Guo Yanjun

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P. O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Suite 1501, Block C
Grand Place

5 Hui Zhong Road
Chaoyang District
Beijing 100101
China

Stock Listing
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01555

Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 6.875%, 5 years senior notes due 2018
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
The Company’s 7.5%, 5 years senior notes due 2019
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

HiT#E S

SRH A ()

e RA e

Andrew Sherwood Harper Jc4
Wi P 8% S Ak

H 3t e A

FEHTES
w4 £

Bk PUTE S

My - S A

Jeffrey Willard Miller 5c4
P S A

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P. O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

iR
B F KB R 183 5%
SN Y

[

At SR
ke
NG NI
CH:1501 =
4% 100101

J% iy b
WA A 5 BT AT PR )
RO 5E © 01555

B B

AN EAE 2.6.875% > i . F— /AR Ly 1 5 4F
BB S ZE 4 A T TN 3 558 B B A BR S 7] b
AN TR T.5% 0 i FE—JUF RN A AR
P SE IR B I3 76 528 2 T A R A /] BT



www.mienergy.com

Ms. Wong Sau Mei (ACS, ACIS)

Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter
Ms. Wong Sau Mei (ACS, ACIS)

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller (Chairman)
Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Guo Yanjun

Mr. Mei Jianping (Chairman)
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun

Mr. Mei Jianping (Chairman)
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun

Ryder Scott Company, L.P.
Chapman Petroleum Engineering Ltd.
RISC Operations Pty Ltd.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft

(As to Hong Kong law)
Jingtian & Gongcheng Law Firm (As to PRC law)
Maples and Calder (As to Cayman Islands law)

Citibank, N.A.
China Construction Bank Corporation Limited

Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

www.mienergy.com

#7541 (ACS, ACIS)

(3RS ela s
#7521 (ACS, ACIS)

Jeffrey Willard Miller o4 (4 /)
Mg A
e ek

WP S (EH)
Jeffrey Willard Miller 5c4
P S A

WP S (EH)
Jeffrey Willard Miller 5c4
P S A

Ryder Scott Company, L.P.
Chapman Petroleum Engineering Ltd.
RISC Operations Pty Ltd.

FE SRR A8 R

S A A i =5 75

(B UsIEE)
e R TR Bl B T (B i )
Maples and Calder (B2 #f & k)

{ERERTT
B B R A T AR A PR W

AT PYFTA BR 2 W



4 MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Company Information (Continued)

v R RH(A)

Cayman Islands Principal Share
Registrar and Transfer Office

Maples FS Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Queensgate House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
and Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

b2 RS 2 R
YRR

Maples FS Limited

P. O. Box 1093, Queensgate House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

T
WMPBRTE

AR ETARA T

it

25 RIEHR 18355

A 22 #



(Amounts expressed in thousands of RMB)

Year ended December 31

Revenue

Finance costs, net

Gain arising from acquisition
of Emir-Qil, LLP

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

As at December 31

Current assets

Property, plant and
equipment

Intangible assets

Investment accounted for
using the equity method

Deferred income tax assets

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Restricted cash

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity
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(I & AN R TIo0 /A7)

WETA=+—HIL4EE

2011 2012 2013

S e e
2,827,141 3,485,616 3,256,061
(159,754) (279,510) (345,553)
460,345 - -
1,399,751 837,037 454,867
(293,909) (295,765) (175,083)
1,105,842 541,272 279,784

Bt A=+t—H

2011 2012 2013

S e e
1,530,976 1,301,484 1,186,539
5,267,499 6,632,652 7,160,160
584,322 603,898 544,469

- 181,636 273,348

- - 40,783

3,966 3,966 50,422
32,032 178,817 34,941
7,530 9,687 11,884
7,426,325 8,912,140 9,302,546
1,569,830 1,537,565 1,555,604
2,893,842 3,910,392 4,042,512
4,463,672 5,447,957 5,598,116
2,962,653 3,464,183 3,704,430

2014
TR

2,982,909
(481,327)

236,712
(214,163)

22,549

2014
TR

1,650,635

6,629,673
494,552

499,284
20,538

75,541

210,389
12,955

9,593,567

1,345,118
4,683,938

6,029,056

3,564,511

2015
“F—hE

1,032,734
(308,079)

(1,704,521)
179,233

(1,525,288)

2015
e Sk K 2

1,457,974

5,214,718
355,810

505,994
23,795

27,105

496,214
8,495

8,090,105

1,215,803
4,663,306

5,879,109

2,210,996
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Properties Held by
Subsidiaries

Sales volume
Crude oil (millions of
barrels)
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
Export sales
Domestic sales
USA oilfields
Gas (MMscf)

Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields
Net annual production

volume

Crude oil (millions of
barrels)
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Gas (MMscf)

Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields
Average daily net crude oil

production

Crude oil (barrels)
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Gas (MMscf)

Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Wt 2 ) o

Hig
Jih CF i )

o g itk
IA T ST
oy
B A
& (Condor)
RARH (HE R
MIFHER)
A T e 4 4L 7
& (Condor)
PR R

Jh CF i )

o g itk

I T ST

& (Condor)
RARH (H B

MIFHER)

A T 7o 7 4

5[5 (Condor)

H - 5293 D5 T

J5 3 ()
o g itk
A i 7o 7 4
5[5 (Condor)
RARH (HE R
MIFHER)
I T ST
5[5 (Condor)

4.03
3.84
0.19
0.17
0.02

439.67
439.67

4.06
3.87
0.19

446.93
446.93

12,705
10,601
2,104

4.90
4.90

Year ended December 31

BET A=t HEULEE

2012

TE—TAR

5.1
4.08
1.01
0.90
0.11
0.01

1,526.43
1,526.43

5.23
4.20
1.02
0.01

1,624.70
1,624.70

14,303
11,487
2,787
29

4.50
4.50

—%=

2013

5.38
3.77
1.56
1.28
0.28
0.05

1,698.50
1,661.58
36.92

5.36
3.73
1.58
0.05

1,929.72
1,812.44
117.28

14,673
10,208
4,320
145

5.30
5.00
0.30

2014

TR

5.58
3.67
1.88
1.44
0.44
0.03

2,014.34
1,954.38

59.96

5.59
3.66
1.90
0.03

2,222.90
2,146.48

76.42

15,326
10,033
5,201
92

6.09
5.88
0.21

2015
—F N4

3.55
2.44
1.09
0.96
0.13
0.02

2,021.27
2,001.15
20.12

3.7
244
1.25
0.02

2,190.61
2,150.78
39.83

10,153
6,687
3412

54

6.00
5.89
0.11
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Year ended December 31

BET A=t HEULEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
SR DR SRS DR E DR
Average realized price - 35 B BLE %
Crude oil (US$ per barrel JE Wl (378, A0 5 W)
of crude oil) 108.8 108.1 97.06 86.15 45.79
China oilfields P8 9 109.99 113.51 104.35 97.89 46.65
Kazakhstan oilfields W BE st H 84.38 86.14 79.64 63.34 43.95
Export sales H sy eE 90.01 90.35 87.80 70.63 48.41
Domestic sales N8 B 31.02 50.65 41.57 39.68 12.02
USA oilfields [ (Condor) - 84.89 90.30 83.11 40.68
Gas (US$ per MMscf) KRR (/T HEd
MIER) 1.15 1.17 1.44 1.27 1.03
Kazakhstan oilfields W BE st H 1.15 1.17 1.34 1.14 0.95
USA oilfields [ (Condor) - - 6.10 6.44 2.61
Lifting costs (US$ per P ENESTVE
barrel of crude oil) (Note) TR ) (M) 7.29 8.35 9.34 9.46 7.52
China oilfields r g 7 7.16 8.60 11.08 11.83 9.49
Kazakhstan oilfields W BE st H 9.70 7.32 5.18 4.85 3.66
Cash net-back (US$ per B4 Mg (3658,
barrel of crude oil) A0 )
China oilfields F B 3 - 82.64 74.22 69.62 35.56
Kazakhstan oilfields W BE st H - 42.80 41.37 29.14 10.94
Export sales O - 43.88 43.42 28.52 12.40
Domestic sales I8 [y 5 - 37.61 31.97 31.81 5.11
Wells drilled during the CaRE:-Fid AF)
year (Gross) 467 442 114 157 3
China oilfields v g iy 466 431 102 151 =
Successful B B 466 431 102 151 =
Dry W 1 - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields ey o 3 i 4 - 8 10 6 3
Successful B B - 8 10 6 3
Dry W - - - - -
USA oilfields 2 (Condor) - 3 2 - =
Successful B B - 3 2 - =
Dry W - - - - -

PR A G A — A A 2 B AT R A o
U A N 2 A BREET) ~ H AT B B S
VAT B8 1 28 AR M B AR AE A > PR % 4 A
37 AR A1 T B LT AR o

Note: Lifting cost includes directly controllable costs to produce a barrel of oil. Other 7 -
production costs such as safety fee, environment expenses, technical &
research expenses and overhead have not been included above since they are
not directly attributable to the production of a barrel of oil.
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Crude Oil Reserves
(thousands of barrels)

Subsidiaries

Total proved
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Total proved+probable
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Total proved+probable+possible
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Equity-accounted entities
(MIEH share)

Total proved
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable+possible
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved
Total proved+probable
Total proved+probable+possible

J& ok B ()

G 23 w4 B

PO
2 3y HH
A T 5 73R
8 (Condor)

R SRS
2 3y HH
WA I e T3
8 (Condor)

RO > BESE R v Rl il 2 A
2 3y HH
WA I e T3
8 (Condor)

Rl s A e 1Y 1 1T 1 I
(K5 BN # %)

WG
Hh R L (=2 R L)
B (White Hawk)

W) BN 5ol A
Hh R L (=2 R L)
B (White Hawk)

TR ~ WS B vl Bl ol o A
Hh R L (=2 R L)
B (White Hawk)

PRI AR
R 1) SELE 53 2 M
RO~ WS R v g ok 2 AR

61,000
33,988
27,012

110,843
50,308
60,535

138,815
59,783
79,032

61,000
110,843
138,815

2012 2013 2014
R T CF—= e SIS
51,328 54,177 48,742
23,455 20,409 14,495
26,111 32,497 33,799
1,762 1,271 448
113,726 126,107 124,725
36,154 35,998 25,832
74,212 87,374 97,864
3,360 2,735 1,029
168,494 183,991 171,189
50,643 51,617 36,248
112,988 128,547 130,203
4,863 3,827 4,738
139 - -

139 - -

153 - -

153 - -

175 - -

175 - -
51,467 54,177 48,742
113,879 126,107 124,725
168,670 183,991 171,189

Year ended December 31

BETZA=Z+—HILEE

2015
S i

45,163
12,440
32,525

198

120,975
24,416
96,150

409

160,404
34,088
124,952
1,364

45,163
120,975
160,404



Gas Reserves (millions of
SCF)

Subsidiaries

Total proved
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Total proved+probable
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Total proved+probable+possible
China oilfields
Emir-Qil
Condor

Equity-accounted entities
(MIEH share)

Total proved
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable+possible
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved
Total proved+probable
Total proved+probable+possible

KRS E (P SR
WIER)

G 23 w4 B

U
w2 3y
e I e 7 3H
8 (Condor)

R SRS A
w2 3y
e I e 7 3H
8 (Condor)

FREU > WESE B v Rl il 2 e
w2 3y H
A T 5 7 3H
8 (Condor)

TRl AW 1Y 2 1T 1 I
(K BIER#5)

5 W it A
T P AL (=280 R B L)
F B (White Hawk)

W) BN 5ol A
T P AL (=280 R B L)
F B (White Hawk)

RO~ BRSO g A
T P AL (=280 R B L)
F B (White Hawk)

PRI 2 AR
R 1) SELE 5T 2 A
RO~ BESE R T ok AR

29,341

29,341

63,339

63,339

93,422

93,422

29,341
63,339
93,422
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Year ended December 31

BETZA=Z+—HILEE

2012

31,402
28,478
2,924

79,543
73,967
5,576

130,043
121,974
8,069

33,352
33,150
202

97,634
97,410
224

207,316
207,060
256

64,754
177177
337,359

2013
—F—=

40,178
37,541
2,637

96,090
90,416
5,674

140,592
132,653
7,939

134,069
134,069

302,582
302,582

499,321
499,321

174,247
398,672
639,914

2014
ZE Y

44,147
65
43,232
850

97,249
125
95,111
2,013

131,880
226
122,219
9,435

364,140
364,140

466,650
466,650

579,870
579,870

408,287
563,899
711,750

2015
S

36,262
43
36,006
213

93,050
129
92,380
541

122,081
237
120,438
1,406

375,870
375,870

574,260
574,260

781,830
781,830

412,132
667,310
903,911
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Crude Oil Resources
(thousands of barrels)

Subsidiaries

Prospective Resources, Best
Estimate, Unrisked
China oilfields
Emir-Oil
Condor
Contingent Resources, C2
(mid case)
China oilfields
Emir-Oil
Condor

Equity-accounted entities
(MIEH share)

Prospective Resources, Best
Estimate, Unrisked
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Contingent Resources, 2C
(mid case)
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked
Total contingent Resources,

2C (mid case)

A B R (T4

G 23 w4 B

T R b R B
(R HE A 3HE)
[ 1
A I ST IE
[ (Condor)
BA BIEE (2C, 1)

3y
A I ST IE
B (Condor)

TRl AW 1Y 2 1T 1 I
(K BIER#5)

T R b s R B
(R HE A 3HE)
B L (=2t K BB
S (White Hawk)

BA B E (2C, 1)

T P AL (=280 R B L)
F B (White Hawk)

R B A R A R
(e HEN HE)
g IR (2C, )

18,187
18,187

8,741
8,741

18,187

8,741

Year ended December 31

BWET-H=+—HIEE

2012 2013 2014
e St . e SIS

205,811 205,577 245,113
21,224 20,990 22,176
184,587 184,587 222,937

43,140 9,219 11,494
8,631 8,456 10,190
33,746 - -
763 763 1,304

205,811 205,577 245,113

43,140 9,219 11,494

2015
S i

275,337
19,598
255,739

12,508
10,798

1,710

275,337

12,508



Gas Resources (millions of
SCF)

Subsidiaries

Prospective Resources, Best
Estimate, Unrisked
China oilfields
Emir-Oil
Condor
Contingent Resources, C2
(mid case)
China oilfields
Emir-Oil
Condor

Equity-accounted entities
(MIEH share)

Prospective Resources, Best
Estimate, Unrisked
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Contingent Resources, 2C
(mid case)
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked
Total contingent Resources,

2C (mid case)

KRR URE (1 A
LHER)

G 23 w4 B

I R b R B
(R A 3HE)
[ 1
A I SR
[ (Condor)
BA B E (2C, 1)

R 3
A I ST IR
B (Condor)

TRl AW 1Y 2 1T 1 I

(K BIER 7 5)

HE R B R R
(3o HEAf )

i P (=228 KB BL)

B (White Hawk)
KA R (2C, 1 1E)

i b (=728 KB BL)

B (White Hawk)

B R A R
(e HEA HE)
g IR (2C, )
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Year ended December 31
BWET -H=+—HIEE
2012 2013 2014

“F-TE 2= —E—mE
6,589 1,583 3,260
5,063 - -
1,526 1,583 3,260

921,570 1,064,740 675,750
921,570 1,064,740 675,750

679,358 884,406 680,850
679,358 884,406 680,850

921,570 1,064,740 675,750

685,947 885,989 684,110

2015

S

3,300

3,300

762,450
762,450

758,880
758,880

762,450

762,180
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Statement




Chairman’s Statement
WA E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of MIE (“MIEH" or
the “Company”, together with the subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
hereby present the annual results of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2015 (“FY2015").

Since the third quarter of 2014 and throughout FY2015, the global
energy industry has witnessed the drastic drop of crude oil prices
of over US$70/barrel. Whilst these gloomy fundamentals appear
to have carried forward into 2016, crude oil prices are likely to
remain volatile in the near term. That being said, as the
international commodities market and oil producers have been
responding to such low levels with various measures, we are
optimistic that the nature of boom and bust cycle of the worldwide
oil business shall anticipate a recovery at some point.

When operating under such challenging macro environment, the
Group focuses on the ability to react promptly to these drastic
changes with flexibility. In FY2015, the Group continued to adapt
and rebalance in response to the lower commodity prices by way
of managing and lowering our operating and administrative costs,
while maintaining safe and reliable operations. Capital
investments were significantly lowered and we expect further
reductions in the year ending December 31, 2016 (“FY2016") as
we place liquidity as our top priority.
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As a result of scaled back capital expenditure (“Capex”) and lower
realized oil prices, the Group’s total operated oil and gas
production was 7.7 million barrels of oil equivalent (“BOE”,
converting at 6 thousand standard cubic feet (“MSCF"”) of gas to 1
BOE for reference purpose only) and net oil and gas production
was 4.2 million BOE. The Group's total sales revenue slid 66% to
about RMB1.0 billion in FY2015, whilst adjusted EBITDA dropped
to RMB370 million accordingly. The Group reported a net loss of
approximately RMB1.5 billion in FY2015, primarily due to the
above factors, as well as non-cash accounting impairment of our
oil and gas property assets as a result of lower commodity price
assumptions as of year-end FY2015, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2014 (“FY2014"). In order to preserve
sufficient cash to support the Group’s liquidity and operations
under uncertain crude oil price environment, the Board did not
recommend payment of final dividend for FY2015.

For FY2015, some highlights of the Group’s results include:

o Focused development activities raise the Group’s reserves.
Based on reports issued by independent technical
consultants, the Group’s total net Proved (“1P”) oil and gas
reserves as of year-end FY2015 compared to year-end
FY2014 decreased slightly by 3% to 113.9 million BOE, while
total net Proved + Probable (“2P") oil and gas reserves
increased by 6% to 232.2 million BOE, and total net Proved +
Probable + Possible (“3P”) oil and gas reserves increased by
7% to 311.1 million BOE. The net present value before tax
and discounted at 10% (“NPV 10”) of the Group’s net 2P oil
and gas reserves as at year-end FY2015 was approximately
US$3.0 billion, a 25% decrease versus the NPV 10 of US$4.0
billion reported at year-end FY2014, reflecting the global
crude oil price decline as well as the reduced drilling and
capital expenditure program implemented during FY2015.

A key component in the Group’s reserves improvement was
the contribution from the Sino Gas & Energy Limited (“SGE")
project, where the successful drilling program in FY2015 led
to further significant upgrade in the project’s reserves.
According to our independent consultant’s review of year-
end FY2015 reserves and resources for the Linxing and
Sanjiaobei blocks, the net 1P reserves (attributed to the
Group, same for other reserves figures in the paragraph)
increased by 3% to 376 billion cubic feet (“BCF”) (or 10.6
billion cubic meters (“BCM"), where 1 cubic meter = 35.315
cubic feet), and net 2P reserves increased by 23% to 574 BCF
(16.3 BCM). The year-end FY2015 reserves assessment
indicates that, based on 2P gas reserves, the Group’s net
share of the SGE’s NPV 10 is estimated at about US$1.3
billion. The reserves increases at the SGE project were driven
by a successful drilling campaign which led to increases in
2P reserves of 29% and 15% for the Linxing and Sanjiaobei
blocks, respectively. On a BOE-basis, the Group’s net 2P gas
reserves share of 574 BCF for the SGE project represents 95.7

P A Do A B SR B E S 2 AR SR
(I SR E S = A5 770 M = (s B 3L 0t 6
A ST B RO SR SR =1 A TR T 1) 8 B L )
AR B2 E A EW) o 1 E R 5420
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million BOE, which is approximately equivalent to the 2P oil
reserves of Emir-Qil LLP (“Emir-Qil”) (96.2 million barrels),
and about four times the combined net 2P oil reserves of
Daan plus Moliging (24.4 million barrels).

Stable, low cost China assets provide solid liquidity
foundation. Our China oil projects (Daan and Moliging)
continued to operate at low operating costs with direct lifting
costs' of approximately US$9.49/barrel and EBITDA of
approximately US$31.66/barrel for FY2015. Even at current
low crude oil prices, our oil operations in China with 2,600+
existing wells continue to attribute strong positive net cash
flow and profitability to the Group, enhancing the Group’s
overall operational and financial flexibility and stability.

Enhanced operating efficiency drives significant reductions
in operating costs. The Group made admirable inroads in
reducing costs, particularly at our China and Kazakhstan
operations. In addition to the further reduction of 10.6% in
our China oil projects to US$9.49/barrel, lifting costs in our
Kazakhstan project further decreased by 24.6% to US$3.66/
barrel. In SGE, average vertical well drilling costs were down
approximately 10%. Also, for the overall Group, total
headcount was trimmed from about 2,100 as of year-end
FY2014 to about 1,700 as of year-end FY2015. These
efficiency improvements boost both our EBITDA and
cashflow and position the Group in good stead to weather
the downturn in commodity prices.

SGE well-positioned to drive future growth and provide
diversity. The second central gathering station (“CGS"”) for
SGE, namely the Linxing CGS, was put into operation in
October 2015, bringing total gas gathering capacity for SGE
to 24,700 MSCF/day (or 700,000 cubic meters/day). Average
daily gas production of SGE for FY2015 was 3,702 MSCF/day,
representing an increase of 892.5% compared to FY2014.
SGE also achieved significant improvements in production
test flow rates in FY2015, reflecting improved technology and
operational efficiency in well completions. The average
absolute open flow or AOF? , increased by approximately
33% to 734 MSCF/day (or 20,785 cubic meters/day) compared
with 554 MSCF/day (or 15,697 cubic meters/day) in FY2014.

Lifting cost includes directly controllable costs to produce a barrel of oil. Other
production costs such as safety fee, environment expenses, technical &
research expenses and overhead have not been included above since they are
not directly attributable to the production of a barrel of oil.

AOF potential of a well is the calculated rate at which the well would produce
against zero back pressure. AOF is used as a measure of gas well performance
as it quantifies the ability of a reservoir to deliver gas to the wellbore. The AOF
values provided herein are for reference purposes only.
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Despite the current low oil price environment and the recent
National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC")
reduction of city-gate prices, the price and demand for
natural gas in China remains strong, with SGE securing
robust FY2016 gas sales prices between RMB1.615 and
RMB1.63/cubic meter (approximately US$7.04/MSCF and
US$7.10/MSCF, respectively).

Following the recent receipt of pilot gas sales proceeds from
the Linxing production sharing contract (“PSC"”), which shall
be applied to finance a significant portion of the project’s
Capex for FY2016 and beyond, we are excited that SGE shall
undergo further production revenue growth, whilst we await
similar progress in respect of the Sanjiaobei PSC.

Access to equity capital markets boosts liquidity position.
Despite the volatility in global crude oil price and capital
markets, the Group successfully completed an equity
placement in October 2015 and raised approximately US$32
million. The equity placement underscores the confidence
that investors have in the Group and management team, and
our approach in tackling the current downturn.

Proposed disposal of 60% equity interests in Palaeontol B.V.
On 5 March 2016, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase
Agreement with Reach Energy Berhad in relation to the
proposed disposal of 60% interests in Palaeontol B.V., the
parent company of Emir-Oil. Upon completion of this
transaction, the partnership and collaboration with Reach
Energy Berhad shall allow us to maximize the growth and
economic value of this asset with enormous 2P reserves and
high potential of further reserves/resources upgrade. In
addition, this divestment opportunity enhances the financial
strength and liquidity of the Group under current volatile oil
price environment whilst keeping a sizeable stake in the asset
for potential upside gain.
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In summary, the sharp slump of international crude oil prices since
the second half of 2014 undoubtedly affected oil producers around
the world. Qil companies ranging from independents to
international majors have announced further substantial cuts to
work plans and budgets for the coming year. Accordingly, whilst
we continue to closely monitor the development of global oil &
gas market and keep abreast of attractive assets that would fit well
with the Group’s long term development and growth, for FY2016
we shall maintain a strategy of reduced Capex, minimal drilling
and work programs, as well as focusing on operational efficiency
and cost reduction. We plan to drill 23 gross wells (including 21
wells in SGE), with China oil projects and Emir-Oil’s total budgeted
Capex approximating US$35 million and anticipated SGE’s cash
call approximating US$20 million. The expected net oil production
is 9,240 to 10,540 barrels/day and the expected net gas production
is 11,100 to 12,100 MSCF/day. We are confident that this program
will provide a balanced basis for the Group’s continued
operational and financial stability and long-term growth, amid
current challenging crude price environment.

To conclude, | thank you, our Board, staff, shareholders,
bondholders, and business partners for your continued trust and
support.

Zhang Ruilin
Chairman
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Zhang Ruilin, aged 45, has been the executive Director, chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company since March 20, 2008.
Mr. Zhang, along with Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, are the Controlling
Shareholders of the Company. Mr. Zhang has over 25 years of
experience in the oil and gas business. Following the takeover of
MIE by FEEL in August 2003, Mr. Zhang joined us in September
2003 and has since been a Director of the Company. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing our overall strategies,
planning and day-to-day management and operations. Mr. Zhang
is also a director for the various subsidiaries of the Group.

Zhao Jiangwei, aged 44, has been the executive Director and
senior vice president of the Company since December 19, 2008. He
is one of the Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Zhao has over 23 years
of experience in the oil and gas industry. Following the takeover of
MIE by FEEL from Microbes Inc. in August 2003, Mr. Zhao joined
the Company in September 2003 and has since been a Director of
the Company. He is and will continue to be primarily responsible
for assisting the chairman in overseeing the operations at the
Daan and Moliging oilfields. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor of arts
degree from Daging Petroleum College in 1999.

Tao Tak Yin Dexter, aged 43, has been our executive Director
since his appointment on July 19, 2013. He is also the chief
financial offer and senior vice president of the Company. Mr. Tao
joined our company in July 2013. He is a veteran investment
banker with extensive corporate finance and accounting
experience. Before joining the Company, Mr. Tao served as senior
director in the Global Investment Banking team at Bank of America
Merrill Lynch where he spent six years specializing in the
origination and execution of investment banking business for
China’s private sector enterprises. Prior to joining the Bank of
America Merrill Lynch, Mr. Tao has also worked at Bear Stearns
Asia, BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital and Arthur Andersen LLP
(subsequently known as PricewaterhouseCoopers). Mr. Tao holds
both a bachelor degree in Business Administration and a master’s
degree in Accounting from the University of Southern California.
He was a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong from 1996 to
1999.
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Andrew Sherwood Harper, aged 64, has been our executive
Director since his appointment on July 19, 2013. Mr. Harper has
been the Company’s chief geologist and president of the
Company’s international operations from 2001 to 2008 and
rejoined the Company in April 2010 as the chief geologist. Mr.
Harper is also the chief executive officer and a director of MIE
Jurassic Energy Corporation, overseeing the group’s operations in
the United States. Mr. Harper has over 35 years of experience in
the oil and gas industry, during which he acquired his experience
working in the exploration and production team of ARCO
International Oil & Gas Company prior to joining the Company in
2001. During his time with ARCO, Mr. Harper worked extensively
overseas, including assignments in Chile, Dubai, Norway, the
United Kingdom and Indonesia, and as ARCO’s resident manager
in Bogota, Colombia. Mr. Harper also worked as a basin studies
director, Latin America exploration director and exploration
project director at the headquarters of ARCO International in the
United States from 1990 to 1996 and as an exploration manager at
the Andean Basins in ARCO Latin America Inc. from 1999 to 2000.
Mr. Harper received a bachelor’s degree in Geology from Williams
College and a master’s degree in Geology from the University of
Southern California. Mr. Harper is certified as a Professional
Geologist by the Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists and a
Certified Petroleum Geologist of American Association of
Petroleum Geologists.

Tian Hongtao, aged 45, has been our executive Director since his
appointment on December 5, 2014. He is also the executive
president of the Company. Mr. Tian joined the Company in
January 2014 as vice president. He has over 21 years of experience
in finance and accounting and brings considerable risk and control
management expertise to the Company. Prior to joining us, Mr.
Tian served as financial controller of Digital China Information
Service Company Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000555.SZ). Before that, Mr. Tian held
positions as vice general manager, general manager, assistant
president and vice president of Digital China Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (‘’Digital China”, stock
code: 00861), focusing on risk and control management of Digital
China. Prior to his time at Digital China, Mr. Tian worked at the
Lenovo Group, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0992). Mr. Tian graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in 1994
and then a master’s degree in 2001, both in Economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics in China. He also
obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration from the
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in China in 2007. He is
a non-practicing certified public accountant in China.
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Xie Na, aged 40, has been the non-executive Director of the
Company since November 13, 2015. She is a vice president
(investment) of Shanghai Life Insurance Company Ltd. (“Shanghai
Life”). She joined Shanghai Life in 2015 and is responsible for the
establishment of equity investment section, and the formation of
equity investment strategies. Prior to joining Shanghai Life, Ms.
Xie was a senior vice president of Sequoia Capital China (“Sequoia
Capital”), where she led the portfolio management for Sequoia
Capital’s investment with a focus on consumer and
telecommunications/media/technology (“TMT") sectors. Ms. Xie
led also the investment, post-investment management and exit in
related to various projects of Sequoia Capital, including in relation
to Peak Sport Products Co., Limited (stock code: 1968.HK) and Sky-
mobi Limited (symbol: MOBI.NASDAQ). Prior to joining Sequoia
Capital, Ms. Xie was a consultant at Monitor Group, where she
provided management advice in marketing, operations and
investment. Ms. Xie is currently an executive council member of
the China Women’s Chamber of Commerce, the vice president of
China Energy Storage Alliance, and was a visiting professor of the
Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences. Ms. Xie
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Stanford University in 2004 and a bachelor’s degree in computer
engineering from the University of Toronto in 2002.
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Mei Jianping, aged 55, has been our independent non-executive
Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010. Mr. Mei
has been a professor of finance at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in Beijing, China since 2006 and a fellow at Financial
Institutions Center, the Wharton School of University of
Pennsylvania, since 2004. He was a tenured associate professor of
finance from 1996 to 2005 and an assistant professor of finance
from 1990 to 1995 at New York University. From 2003 to 2008, he
also taught at Tsinghua University as a special term professor of
finance. Mr. Mei has been a director of Cratings.com Inc., USA
since 1999. Since 2009, Mr. Mei has served on the boards of
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (stock code: 1238.HK), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and Zhong De Securities
Company Limited. Mr. Mei also served as the chairman of the
board of Shanghai Zhangjiang JRtan.com Inc. from 2000 to 2012.
From November 29, 2013, Mr. Mei has served Ground Properties
Company Limited as an independent non-executive director, and
from August 11, 2014, Mr. Mei Has served China Rundong Auto
Group Limited as an independent non-executive director (both
companies listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Mei worked as a
consultant for various financial institutions, such as Deutsche
Bank, UBS, Prudential Insurance of America and Asia
Development Bank. He has published a number of books and
articles on topics related to finance. Mr. Mei received a bachelor’s
degree in Mathematics from Fudan University in 1982, a master’s
degree in Economics and a Ph.D. in Economics (Finance) from
Princeton University in 1988 and 1990, respectively.
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Jeffrey Willard Miller, aged 53, has been our independent non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010.
Mr. Miller has over 29 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Since 2012, Mr. Miller has been Managing Partner and
Co-Founder of Vortus Investments, an energy private equity firm
founded in later 2012. From 2008 to 2012, as the director of
upstream and investments for Mercuria Energy Trading Inc., one
of the world’s largest independent physical energy trading firms,
he was responsible for Mercuria and certain of its affiliates’ global
portfolio of oil and natural gas assets, the majority of which are
located in North and South America. Prior to Mercuria, Mr. Miller
spent four years, from 2004 to 2008, as president of Moncrief Qil
International, a private oil and natural gas company with assets in
the former Soviet Union as well as North America. Prior to his
career at Moncrief, Mr. Miller was a managing director in global
energy investment banking for UBS AG, the successor of Dillon,
Read & Co, which he joined in 1993. Mr. Miller was an investment
banker with a focus on the energy industry and has extensive
experience in the fields of corporate finance. Throughout his
career as set out above, Mr. Miller has been involved in a
substantial number of transactions including initial public
offerings, debt offerings and mergers and acquisitions, which
require expertise in financial analysis. As an investment banker,
Mr. Miller also had extensive experience in valuation analysis,
which involved reviewing and analyzing audited financial
statements of public and private companies. Mr. Miller’s
professional career began in a technical capacity as a petroleum
engineer with Exxon. Mr. Miller received a bachelor’'s degree,
magna cum laude, in Petroleum Engineering from Texas A&M
University and a master’s degree in Business Administration from
the Columbia Business School.

Guo Yanjun, aged 63, has been the independent non-executive
Director of the Company since November 13, 2015. He has
extensive entrepreneurship experience and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated from
China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984. Mr. Guo
is presently an independent non-executive director of Honghua
Group Limited (stock code: 196.HK), Strong Petrochemical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 852.HK) and Mei Ah Entertainment
Group Limited (stock code: 391.HK) (all being companies listed on
the Stock Exchange), and was an independent non-executive
director of Z-Obee Holdings Limited (stock code: 948.HK) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange and Singapore Exchange
Limited) from the date of its listing in 2010 up to 30 November
2012. He is also the Chairman of CNHK Tech Co. Ltd, CNHK Media
Limited, CNHK Media (H.K.) Advertising Limited and CNHK
Publications Limited.

Jeffrey Willard Miller > 535 > H &% —%
Ftr—AZ LA RBEARNFE S IFHATE
o Miller Jo A= 75 AT 35 A 781 29 4R XCBR -
TE TR Miller SE AR AT IR % 4E ALY
fit U5 AL 22 B HE 2 7] Vortus Investments ) &
HAL B AIFILFE BB o Miller Jp 4t —EZE
JNAE B ZF — T4 i A Mercuria Energy
Trading Inc. (&Eki KB L WL REIRE 5
Az —) B EESF - A Mercuria XA
T B 2 I T B K AR SR R CRER A LR
dEMMmEEM) WERRBLEHS - WA
Mercuria Z | » H = FZI4EFE R F)\4F
Ma4E 1R Miller 58 A 5 4£ Moncrief Oil
International #43% » %A A5 —F A M &R
RALE AT > (ETTRREE S A SE M B - A
Moncrief B & H I 25 A4 VE 1T > Miller 5t 4E it
— JLJL =4 n AUBS AG (H i & % Dillon,
Read & Co) > EERBRAEH K MITEF M
K o Miller Je 4 23 B URAT E B G MATE » HiE
A2 4 T AR S AR B o G URFE A AT
> 2HZRLY > BIFERAMEE - fih
B PRI o B A BCEMATER > Miller SEAETR
WA Y SN ER S BIEERM O BRI B
T R R H I AT R 3R o MR 2E 2 W2 AE 3L e
R E AL A TRERTE AR AL T - Miller SE4E
DI L RS R IAS 1 e s T 2 KB LR
BLELA-ERAV 5T > E AT AR bL R AR e L
PHAE B o

FEHEH > 6358 0 H_F—HFT—HT=HiE
AT AN B IE AT D - A = A
R A E S S A o B e R
—JLA\PUAE S 2 ) N R BUASIA A
1R o FRSEAE BN 7 HE AL AT BRA &) (R AR
9% 1 196.HK) ~ ¥lge A b THE A PRA 7 (%
R SE 852 HK) M 35 mi f 4 5 ol 42 13 A7 R A
A OBAMEHE © 391.HK) (B A B2 HT Eii A #)
L IRPATE DS > AR S F g LT
WhE - F— Tt —H =T IR ERER s
RS A (B A%+ 948.HK) (1 38 T B n 3k
BT A R R BT A D) 2 S AT
#w o AR IR ERHLA AR -
WA BRA R ~ Pl (B us) B A IRA
A AR R AR EER -



Ning Deyu, aged 47, is our vice president. Mr. Ning has over 22
years of experience in the oil and gas industry. He is primarily
responsible for the production operations and HSE management.
Prior to joining us in 2007, Mr. Ning acquired his experience as
technician, section chief and deputy factory manager at PetroChina
in the Jilin oilfields. He also worked as the project manager at the
foreign cooperation and joint venture division of the Jilin oilfields
at PetroChina between 2005 and 2007. Mr. Ning graduated from
Daging Petroleum College with a bachelor’s degree in Petroleum
Engineering and is a senior engineer.

Ms. Wong Sau Mei, ACS, ACIS, is our company secretary and a
senior manager of corporate services division of Tricor and an
Associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She
has over 20 years’ experience in the company secretarial field.

Save for Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, senior vice president and executive
Director, who is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, our
chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director, there are
no family relationships between any of our Directors and senior
management.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this corporate
governance report in the Group’s Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2015.

The Board of the Company has committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards. The Group acknowledges the
vital importance of good corporate governance to the Group’s
success and sustainability. We are committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance as an essential component of
quality and have introduced corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of our business.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

During the accounting period for the year ended December 31,
2015, the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions set
out in the CG Code, except for Code Provisions A.2.1 as explained
below.

The Company will periodically review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2015.
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The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of 5
executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following
Directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter

Mr. Tian Hongtao

Non-executive directors:

Ms. Xie Na (appointed with effect from November 13, 2015)
Mr. Wang Sing (resigned with effect from November 13, 2015)
Mr. Hung Leung (alternate to Mr. Wang Sing)

(resigned with effect from November 13, 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun (appointed with effect from November 13, 2015)

Mr. Cai Rucheng (resigned with effect from November 13, 2015)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18
to 23 of the Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Relationship among Directors and Senior Management”
on page 23.

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are required to be separated and not to be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr. Zhang”)
is the Chairman of the Board. In addition to the role of Chairman
of the Board, the role of Chief Executive Officer is also designated
to Mr. Zhang. This constitutes a deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1. The reason for such deviation is set out below.
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The Company is engaged in the oil and gas exploration and
production business which is different from integrated oil
companies engaging in both upstream and downstream
operations. In light of this, the Board considers that the interest of
the Company’s oil and gas exploration and production business is
best served when strategic planning decisions are made and
implemented by the same person. The Nomination Committee of
the Company also agreed that it is in the best interest of the
Company that the roles of the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer be performed by the same individual. In this
respect, the Company does not currently propose to designate
another person as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
However, the Company, will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group’s corporate governance structure and consider
whether any changes, including the separation of the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, are necessary.

Mr. Cai Rucheng has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on November 13, 2015. On the same day, Mr. Guo Yanjun
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Mr. Wang Sing and Mr. Hung Leung (alternate to Mr. Wang Sing)
have resigned as a non-executive Director on November 13, 2015
respectively. On the same day, Ms. Xie Na was appointed as the
non-executive Director.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business and
financial expertise, experience and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation at Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all non-executive Directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.
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Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to
reelection, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, and
through him, to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

In addition, the Board has established Board committees and has
delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
company secretary, with a view to ensure that Board procedures
and all applicable laws and regulations are followed. The Directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuous briefing and
professional development for directors will be arranged where
necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that they remain informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for directors will be arranged and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where
appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed.
On December 11, 2015, all directors attended a training seminar
organized by Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft on issues and
requirements under the Listing Rules in relation to the new CG
Code.
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The Board has established 3 committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

All members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee is set out under “Company Information” on
pages 2 to 4.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller (chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Mei
Jianping and Mr. Guo Yanjun, all of them are independent non-
executive Directors.

Mr. Cai Rucheng has resigned as the member of the Audit
Committee on November 13, 2015. On the same day, Mr. Guo
Yanjun was appointed as the member of the Audit Committee.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external
auditors before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures
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During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Audit Committee
held two meetings to review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report on the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems and
processes, scope of work and re-appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Mei Jianping (chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Guo Yanjun, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Cai Rucheng has resigned as the member of the Remuneration
Committee on November 13, 2015. On the same day, Mr. Guo
Yanjun was appointed as the member of the Remuneration
Committee.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

° To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the individual executive directors and senior
management

° To review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the non-executive directors

° To review and make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management

o To make recommendations to the Board on the letter of
appointment of the new executive Director appointed during
the year

° To review and approve compensation arrangements of the
executive Directors and the senior management

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Remuneration
Committee met once to assess performance of executive Directors
and senior management, review and make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management and other related matters.
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The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Mei Jianping (chairman of Nomination Committee), Mr.
Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Guo Yanjun, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Cai Rucheng has resigned as the member of the Nomination
Committee on November 13, 2015. On the same day, Mr. Guo
Yanjun was appointed as the member of the Nomination
Committee.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and make recommendations regarding any proposed
changes

o To develop and formulate relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors

° To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors

° To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors

o To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedure for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Nomination
Committee met once to determine the policy for the nomination of
Directors, review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
and consider the qualifications of and nominate certain retiring
Directors to stand for election at the Annual General Meeting.
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The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices and made recommendations to the Company
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, the code of conduct and
compliance manual for employees and Directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The attendance record of each Director during their tenure of
office at the Board and Board Committee meetings and the
general meetings of the Company held during the year ended
December 31, 2015 is set out in the table below:

Name of Director Board
HHEA HHE
Executive Directors AfTES
Mr. Zhang Ruilin eI e 4/4
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei HITE e 4/4
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood Harper &4 4/4
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter Glyevita 4/4
Mr. Tian Hongtao MR 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHfTES
Ms. Xie Na (appointed with effect @il &c+ (4 = F— 74

from November 13, 2015) F—HA+=HEEL) 7N
Mr. Wang Sing (resigned with effect TRk (1 = F— A4

from November 13, 2015) F—H1=HEE) 23
Mr. Hung Leung WSS (F AL B ESH)

(alternate to Mr. Wang Sing) (RZF—HE—HAT=H

(resigned with effect from FHE)

November 13, 2015) 0/3
Independent non-executive Directors B JE {7 %
Mr. Mei Jianping fgr ek 3/4
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller /£ 4/4
Mr. Guo Yanjun (appointed with OMEE S (R F— A

effect from November 13, 2015) F=A1=HEZ(F) 11

Mr. Cai Rucheng (resigned with A (=T
effect from November 13, 2015) T—HT=ZHEHE) 33

R A EEAT AR T S BGOSR
D.3.1 fh i Hk AE

T ORI g A A Al A SR IR BUR R
B~ B AR T Y S R A
J& o~ AR RIS IE R KB RUE - BRMESTA
Fe A SEAE IR ST HI 5 T 2 BURE R R DL RO AR A
SEER ISR 4 -

HEHELAHALFEE T 04+ A
=t —HIEFERTNERGRERG LAY
B A T CHUR & B R Bk RO T K

Attendance/Number of Meetings

i/ akk
Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting

REZRG  HMZHE  BHRZHE  BOUEERE

n
n
n
n
01

0/0

0/1

0/1

1" n 112 0N
1" n 212 0N

1" n 0/0 0/0

0/0 0/0 212 0N



Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman also held
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the presence of executive
Directors during the year.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2015.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval.

The Company’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC") and its responsibilities for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are set out it the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 88 to 89.

In 2015, the following fees were paid/payable by the Group to its
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers and it's network member of
firms:
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The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The senior management reviews and evaluates the control
process, monitors any risk factors on a regular basis, and reports
to the Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address
the variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board with the support of the
Audit Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

Ms. Wong Sau Mei of Tricor Services Limited, external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Tao
Tak Yin Dexter, an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholders’ meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings
may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company by post
as set out in the following paragraph.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests mentioned
above by post or via email as follows:

Address Room Nos. 521-26, 5/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

(To the attention of the Board of Directors)
Tel: 852-2511-0028

Fax: 852-2511-1983

Email: investors@mienergy.com.cn

Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, apart from the registered office of
the Company, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

To achieve this, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.mienergy.com.cn, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted and available for public access.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings. The chairman of the Board, all non-
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors, and the
chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make
themselves available at the annual general meeting to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries. The general meeting of
the Company also provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the shareholders.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal business of the Company, its subsidiaries and joint
controlled entities is to engage in the exploration, development,
production and sale of crude oil and other petroleum products
under production sharing contracts and other similar
arrangements. The Group currently has the following oil and gas
properties: (1) two producing production oil sharing contracts in
northeast China; (2) an exploration contract and four production
contracts in Kazakhstan held by Emir-Qil; (3) a working interest in
the Niobrara shale oil and gas asset in the United States of
America held by Condor Energy Technology LLC’s (“Condor”);
and (4) a 51% stake in SGE which has two production sharing
contracts in Shanxi, China.

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 92 to 93.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2015 (2014: Nil).

The business review of the Group for the year has been set out in
page 12 to 17 of the Chairman’s Statement, page 59 to 87 of the
Management Discussion and Analysis, and this Report of the
Directors.

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 94 to 95 and note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 197 to 199 for movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the senior notes are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company at December 31, 2015 are
disclosed in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

Pursuant to the share buy-back mandate granted to the Board of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on May 16, 2014, the Company bought back 25,578,000 of its own
ordinary shares of USD0.001 each in the capital of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2015 at the highest and lowest
prices of HK$0.88 and HK$0.82 per share respectively (“Shares
Buy-back”). All Shares Buy-back occurred in January 2015.

The aggregate purchase price paid for the Shares Buy-back was
approximately HK$22.3 million (including transaction cost) and
was funded by internal resources of the Company. Such shares
bought back by the Company represent approximately 0.97% of
the issued share capital of the Company before the Shares Buy-
back.

The Board considers that the value of the Company’s shares is
consistently undervalued, and the Board believes such Shares
Buy-back could underscore the intrinsic value of the Company’s
shares.
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A summary of the buy-back, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities is set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)

Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (“Plan”)

The Board adopted the Plan prior to the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange designed to attract and
retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility, provide additional incentive to employees and
directors and promote the success of our business. Under
the Plan, a total of 29,902,758 share options were granted to
Directors, executives and employees, of which 1,818,579
share options lapsed. The share options were granted at nil
consideration.

The exercise price of the granted share options is equal to or
higher than the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share of the Company. The share options
granted under the Plan typically vest over a two or three year
period at each anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each vesting
date.

The Company has undertaken that no further share options
will be granted under the Plan upon the listing of the
Company, but the provisions of the Plan shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and share options
granted under the Plan prior to the listing of the Company
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the Plan and
agreements entered into pursuant to the Plan.
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(ii)
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Details of the share options outstanding as at December 31,
2015 which have been granted under the Plan are as follows:

Number of Number
options of options
Held at granted exercised Held at
January 1, during during  December 31,
Name 2015 the year the year 2015
REF—-H4
REF-H4 AEERL  AEECHE FSAZT-H
4 —“H—RfEE  ZBREHH  ZWRESH o)
Independent non-executive
Directors
[ENES Vi
Mr. Mei Jianping 1,267,933 1,267,933
3ot
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller 1,811,333 1,811,333
Jeffrey Willard Miller &4
Other employees 17,048,120 17,048,120
HiAT
Total 5t 20,127,386 20,127,386

Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”)

On November 27, 2010, the Board adopted the Scheme to
enable the Company to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to our Group.
Participants of the Scheme include any executive Director,
non-executive Director or full time employee of the Group as
invited by the Board. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from the approval of
the Scheme.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Scheme
must not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
must be made within 28 days from the date of grant with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee. The
exercise price determined by the Board will be at the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Exercise
price

(per Share)

TrbEf
(%1%t

US$0.25
0.25%7C

US$0.25
025570

US$0.13
0.13%7

(ii)
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The share options granted under the Scheme typically vest
over three years on the last day of each year starting from
the subsequent year of the grant, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date and other
performance evaluation results.

Cancellation of Vested Options

On September 20, 2011, the Company granted, pursuant to
the Scheme adopted by the Company on November 27, 2010,
share options to certain employees of the Company, entitling
the option holders to subscribe for an aggregate of
112,048,000 ordinary shares of the Company of USD0.001
each at the exercise price of HK$2.254 per Share (“2011
Grant”).

Since February 2013, the exercise price of the vested options
has been higher than the prevailing market price of the
Shares. As a result, the options could no longer serve as an
effective incentive. In view of this, the Company offered
these option holders a cash consideration of HK$0.20 per
Share to cancel vested options under the 2011 Grant, subject
to the option holders consenting to such cancellation. As a
result, options in respect of 65,358,066 Shares were cancelled
on March 21, 2014.

Grant of New Options

On March 21, 2014, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 151 eligible participants
comprising certain directors, substantial shareholders and
employees of the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of
97,280,000 Shares. These options have an exercise price of
HK$1.40 per share and a term of 10 years from the grant
date, and will vest over the next three or four years.

The closing price per share as at March 20, 2014, being the
date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$1.34.
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Under the Scheme, a total of 209,328,000 share options were
granted to Directors, executives and employees, of which
25,026,650 share options were lapsed during the year ended
December 31, 2015. Details of the share options outstanding
as at December 31, 2015 which have been granted under the
Scheme are as follows:

Number of Number of Number of Number of
Heldat  options granted options  options lapsed options Held at
January 1, during the  exercised during duringthe  lapsed during December 31,
Name 2015 period the period period the period 2015
REZ-EE RMRGhe  RMRREZ  RERERR RMACRE REZ-LE
:2 ik TR HER B L] TR R B WRERE AZA=t-RES
Executive Directors
AhEy
Mr. Zhang Ruilin 2,347,000 2,347,000
TR
2,640,000 2,640,000
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei 2,347,000 2,347,000
HITREE
2,640,000 2,640,000
Mr. Andrew Sherwood 441,000 441,000
Harper
Andrew Sherwood Harper
ks
3,000,000 3,000,000
Mr. Tian Hongtao 3,000,000 3,000,000
HitER
Other employees 35,567,734 13,740,400 21,827,334
FHERT
81,991,621 11,286,250 70,705,371

Total &3t 133,974,355 25,026,650

108,947,705

R4 AR 5 1) - 545 209,328,000 175 i
R TES - THAB KES - &
FoE-HETAZtT—HIET M
A > H 125,026,650 173 fif B 3 o AR
5 R ME S ) © B B R S — HAE
A = B AR AT A I RE R
ey

Exercise price
(per Share)  Date of grant Exercisable period
fHfEm () RHER WA
HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
22540 A ——FEAAZTH to September 19, 2021

A-F-CEFZA=t-AE
ECEC-EAATARL
HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016
1408 “F-WE=ACT-H to March 20, 2024
AZF-REZAZH-RiR

FCRZNEEAZTHLE
HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
25481 ZF-—EAAZTH to September 19, 2021
BoF-CFTCAST-HE
ECRTAEU AL
HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016
140858 —F-IWE=A -0 to March 20, 2024
BoF-AEZRZA-RE
FRTWEZRCTALE
HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
pRL iy Sy W e gl to September 19, 2021
e St gt = i
EERTEAR AL
HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016

140858 “F-WE=ZA R to March 20, 2024
A-F-RE=AZ -0
ECRTWESACAAL

HK$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2015
140858 “F-WE=AZT-H to March 20, 2024
A-F-LE=ATt-HE
FRTME=AHHIE
HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
254 “F—FEAAZTH to September 19, 2021
BoF-CHETIAZT-RR
ECRTEU AL
HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2015

1400 “F-WE=AZT-H to March 20, 2024/
from March 21, 2016
to March 20, 2024/
B-F-RF=A-T-RER
CECNESAC AL/
BoF-RESAZE-IR
ECECWEEACTAL



(iii) 2012 Share Award Scheme (“2012 Share Award

Scheme”)

To supplement the Plan in respect the operation of the share
appreciation rights (“SARs”), the Board resolved to adopt a
2012 Share Award Scheme on May 30, 2012, pursuant to
which the Company granted to selected grantees who are
persons holding SARs under the Plan, such number of
awarded shares as is equal to the number of outstanding
notional shares to which the SARs of the selected grantees
relates. The 2012 Share Award Scheme does not constitute a
share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.

The Board resolved to adopt on November 20, 2015 the
amended Plan, pursuant to which, restrictions on grant price
of SARs granted after the adoption of amended Plan are
removed. Lapsed SARs will be re-used and re-granted upon
terms and conditions determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company in its sole discretion, in
accordance with the amended Plan.

According to the 2012 Share Award Scheme, shares of up to
44,415,800 of the Company will be purchased by a trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Company and
be held in trust for the benefit of the selected grantees
pending the exercise of the SARs. Upon exercise of the SAR
by the selected grantees, the trustee will sell the awarded
shares to which the SAR so exercised relates and pay the
selected grantees in satisfaction of the Company’s payment
obligations in relation to the SAR under the Plan. Unless
early terminated by the board of the Company, the 2012
Share Award Scheme shall continue in full force and effect
until the date when all the SARs are exercised, terminated or
expired.

As at December 31, 2015, the trustee holds 42,065,002 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$78,053,660 (including
transaction costs). As at December 31, 2015, the trustee sold
2,349,000 shares upon exercise of SARs so exercised by
certain grantees.
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(iv) 2015 Share Award Scheme (“2015 Share Award

Scheme”)

To recognize the contributions by certain grantees and to
give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the Group, and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group, the Board resolved to adopt on January 6, 2015 and
amend on November 20, 2015 the 2015 Share Award
Scheme, pursuant to which the Board may at their absolute
discretion select any grantee, who is an employee or
consultant of the Group or of any affiliate, for participation in
the 2015 Share Award Scheme and determine the number of
awarded shares to be granted to such grantee. The 2015
Share Award Scheme does not constitute a share option
scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a
discretionary scheme of the Company, and will be in effect in
parallel with the Plan, the Scheme and the 2012 Share Award
Scheme.

Pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, existing
shares will be purchased by a trustee from open market out
of cash which will be paid by the Company as trust shares
and be held on trust for the grantees until the relevant
award(s) is vested in accordance with the relevant award
agreement and the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules. Upon
vesting, the trustee shall transfer the relevant trust shares as
awarded shares to the relevant grantee, or upon receipt of
the instructions from the grantees, dispose of the relevant
awarded shares in open market and transfer the proceeds of
the sale of the relevant awarded shares (after deduction of
the relevant charges, expenses, stamp duty and levy) to the
relevant grantee.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules,
the 2015 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective
from January 6, 2015 to the date of the last of the awarded
shares has been vested and transferred to the relevant
grantee or has lapsed, whichever is later, in accordance with
the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, provided that no award
shall be made on or after the 10th anniversary date of the
adoption date.

As at December 31, 2015, the trustee holds 16,600,000 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$13,972,000 (including
transaction costs).

On November 20, 2015, the Board of Directors has resolved
to offer to certain directors and employees 14,200,000 shares
under the 2015 Share Award Scheme.
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(v) Others

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under each of
the Scheme, the Plan and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12 month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue at the date of the 2012 annual general meeting.

As at the date of this report, the maximum number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme and the Plan is
264,784,079 shares and 20,127,386 shares respectively,
representing approximately 9.01% and 0.68% of the issued
share capital respectively.

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter

Mr. Tian Hongtao

Non-executive directors

Ms. Xie Na (appointed with effect from November 13, 2015)
Mr. Wang Sing (resigned with effect from November 13, 2015)
Mr. Hung Leung (alternate to Mr. Wang Sing)

(resigned with effect from November 13, 2015)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun
(appointed with effect from November 13, 2015)
Mr. Cai Rucheng
(resigned with effect from November 13, 2015)

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(v) 3ft

TEAT AT 1218 3 109 1] PR A (o AR 42 o P A
W~ SR H B AR A AT AR A s B
W52 Hh 2 W PR T 2 B AT S WD B AT T A%
S L 1A L A B O 75 B o 7 ) S B
B AT A 1% o PIAT (8 AR 5 10 SO HE T
W~ SR I B AR A AT e At e R
52t 2 2 0 PO T T B AT 114 B
e R g - T EREEEKR
B REFETA10%

B ARG H A > R P8 R 5T B K%
T # f% Z2 n] R EE AT 0 B B E 4 Bl B
264,784,079 % %% 20,127,386 i » 43 Fll 1k
BB TIE A4 9.01% /%2 0.68% ©

AR e BB ARE I SIMEESRWT

PITESF

SR RSB A ()

[ERAR Bt

Andrew Sherwood Harper 5c4:
Vi) 5 SR

kg e

FHEPTES

WLt O = F A A= H#EZAT)
ERESE R ZF—HAFEF—H = HBHE)
Hse ek (EREAE BT E )

(P =F— i F+—H 1= HREHL)

B EPTES

My
Jeffrey Willard Miller 4=
M

(P ZF—HAFE+—H = HEZME)
A e A

(P = F—HAE+—H = HFHE)



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter, Mr. Andrew Sherwood
Harper and Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. In addition, Ms. Xie Na and
Mr. Guo Yanjun who were respectively appointed by the Board as
non-executive Director and independent non-executive Director on
November 13, 2015 and shall hold office until the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. All of the above retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

We have entered into letters of appointment with each of our
Directors, pursuant to which each of the executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors is
appointed for terms of three years, subject to re-election in
accordance with our Articles of Association at our general
meeting.

On November 20, 2009, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
each an executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company and MIE respectively, which is renewable yearly
unless terminated (i) with 12 months’ notice by either party, or (ii)
by the Company or MIE (as applicable) upon certain events such
as the Director having committed serious or persistent breaches of
the service contract. Should the Company or MIE (as applicable)
terminate the service contract, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao
Jiangwei will be entitled to receive severance payment equivalent
to one year’s basic pay under the service contract, save for
circumstances described in item (ii) above.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have entered into
a service contract with us which does not expire or which is not
terminable by us within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group had the
following transactions with Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”) and
Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development Company, Songyuan Guotai
Petroleum Technology Service Company and their subsidiaries
(“Jilin Guotai”), which are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules:

(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to the Company

(B) Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

MR A LS AL AR FE A0 B 55 16.18 16 » g 7
%64 > Andrew Sherwood HarperJt 4= DL &
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Category | — Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholder’s Approval

(A)

Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us

Mrs. Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, and is
therefore a connected person of our Company. Since 2008,
Mrs. Zhang has been regularly leasing a substantial number
of vehicles to us.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into a renewed
framework vehicle rental agreement with Mrs. Zhang (the
“Vehicle Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Mrs. Zhang
agreed to rent to us a number of vehicles for the purpose of
the day-to-day business operations of our Group, subject to
the entering into of individual contracts as agreed between
Mrs. Zhang and us pursuant to the Vehicle Rental
Agreement.

No individual vehicle rental contract has been entered into
with Mrs. Zhang under above Vehicle Rental Agreement
during FY2015.

Category Il — Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

(B)

Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework oilfield
service agreement with Jilin Guotai (the “Qilfield Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin Guotai agreed to
provide to us various oilfield services including well
maintenance services, well logging services, oil tanker
transportation services, oilfield construction related works
and other oil operations related services, subject to the
entering into of individual contracts as agreed between Jilin
Guotai and us pursuant to the Qilfield Service Agreement.
The service fees will be based on normal commercial terms
and negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties to our Group.
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On December 31, 2012, we entered into the Renewed QOilfield
Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three
years ending December 31, 2015. The proposed annual caps
for the transactions under the Renewed Oilfield Services
Agreement are RMB250.0 million, RMB280.0 million and
RMB330.0 million for the three years ending December 31,
2015, respectively.

On December 31, 2015, we entered into the Renewed QOilfield
Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three
years ending December 31, 2018. The proposed annual caps
for the transactions under the Renewed Oilfield Services
Agreement are RMB 99.0 million, RMB 96.0 million and RMB
82.0 million for the three years ending December 31, 2018,
respectively.

As listed below, the aggregate annual transaction amount of
each continuing connected transaction for the year ended
December 31, 2015 has not exceeded the respective
proposed annual cap in the Renewed QOilfield Services
Agreement as approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on May 24, 2013.

RoE—TFE A=+ —H > IR
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Transaction amount
for the year ended

Connected Person Nature of transaction Proposed annual cap December 31, 2015
BIE R4
PN R RonE MR AR LR TZA=ET—HRGH
Mrs. Zhang Lease of vehicles by RMB5.1 million None
R A Mrs. Zhang NE#510 8T e
to the Company
MRFR N A ] L A VR HL
Jilin Guotai Provision of oilfield RMB330.0 million RMB74.1 million

M 28 services by Jilin Guotai
to the Company
MR 2 ) AR 2 m] AR
i H RS

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors,
the above transactions were carried out in the ordinary and
usual course of business; on normal commercial terms or
better; and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them and on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. Details of such connected
transactions are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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The auditor has confirmed that for the year 2015 the
continuing connected transactions (i) have received approval
of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group, where applicable; (iii) have been entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the respective cap
amounts for the financial year ended December 31, 2013 as
approved at the annual general meeting dated May 24, 2013.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited
assurance engagement on the above non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported their
conclusion to the Board, stating that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the relevant non-exempt
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

c. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the relevant
non-exempt continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the relevant continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
as set by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries, including the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries to the Group.
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During 2015, the Group entered into certain transactions with
“related parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards, details of which are disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, as disclosed in
note 35(a) to the consolidated financial statements: (i) the
transactions in connection with the purchase for oilfield services
fall under the definition of continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, and are subject to reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirements; (ii) the transactions in relation to purchase
of spare parts and rental of vehicles and office premises fall under
the definition of continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules and are fully exempt from the connected transaction
requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iii) the transactions in
relation to sales of vehicles and loans fall under the definition of
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are fully
exempt from the connected transaction requirements under the
Listing Rules.

During 2015, the Group did not carry out any transactions in
connection with lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us as
mentioned on page 47 of this annual report, which fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules and are exempt from independent shareholder’s approval.

The relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
(as applicable) with respect to all the above connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions have been complied with.

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 18 to
22.
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As at December 31, 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or which will be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
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contained in the Listing Rules, were detailed as follows:

Name of Director

LA

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
ESTES

Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
HTLH e

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
5B S

Name of
Corporation

2 1

Our Company
/A7)

Our Company
eV

Far East Energy
Limited (“FEEL")

Capacity/
Nature of interest

LLivg A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 2)
YT WA (M aE2)
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
TERIE RS (7 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4)
HaHa A (Hfit4)

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 2)
SNBSS (Rt 2)
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
TEERIE B LS (M7t 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4)
Eilad N (fi4)

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 2)

X PE s R A (f7E2)

Number of ordinary
shares (including
options to be
exercised)

B4 8

(/B0 46 W 47 i P HE )

1,638,829,234 (L)

211,855,234 (S)

5,087,000 (L)

1,638,829,234 (L)

211,855,234 (S)

7,287,000 (L)

8,999

Approximate
total
percentage of
interest in the
corporation

82 T 5 1
WA AR 2 b

55.77%

7.21%

0.17%

55.77%

7.21%

0.25%

9.99%
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Name of Director

Name of
Corporation

Capacity/
Nature of interest

HHA LA L2/ Vg t-1:3c

Mr. Zhao Jiangwei FEEL Interest of controlled

L H ST corporation (Note 2)
TR AR (HE2)

Mr. Mei Jianping Our Company Beneficial owner

L3S AT £t 2PN

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Our Company Beneficial owner

Jeffrey Willard Miller J&/& /N Hada A

Beneficial owner

HaHAA

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper Our Company
Andrew Sherwood Harper J4: A</A#]

Mr. Tian Hongtao Our Company Beneficial owner
H ki Se /N Haha A

Mr. Tak Yin Dexter Tao Our Company Beneficial owner
P PR e /N JEETE T UN

Note:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the

Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

(2) FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”), Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr.
Zhang”) and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei (“Mr. Zhao”) as to 80%, 9.99% and 10%,
respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to Mrs.
Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
Champion International Energy Limited (“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in
the Company were transferred from FEEL to Orient International Energy
Limited (“Orient”), 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited (“New Sun”) and 141,460,000
shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to Power International
Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion, Orient, New Sun and Power is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited, which is itself a
wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed to act
in concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of the
shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert Agreement, if a
unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that require action in concert is
unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's
and Mr. Zhao's shares.

(1

Number of ordinary
shares (including
options to be

Approximate
total
percentage of
interest in the

exercised) corporation

liid7g 45| A EHE 25 1

(/B0 W 47 i P HE ) WAAT 4 b
9,000 10%

1,267,933 (L) 0.04%
1,811,333 (L) 0.06%
3,441,000 (L) 0.12%
7,800,000 (L) 0.27%
4,800,000 (L) 0.16%

T TL RN LR AR G s i - 7
[S) AN LA L R R -
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399,070,000 /i ~ 399,070,000 /i ~ 475,000,000 fix &
141,460,000 & i {73 1% % > Champion International
Energy Limited ([Champion]) ~ Orient
International Energy Limited ([ Orient]) ~ New
Sun International Energy Limited ([New Sun])
M Power International Energy Limited
(Power]) - Champion *~ Orient * New Sun &
Power 4 % Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited Y 4
¥ [ff J&§ 2% 7 o 1 Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited
T %y FEEL M 2 T M 20 7] o SRR ~ SR SEA: Full g
A B RTAL —BATE) Ik BRI B R h
FEEL SR SE 1) — VI S TH — BT 8 » M4E— A7 H)
hak o AR RERE RCA BT — BT E F N —BE R
SRR S A M UE R L~ i RN SO S A Y IR A T S



The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,638,829,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 4,987,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,287,000 share
options and awarded shares granted to Mr. Zhao, (iv) the call option which
FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been granted, pursuant to a put and call
option agreement, over the 211,855,234 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho
Chi Sing through Celestial, as further described in note (3) below, and (v) the
100,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhang himself.

(3) The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of the
shares, pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their Shares, and
section 317(1)(a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of
the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

(4) These interests represent interests in outstanding stock options under the Plan
and the Scheme. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Share
Options”. Mr. Zhang's interests includes the 100,000 shares held by himself.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options”, as at December 31, 2015, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she had taken or was deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; nor had there been any
grant or exercise of rights of such interests during the year ended
December 31, 2015.
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r as the Directors are aware of, as at December 31, 2015, the

following persons (other than the Directors, chief executive(s) or
members of the Group) who had interests and/or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Divis
requi

ions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which would be
red, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered into

the register referred to therein, were as follows:

Name of interested
HE 25 J5 44 1%

Ms. Zhao Jiangbo

Party Capacity/Nature of interest

30 E XA

MEHIA > R oF-TEH A=
TN (BR#E g - E2ATELN B B 5 H
B A AN A 7] 22 e Ay SOR BRI v A
AR 8 o S B A 1 565 XV R 565 2 S 3 43 B )
AN F TR HIORERE K SR - SRR SR K
B A 91 265 336 MR ZHUE RIS % Ak Br 45 2 B R
W HESS B BAIRA AT

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)

i RAR/ SR AR (M FE2)

FEEL Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
SR AR (M FE2)

Mr. Ho Chi Sing Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

Celestial Energy Limited
(“Celestial”)

Notes:

(1

S22 O W RE A (B R 3)

S22 O W RE A (B R 3)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”), Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as
to 80%, 9.99% and 10%, respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL
were issued to Mrs. Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were
transferred from FEEL to Champion International Energy Limited
(“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Orient International Energy Limited (“Orient”), 475,000,000 shares in the
Company were transferred from FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited
(“New Sun”) and 141,460,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to Power International Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion,
Orient, New Sun and Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory
Holdings Limited, which is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs.
Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have entered into an Acting-in-Concert
Agreement under which they agreed to act in concert in relation to all matters
that require the decisions of the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-
in-Concert Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that
require action in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed
to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

(1

Total number of
Shares (including
options to be

Approximate
percentage of
interest in our

exercised) company

JBe 4 48 95 (L4 VT 47 A 2wl HE R
5 5 e ) RN
1,638,829,234 (L) 55.77%
211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
1,638,829,234 (L) 55.77%
211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
1,638,829,234 (L) 55.77%
211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
1,638,829,234 (L) 55.77%
211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
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The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,638,829,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 4,987,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,287,000 share
options and awarded shares granted to Mr. Zhao, (iv) the call option which
FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been granted, pursuant to a put and call
option agreement, over the 211,855,234 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho
Chi Sing through Celestial, as further described in note (3) below, and (v) the
100,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhang himself.

(3) The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of the
shares, pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their Shares, and
section 317 (1) (a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder
of the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2015, no person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of our Company,
whose interests have been disclosed in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or Any Associated Corporation”) had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

During the year, the Group purchased around 79.2% of its goods
and services from its 5 largest suppliers and 68.6% and 97.2% of
the Group’s revenue are from PetroChina, its largest customer,
and its 5 largest customers combined.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers and
customers.
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The employees, suppliers and customers of the Company play an
important role in the Company’s development and on which the
Company’s success depends. The Company provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract and motivate the employees.
The Company maintains good relationship with customers,
suppliers and other business partners to achieve its long-term
goals. In 2015, there was no material and significant dispute
between our Group and its customers, suppliers and other
business partners.

During the process of hydrocarbon production, the Company
highly values the protection of natural and ecological environment
and its comprehensive environmental protection measures to
ensure that the Company complies with the applicable laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection. During the
process of construction and production of oilfields, we place
environment impact assessment, compliance with set standards
or targets on pollutant emissions, control on total discharge
amount and reduction on emissions as our priorities.

The Company views energy saving and reduction in emission as
an important aspect of our cost reduction and maintaining high
management standards. We also continue to strengthen efforts on
technical reformation during daily management, which is the key
to improve energy efficiency and reduce carbon emissions.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company has
constructed oilfields of green environmental protection in
accordance with regulatory requirements and there were no
matters arising from environmental-related regulatory non-
compliances.

As far as the Board and senior management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group. During the year ended December 31,
2015, there was no material breach of or noncompliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the
period from January 1, 2015 to the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which
he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liabilities insurance coverage for Directors and officers of the
Company.

A non-competition deed in favor of the Company was entered into
by FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao on November 23, 2010. Our
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance and enforcement of the non-competition deed and
were of the view that FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao were in
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed during the reporting
period.

None of the Directors of the Company had an interest in a

business which competes with the Company or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

Proposed Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2015 (2014: Nil).
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Friday, June 17, 2016 (“AGM"). For determining the entitlement to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, June 15, 2016 to Friday,
June 17, 2016, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
June 14, 2016.

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offered themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Ruilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 23, 2016
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Overview

A race to pump by OPEC crude producers, US shale and Non-
OPEC suppliers created an unprecedented global glut that drove
oil prices to a second year of steep declines since 2014. The
dramatic drop and volatility in crude prices reverberated around
the world, prompting changes in both government spending and
private sector investment.

Despite the challenging environment, we are pleased with the
achievements made in managing and lowering our costs and the
adaptability exhibited in executing our FY2015 work program. In
particular, lifting costs in our China oil projects dropped by 10.6%
to US$9.49/barrel, while those of Emir-Oil in Kazakhstan decreased
by 24.6% to US$3.66/barrel. In our SGE project in Shanxi Province,
China, vertical well drilling costs were also down approximately
10%. In terms of overall overhead, the total headcount of the
Group was reduced from about 2,100 as of year-end FY2014 to
about 1,700 as of year-end FY2015.

Based on the year-end FY2015 oil and gas reserves and resources
estimates prepared by independent technical consultants, the
Group’s reserves were enhanced, despite the low oil price
environment, with the Group’s 2P oil and gas reserves at 232.2
million BOE, representing a 6% increase from year-end FY2014.
The increase in total 2P oil and gas reserves is largely attributable
to the gas reserves increases achieved in the SGE project, where a
successful FY2015 drilling and well-testing program increased 2P
gas reserves by 23% to 574 BCF (16.3 BCM).

Successful exploration drilling in SGE and Emir-Oil provided
significant reserves additions. At SGE, new gas reserves were
discovered by three exploration wells within the Linxing East
block, expanding the discovered resource area of the Linxing PSC
by 40 square kilometers (7% increase) to 613 square kilometers,
and adding approximately 33 BCF to the Group’s net 2P gas
reserves share of the SGE project. On a BOE-basis, the Group’s net
2P gas reserves share of 574 BCF for the SGE project represents
95.7 million BOE, which is approximately equivalent to the 2P oil
reserves of Emir-Oil (96.2 million barrels), and about four times
the combined 2P oil reserves of Daan plus Moliging (24.4 million
barrels). Furthermore, important exploration success was also
achieved in Kazakhstan where Emir-Qil tested the North Kariman-1
well at an initial production rate of 1,520 barrels of oil per day
(“BOPD”). As a result, 2P reserves for the North Kariman discovery
were increased by approximately 55%, helping to keep Emir-Oil’s
total 2P oil reserves essentially flat versus year-end 2014.
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The Group drilled a total of 23 new wells in FY2015 (including 20
wells in SGE), less than our original guidance, as we strategically
scaled down drilling activities and deferred a portion of SGE's
work program. As of year-end FY2015, the Group operated a total
of 2,772 wells, of which, 2,719 are located in China, 48 in
Kazakhstan, and 5 in the USA.

The following table provides a recap of the Group’s key
operational metrics and product prices for FY2015:

CE - HAEALEE AT R RE I 23 1 (bR
HHEM20 1) > EEHEER 2 RM T —H
ERERFE 51 B i D o HR R A A 4R B R e
AR T AR B S K R RIE B R — R4 AR
FE e R — R REBMIEEHES
2,772 1 > Hd 2,719 0 H A B > 48 0 H
ARG T T IE > B A7 B -

DUTR J& A 45 B A — AR A A Y B A B
i

FY2015 FY2014 % Change FY2015 Guidance
20154 20144 v (441 20154415

Average Daily Operated Production ' H ¥R e e
(BOE/day) (HE®E/X) 21,047 27,418 (23.2%)
Average Daily Net Production " * F Ry S e 1274
(BOE/day) (HE®E/X) 11,153 16,341 (31.7%)
Average Daily Net Oil Production (BOPD)  H £ Js3ih 1% & & (4 /%) 10,153 15,326 (33.8%) 9,800-11,100
Average Daily Net Gas Production * H ¥ RIR AT
(MSCF/day) (FIHHER/K) 6,002 6,090 (1.5%) 5,100
Average Realized Qil Price (US$/barrel) Y& B 5l E (357t /H) 45.79 86.15 (46.8%)
Average Realized Gas Price * (US$/MSCF) “F-YJ & Bl KSR B 4
(Fx/FAHER) 1.03 1.27 (19.0%)
SGE Average Daily Net Production FRIEH H Y5 E e s
(MSCF/day) (FIHHER/K) 1,491 117 1,175.2%
Total Wells Drilled B (O) 23 193 (88.1%) 32
Notes: L
(1) For reference purpose only, barrels of oil equivalent is calculated using the (1) I AT L 6 T A ST i RO SR SR =1 Al T
conversion factor of 6 MSCF of natural gas being equivalent to one barrel of R ST LA TR (B2 L E
oil
(2) Gross production includes production from all assets operated by the Group (2) M = A EE TS A THE M AE

(3) Net production includes entitlement from all assets operated by the Group
(4) Figures do not include SGE

(5) Figures do not include Sanjiaobei

(3)  ER=ALEAE I E B A A i
(4)  WEAEHETHRIEA

(5) WA EEE =2CILEE



The following table is the summary of the expenditures incurred
in our exploration, development and production activities for

FY2015:

(millions of RMB)
(NRH¥E#L)

China

— Qil Projects (Daan, Moliging)

— Gas Projects (Linxing, Sanjiaobei)
Kazakhstan (Emir-Qil)
USA (Condor)

Total

Gl

— JRMIEE (k% HEH)
— KIRFUER (B - =)
W B ST 4738 (Emir-0il)

3£ (Condor)

e  China Operations

(1

Oil Projects (Jilin Province: Daan, Moliqing)

During FY2015, total gross operated production for our
two China oil projects, Daan and Moliging, decreased
by 15.4% to 15,942 BOPD, as compared to FY2014
(excluding the production of Pan-China Resources Ltd.
(“PCR”) and Miao Three Energy Limited (“Miao
Three”)). Total net production allocated to the Group
decreased by 24.5% to 6,687 BOPD (excluding the
production of PCR and Miao Three), mainly due to the
scale back of Capex. In line with the decline in global
crude oil prices, the average realized Daging oil price
averaged approximately US$46.65/barrel for FY2015,
representing a decrease of 52.1% year-on-year,
compared to US$97.31 for FY2014.

No new wells were drilled for the China oil projects in
FY2015. Total net Capex relating to converting
development wells to injection wells and other surface
engineering incurred was US$5 million.

Direct lifting costs for Daan and Moliqging decreased by
US$1.13/barrel, or 10.6%, from US$10.62/barrel for
FY2014 to US$9.49/barrel for FY2015 as a result of lower
fuel, electricity, transportation and downhole operating
costs, as well as enhanced operational efficiency and
maintenance scheduling adjustments.
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(2)

EBITDA per barrel for our China oil projects decreased
by US$34.04/barrel, or 51.8%, from US$65.70/barrel for
FY2014 to US$31.66/barrel for FY2015. The decline in
EBITDA per barrel was primarily due to the drop in
average realized oil price, which was partially offset by
the decrease of special oil levy for the China oil projects
and the decrease in direct lifting cost.

Gas Projects (Shanxi Province: Linxing, Sanjiaobei)

In FY2015, SGE made significant progress on testing,
pilot production, gas sales, as well as preparation of
China reserve reports (“CRR"”) and overall development
plans (“ODP").

SGE well testing program continued to be successful in
FY2015. The most notable test results was at the Linxing
West vertical well TB-27, located in the northeast part of
the block, where a flow rate of 1.8 MMSCF/day (or
50,940 cubic meters/day) at a pressure of 630 psi (or
4.2Mpa) was recorded from an un-fracked reservoir
zone. This represents the second highest flow rate ever
achieved from an un-stimulated reservoir zone in the
SGE project area. The significantly improved test results
underscore the tremendous potential of both the
Linxing and Sanjiaobei PSCs. The test improvements
also highlight SGE’s strong and rapidly expanding
technological and operational knowhow in gas well
fracking and completion operations for both horizontal
and vertical wells.

In FY2015, a total of 20 new wells were drilled by SGE,
including 17 wells in Linxing block (including 2
horizontal wells, TB-3H and TB-4H) and 3 wells in
Sanjiaobei block, bringing the total number of new
wells drilled since the Group’s acquisition of its 51%
stake in SGE in July 2012 to 99 wells. SGE’s net incurred
Capex attributed to the Group was about US$22 million.
Particularly notable were results achieved in SGE’s new
horizontal wells. The horizontal well TB-3H has lateral
section of 1,051 meters and logs have indicated
excellent development potential, while TB-4H has
lateral section of 1,184 meters and is adjacent to TB-3H.
Furthermore, efficiencies and improved rig rates drove
an approximate 10% decrease in average well costs in
FY2015 compared to FY2014. As a result, average costs
for both exploration wells and vertical development
wells were approximately US$100,000 lower in FY2015,
at about US$900,000 and US$1.1 million, respectively.

(2)
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In terms of pilot production and sales, SGE’s Linxing
CGS was officially put into pipeline pilot production in
October 2015, providing the project substantial room
for rapid production ramp up. As of year-end FY2015, a
total of 14 wells have been connected to the Linxing
CGS. 10 wells were producing, with a combined total
pilot production rate of about 7 MMSCF per day (or
approximately 200,000 cubic meters per day). In
addition, SGE has recently signed attractive terms for
two new gas sales agreements for FY2016, amid the
recent NDRC announcements on the reduction in city-
gate prices. For Sanjiaobei gas production, a revised
wellhead gas sales price of RMB1.63 per cubic meter
(approximately US$7.10/MSCF) has been signed with a
new local gas buyer, Shanxi Guoxin Energy, under the
Shanxi provincial government. For Linxing gas
production, a revised wellhead gas sales price of
RMB1.615 per cubic meter (approximately US$7.04/
MSCF) has been signed with Shanxi Guohua Energy
Limited Company.

Sanjiaobei CRR has been submitted to PetroChina
Coalbed Methane Company Limited (“PCCBM"”) and is
currently progressing through technical review with
approval expected in the middle of 2016, while approval
for Linxing West CRR is anticipated by the end of
FY2016. During the FY2015, SGE also completed the
geology and gas reservoir engineering section of the
Sanjiaobei ODP.

As mentioned above, SGE’s successful drilling and
testing programs have led to further significant
increases in the project’s reserves. According to the
independent technical consultant’s review of year-end
FY2015 reserves and resources for the Linxing and
Sanjiaobei blocks, the net 1P reserves, attributed to the
Group increased by 3% to 376 BCF (or 10.6BCM) and 2P
reserves increased by 23% to 574 BCF (16.3 BCM).
Furthermore, the year-end FY2015 reserves assessment
indicates that, based on 2P gas reserves, the Group’s
net share NPV 10 is estimated at about US$1.3 billion.
In the current global low oil price scenario, the price
and demand for natural gas in China has remained
strong, and SGE currently sells gas at between
RMB1.615 to RMB1.63/cubic meter (US$7.04 to US$7.10
per MSCF). With huge net contingent and prospective
resources attributed to the Group totaling more than
1,521 BCF (43.1BCM, Best Estimate Prospective
Resources + 2C Contingent Resources) in an extensive
area of about 3,000 square kilometers, SGE still has
further enormous growth potential.
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Furthermore, SGE has recently confirmed the receipt of
pilot gas sales revenue for the Linxing PSC since
December 2014, which accordingly shall be applied to
finance a significant portion of the project’'s Capex for
FY2016 and beyond. Meanwhile, the discussion with
PCCBM in respect of a similar pilot gas sales allocation
for the Sanjiaobei block is progressing well. As such,
we remain excited that the SGE project will contribute
significant profitability and shareholders’ value to the
Group in the foreseeable future.

Kazakhstan Operations (Emir-Qil)

Due to the strategic shut-in of low efficiency wells during this
period of low global oil prices, the average daily oil
production for Emir-Oil decreased by 34.4% from 5,201 BOPD
in FY2014 to 3,412 BOPD in FY2015. The average realized oil
price for Emir-Oil was US$43.95/barrel for FY2015,
representing a drop of 30.6% year-on-year, compared to
US$63.34/barrel for FY2014. The average realized export oil
price (after deducting export sales and transportation
commission (the “Commission”) of US$5.56/barrel) and
domestic oil price were US$48.41/barrel and US$12.02/barrel
respectively during FY2015, compared to US$70.63/barrel
(export) and US$39.68/barrel (domestic) realized for FY2014.
The drop in average realized oil price was mainly due to
lower export and domestic realized oil prices which were
partially offset by an increase in export:domestic sales mix
from 76:24 for FY2014 to 88:12 during FY2015.

As of year-end FY2015, Emir-Oil operated a total of 48 wells,
of which 16 wells were producing. In FY2015, Emir-Qil
completed 2 development wells and 1 exploration well that
were spudded in FY2014. Total Capex for Emir-Qil incurred in
FY2015 amounted to about US$56 million, which was mainly
related to the construction of central processing facility
(“CPF"). As of year-end FY2015, the Group has incurred a
total of approximately US$46 million for the CPF. Amid the
continued challenging operating environment, whilst
ancillary oil and gas pipeline as well as external ground work
amounting to approximately US$33 million shall be further
deferred beyond 2016, it is anticipated that Emir-Oil’s CPF
construction will be completed by fourth quarter of 2016.
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On the exploration front, North Kariman-1, the second
exploration well drilled in the North Kariman block
commenced testing at the end of September 2015, and
produced about 830 cubic meters of oil during the first 82
hours (approximately 1,520 BOPD), representing another
high production well for the Group, following the success of
North Kariman-2 well. The success at North Kariman-1 and
North Kariman-2 further enhances the reserve base for Emir-
Qil, and more importantly, it also makes the integration of
the North Kariman block into the Kariman production license
more realistic and likely, leading to the potential for further
reserves upgrades, based on the possibility of one
continuous accumulation in the overall Kariman — North
Kariman area.

In order to enhance operating profit margins, particularly in
light of the current low oil price environment, Emir-Qil
executed a new sales agreement with our Kazakhstan export
oil marketing company, Euro-Asian Oil SA (formerly Titan
Qil), effective January 2016. Under the previous agreement,
the benchmark price was Urals (RCMB) and the Commission
payable by Emir-Oil was around US$5/barrel. Under the new
export sales agreement, the benchmark price is Brent (ICE)
and the Commission is about US$8/barrel. The increase in
Commission is offset by the expected decrease in distribution
expenses. As such, an overall net gain of approximately
US$2-3/barrel is expected to be enjoyed from this new sales
agreement with Euro-Asian Qil in FY2016, as compared to
the previous export sales agreement.

The direct lifting cost for Emir-Qil decreased by US$1.19/
barrel, or 24.6%, from US$4.85/barrel for FY2014 to US$3.66/
barrel for FY2015. The decrease in lifting cost was primarily
due to the operation of higher efficiency wells, reduction in
administrative expenses, change in sales route, depreciation
of Tenge and higher operation efficiencies.

EBITDA per barrel for the export sales oil of Emir-0il
decreased by US$14.41/barrel, or 87.8%, from US$16.41/
barrel for FY2014 to US$2.00/barrel for FY2015. The EBITDA
per barrel for the domestic sales oil of Emir-Oil decreased by
US$24.32/barrel, or 127.8%, from US$19.04/barrel for FY2014
to US$(5.29)/barrel for FY2015. Weighted average EBITDA
per barrel for Emir-Qil decreased by US$16.49/barrel, or
96.8%, from US$17.03/barrel for FY2014 to US$0.54/barrel for
FY2015. The decrease in EBITDA per barrel was primarily due
to the decrease of the average realized oil price.
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e  USA Operations (Condor)

There were no drilling activities during FY2015 in our US
business. The Group’s subsidiary, Condor Energy
Technology LLC, operates 5 horizontal wells in the Niobrara
project. For FY2015, the average daily operated oil and gas
production was 71 BOPD and 136 MSCF/day, net oil and gas
production was 54 BOPD and 109 MSCF/day, respectively.
Average realized oil and gas price was US$40.68/barrel and
US$2.61/MSCF, respectively.

Review of Reserves and Resources

Below are the highlights of the oil and gas reserves and resources
review results for the Group at year-end 2015, as conducted by the
independent technical consultants:

1.  Comparing with year-end 2014, the Group’s total net 1P oil
and gas reserves as of year-end 2015 decreased slightly by
3% to 113.9 million BOE, while total net 2P oil and gas
reserves increased 6% to 232.2 million BOE, and total net 3P
oil and gas reserves increased 7% to 311.1 million BOE.

2. The gas component of the Group’s reserves has continued to
increase. The Group’s 2P and 3P net reserves are now about
evenly divided between gas and oil. At year-end 2015, on a
BOE basis, our reserves were 40%, 52% and 52% oil for 1P,
2P and 3P, respectively. The strong growth in gas reserves
from the successful drilling campaign at our SGE project in
China’s Ordos Basin has significantly increased the gas
component of our reserves. Compared to year-end 2014, on
a BOE basis, the gas portion of the Group’s total net reserves
has increased for 1P, 2P and 3P by 2%, 5% and 7%,
respectively. Despite the current global low oil price
environment, demand and sales price for natural gas remains
high in China. The Group is very pleased with the strong
growth of the China gas component in our total net reserves.

e EPEIZ¥ (Condor)
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The Group’s net 1P, 2P and 3P gas reserves at year-end 2015
were 412.1 BCF (11.7 BCM), 667.3 BCF (18.9 BCM) and 903.9
BCF (25.6 BCM), respectively, which correspond to 68.7
million BOE, 111.2 million BOE and 150.7 million BOE,
respectively. The Group net gas reserves increased by 3.8
BCF (0.1 BCM), 103.4 BCF (2.9 BCM) and 192.2 BCF (5.4 BCM),
or by 1%, 18% and 27% for 1P, 2P and 3P, respectively. The
majority of the increases are attributable to the increases of
11.7 BCF (0.3 BCM), 107.6 BCF (3.0 BCM) and 202.0 BCF (5.7
BCM) for 1P, 2P and 3P net gas reserves, respectively in our
SGE Ordos Basin properties.

Based on the year-end 2015 reserves estimates reviewed by
the independent technical consultants, NPV 10 of the Group’s
net 2P oil and gas reserves is approximately US$3.0 billion,
which represents a 25% decrease compared with the NPV 10
of US$4.0 billion reported at year-end 2014. Given the
decrease in commodity prices globally, such a decrease in
NPV10 is not unexpected, and furthermore, the Group'’s
ability to increase net 2P reserves in the current low price
environment, has minimized the scale of the NPV10
decrease.
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The following were the prices used to determine the reserves and
resources at the year-end of FY2014 and FY2015:

Segment

I 35

China
i

China — Gobi/Riyadh

i — e RIS

China — SGE

i — iR

Basin

il

Songliao/Jiayi

>

R/ A

p>>

Ordos

CEZ

DR R & — AR B % — AR R

JCE R T F B EAK
FY2014 FY2015
201448 201545 )&

Constant oil price of US$96.05 per
barrel (average of FY2014), and
gas price 13.25 $/Mcf, unescalated,

6 E 1B 5 96.05 35 7T,/ (2014
EHE) - RIAFRIE13.25% 58,/ F
SHER T

Low, Medium and High gas prices
of US$8.30, US$9.76 and US$11.23
per MCF respectively (equivalent
to 1.76, 2.11 and 2.43 RMB per
cubic meter at 6.12 RMB/US$),
escalating at 3.75% per annum

5~ o R ARSUE 2> I 25 8.30 3%
It/ TR ER - 976 %78,/ Fark
FER ~ 11.23 %858/ T 5 R (i
AE K176 TARE - 211 TA
W~ 243 T ARMK) - 4 TH3.75%

Escalated price profile based on
average price projections
published by Sproule and
McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd (January 2016) for
WTI Crude (US$45/barrel for
FY2016 and escalating thereafter).
A US$2.55/ barrel differential
between Daging and WTI was
applied to this average price
projection

NS KA % #1247 Sproule &
McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd 201641 H A fi i)
W5 b e AB A% T8 B -2 fE
(20164 {8 /45 500,/ » 2 B
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WTI 5 2 #1255 370,/ i 18 2%

Low, Medium and High gas prices
of US$5.22, US$7.16 and US$9.80
per MCF respectively (equivalent
to 1.19, 1.63 and 2.23 RMB per
cubic meter at 6.45 RMB/US$),
escalating at 3.75% per annum
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FY2014 average, constant prices,
unescalated: export oil at
US$80.10 per barrel (US$101.21
Dated Brent price less US$21.11
for marketing and transportation
discount), domestic oil at
US$39.06 before VAT per barrel
and gas at US$1.13 per MCF
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Constant prices, unescalated:
US$82.68 per barrel, US$6.47 per
MCF (both are realized prices)
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Export oil at escalated price profile
based on average price projections
published by Sproule and
McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd (January 2016) for
Brent Crude (US$46.25/barrel for
FY2016 and escalating thereafter).
Domestic oil price forecast based
on actual domestic sales price per
relationship with Brent and trend
related year 2014 and 2015.
Domestic gas price based on
actual sales prices net of VAT in
FY2015 (US$0.85/MSCF)
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average price projections
published by Sproule and
McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd (January 2016) for
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oil and gas price offsets were
determined by examining
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contracts and comparing them to
historical prices Condor has
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We consider it a significant accomplishment for the Group that our
2P oil and reserves increased by 6% for year-end FY2015 on a
BOE-basis, as compared with year-end FY2014. Despite the global
low oil price environment and scaled back capital expenditures
and work programs, the fact that we were able to increase 2P
reserves is a testament to the quality of our assets and the Group's
technical capability in enhancing our reserves/resources. Particular
bright spots were the SGE project where we had a 23% increase in
2P gas reserves, and Emir-Oil where 2P oil reserves remained
almost flat, despite a greatly reduced work program.

The following is our preliminary guidance for FY2016. The Group
will closely monitor the situation and we may revise our work
program in a timely fashion, based on, among others, changes in
oil prices. We believe it is very important to maintain a high
degree of flexibility in order to ensure the stability and profitability
of our business in this current volatile oil price environment.

Numbers of Net Investments
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue is generated from sales of oil and gas
products and rendering of services.

The Group’s revenue from sales of oil and gas decreased by
RMB1,946.0 million, or 65.5%, from RMB2,970.0 million for FY2014
to RMB1,024.0 million for FY2015.

This decrease was mainly due to the significant drop in crude oil
prices over 2015 as well as the decrease of the Group’s overall
sales volumes. In addition, the Group’s FY2015 results do not
include PCR and Miao Three, two subsidiaries that were divested
in 2H2014. PCR and Miao Three's revenue totaled RMB266.5
million in FY2014. Average realized oil price was US$45.79 per
barrel for FY2015, compared to US$86.15 per barrel for FY2014.
The Group’s total crude oil sales volume was 3.55 million barrels
for FY2015, compared to 5.58 million barrels for FY2014.

The Group's revenue from rendering of services is RMB8.7 million
for FY2015.

° China

In FY2015, our China oil fields realized revenue of RMB707.1
million. The average realized oil price was US$46.65 per
barrel for FY2015, compared to US$97.89 per barrel for
FY2014. Our sales volume was 2.44 million barrels for
FY2015, compared to 3.66 million barrels for FY2014.

° Kazakhstan

In FY2015, Emir-Qil realized revenue from oil and gas sales of
RMB310.5 million, compared to RMB746.3 million for FY2014.
The decrease in revenue was primarily due to the drop in
realized oil price and a decrease in sales volumes.
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(a)

(b)

Crude oil sales

The sales volumes decreased from 1,883,235 barrels for
FY2014 (comprising 1,439,846 barrels from export sales
and 443,389 barrels from domestic sales) to 1,089,285
barrels for FY2015 (comprising 955,750 barrels from
export sales and 133,535 barrels from domestic sales).

The average realized oil price for FY2015 was US$48.41
per barrel from export sales (after Commission of
US$5.56 per barrel) and US$12.02 per barrel from
domestic sales. The average realized oil price for
FY2014 was US$70.63 per barrel from export sales (after
Commission of US$20.98 per barrel) and US$39.68 per
barrel from domestic sales. As a result of the new
export sales agreement effective February 2015, the
new export transportation and marketing commissions
payable to Euro-Asian Qil SA decreased from US$20.98
per barrel in FY2014 to US$5.56 per barrel in FY2015,
which was partially offset by an additional distribution
expense averaging US$7.8 per barrel under the new
agreement.

Gas sales

In FY2015, Emir-Qil realized revenue from gas sales of
RMB11.8 million, with a realized gas price of US$0.95
per MSCF and total gas sales volume of 2,001,150
MSCF. In FY2014, Emir-Qil realized revenue from gas
sales of RMB13.6 million, with a realized gas price of
US$1.14 per MSCF and total gas sales volume of
1,954,375 MSCF.

(a)

(b)
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o USA

In FY2015, our USA oil fields realized revenue from crude oil
sales of RMB5.1 million. The average realized oil price was
US$40.68 per barrel, with sales volume of 20,085 barrels. In
FY2014, our USA oil fields realized revenue from crude oil
sales of RMB17.0 million. For FY2014, the average realized oil
price was US$83.11 per barrel, with sales volume of 33,272
barrels.

Our USA operations realized revenue from gas sales of
RMBO0.3 million, with a realized gas price of US$2.61 per
MSCF and total gas sales volume of 20,124 MSCF for FY2015.
In FY2014, revenue from gas sales of RMB2.4 million was
recorded from realized gas price of US$6.44 per MSCF and
total gas sales volume of 59,961 MSCF.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

The Group’s depreciation, depletion and amortization decreased
by RMB331.5 million, or 35.7%, from RMB928.4 million for FY2014
to RMB596.9 million for FY2015. The decrease in depreciation,
depletion and amortization was mainly due to: (i) the decrease in
sales and production volumes in FY2015; (ii) our exclusion two
subsidiaries, PCR and Miao Three in FY2015, which were divested
2H2014 and whose depreciation, depletion and amortization
amounted to RMB64.8 million in FY2014; and (iii) no depreciation,
depletion and amortization expenses recorded for Riyadh’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets after Riyadh'’s
assets and liabilities were reclassified to “held for sale” on June
30, 2015.
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Taxes other than income taxes

The Group’'s taxes other than income taxes decreased by
RMB541.1 million, or 77.8%, from RMB695.1 million for FY2014 to
RMB154.0 million for FY2015. The following table summarizes
taxes other than income taxes for FY2015 and FY2014:

(B 7 B B 5 )

AL BE (T AABIBRAN) = — P04 5
A R #6.951 148 70 [ K A R ¥155.411 1% oo 5%
77.8% & - EF—HAFEHARK164E T T
RBHEHE X —NE+ A= P—H A=

— R+ A =+ — HBUE (I BiERAE) -

PRC v g
Special oil levy A R I A
Urban construction tax T SR S R M
and education surtax
Others HAth
Kazakhstan WA B B T
Mineral extraction tax ) BR R A
Rent export tax A4 OBl
Rent export duty expenditures B
Property tax W EEBL
USA e
Withholding tax R
Severance tax B R B
Corporate 18
Withholding tax FEHCAIRL
° China °

The Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China
(“MOF”) announced that the threshold of the special oil
income levy was revised from US$55 to US$65 per barrel,
effective from January 1, 2015. As no sales were realized at
or above US$65 per barrel during FY2015, no special oil levy
was incurred for our China oilfields.

Year ended December 31,
Bkt A=+ —HILEE

2015 2014
—RhgE CF N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTE  AR¥TT
- 328,878

3,849 12,110
484 444
4,333 341,432
18,533 44,588
35,302 176,536
56,703 87,328
20,102 23,508
130,640 331,960

- 930

217 534

18,781 20,236
153,971 695,092

i

CIE INEE g s s R P ipa
TR B Wk 25 4 OB B9 B FE AR 65 95 T A
FesET, M AZE —HE—AE
Mo M E—HAEEBRMERAR
AR 65 35T > YA AR A1 TR Il 2

4o



Kazakhstan

In 2015, Emir-Oil’s taxes other than income taxes amounted
to RMB130.6 million, which is a decrease of RMB201.4
million, or 60.7% compared to RMB332.0 million for 2014.
This decrease in taxes other than income taxes for our
Kazakhstan operation was primarily due to: (i) the drop in
realized oil price and sales volumes leading to the substantial
decrease in both rent export tax as well as mineral extraction
tax; and (ii) rent export duty expenditure was lowered from
US$80 per metric ton to US$60 per metric ton with effect
from April 2015.

Set out below are the various taxes that our Kazakhstan
operation is subject to:

Rent Export Tax

Rent Export Tax is payable on export oil and is calculated
based on realized prices for crude oil. Rent Export Tax rate
ranges from 0% (if export price is less than US$40 per barrel)
to 32% (if export price is higher than US$190 per barrel).

Mineral Extraction Tax (“MET”)

For production of less than 250,000 tons per annum, MET is
payable at a rate of 5% for export oil and 2.5% on domestic
oil. MET for export oil is based on barrels of oil produced less
barrels of domestic oil and barrels of internally consumed
oil, multiplied by average realized price per barrel. MET for
domestic oil is calculated based on barrels of domestic oil
multiplied by production cost per barrel multiplied by 120%.

Rent Export Duty Expenditure

From April 14, 2013, Rent Export Duty expenditure payable
on export oil was US$60 per metric ton multiplied by volume
of export oil sales. From March 12, 2014, this duty was
increased to US$80 per metric ton. Subsequently, from April
2015, this duty was revised down to US$60 per metric ton.

Property Tax
Property tax is payable on oil and gas assets which have

been granted a production license at a rate of 1.5% based on
average balance of oil and gas properties.
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o Corporate
Withholding Tax

Withholding tax represents accrual of withholding tax on
interest charged on intercompany loans.

Employee compensation costs

The Group’s employee compensation costs decreased by RMB41.2
million, or 19.1%, from RMB215.6 million for FY2014 to RMB174.4
million for FY2015. The decrease in employee compensation costs
was primarily due to (i) a reduction of headcount during FY2015;
and (ii) the exclusion of two subsidiaries (PCR and Miao Three) in
FY2015, which accounted for a total of RMB20.8 million employee
compensation costs for FY2014.

Purchases, services and other expenses

Our purchases, services and other expenses decreased by
RMB167.6 million, or 49.7%, from RMB337.3 million for FY2014 to
RMB169.7 million for FY2015. The decrease in purchase, services
and other expenses was primarily due to (i) the decrease of
production and sales during FY2015; and (ii) the disposal of two
subsidiaries (PCR and Miao Three) during 2H2014, which
accounted for a total of RMB48.7 million in purchases, services
and other expenses for FY2014. The Group’s results excluded
these two companies during FY2015.

Distribution expenses

The Group’s distribution expenses increased by RMB52.8 million,
or 144.3%, from RMB36.6 million in FY2014 to RMB89.4 million in
FY2015, primarily due to the new export sales route for our
Kazakhstan operation which resulted in the recording of an
average of US$7.80/barrel of distribution expense. The increase of
distribution expenses incurred by our Kazakhstan operation was
partially offset by the decrease of distribution expenses incurred
by our China oilfields due to lower sales volume for FY2015.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses decreased by
RMB8.2 million, or 6.6%, from RMB123.7 million for FY2014 to
RMB115.5 million for FY2015. The decrease in administrative
expenses was primarily due to: (i) the stringent cost control
measures implemented by the Group; and (ii) the exclusion of two
subsidiaries (PCR and Miao Three) in FY2015, which accounted for
about RMB13.9 million in general and administrative expenses for
FY2014. The above decreases were partially offset by transaction
expenses of RMB21.9 million incurred for the proposed acquisition
of Long Run Exploration Ltd. in FY2015.
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Impairment charges

Due to significant lower global oil prices in FY2015, the Group
recognized an impairment charge amounting to RMB473.4 million,
RMB233.9 million and RMB16.7 million on the long-live assets
(including mineral extractions rights) relating to assets in the PRC,
Kazakhstan and the working interest in the USA, respectively, to
reflect their carrying value to the respective estimated recoverable
amount calculated based on value-in-use.

Other (losses)/income

The Group incurred “other loss” of RMB378.7 million for FY2015,
compared to other income of RMB302.0 million for FY2014. Other
losses for FY2015 arose primarily from (i) provision for bad debts
of RMB86.7 million; and (ii) loss on re-measurement of disposal
group classified as held for sale of RMB328.5 million, regarding
assets and liabilities related to Riyadh being presented as held for
sale at June 30, 2015 following the approval of the Company to
dispose Riyadh. At December 31, 2015, the assets and liabilities of
Riyadh were remeasured at the lower of adjusted carrying amount
and fair value less cost to sell at FY2015 following initial
classification as held for sale. Other income for FY2014 includes
mainly (i) RMB52.2 million gains from disposal of Miao Three and
RMB207.2 million from disposal of PCR; (ii) realized gain of
RMB19.6 million from oil hedge contracts for our FY2014
production; (iii) royalty income received by PCR for its interest in
the Zhou 13 Bock in Daqging of RMB8.1 million; and (iv) non-cash
revaluation gain of RMB3.6 million for this interest.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group’s finance income increased by RMB2.0 million, or
10.8%, from RMB18.5 million for FY2014 to RMB20.5 million for
FY2015.

Finance cost decreased by RMB171.2 million, or 34.3%, from
RMB499.8 million for FY2014 to RMB328.6 million for FY2015. This
decrease was primarily due to certain one-off finance costs
incurred during FY2014 including: (i) RMB120.2 million call
premium for the early redemption of the US$400 million 9.75%
senior notes due 2016 (“2016 Notes”); and (ii) RMB35.2 million
unamortized expenses of the 2016 Notes charged to finance cost
as a result of the redemption. For FY2015, a net exchange gain of
RMB85 million (2014: RMB32 million) was recorded as net result
of the devaluation of the Tenge, which was offset by the
devaluation of the Renminbi.
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Share of loss of joint ventures

The Group holds a 51% interest in SGE. This investment was
accounted for as joint ventures by the Group and our share of loss
of SGE decreased from RMB55.4 million in FY2014 to RMB26.6
million in FY2015. This is mainly due to lower loss incurred by
SGE as SGE realized pilot gas sales in FY2015.

Loss before income tax

The Group’s loss before income tax was RMB1,704.5 million for
FY2015, compared to the profit before income tax RMB236.7
million for FY2014. This was primarily due to the cumulative
effects of the above factors.

Income tax credit

The Group recorded an income tax credit of RMB179.2 million for
FY2015, compared to an income tax expense of RMB214.2 million
for FY2014. This change was primarily due to the Group incurring
loss before income tax in FY2015. The effective tax rate for FY2015
is 11% compared to an effective tax rate for FY2014 of 90%.

Net (loss)/profit for the year
As a result of the foregoing, our net loss for FY2015 was

RMB1,525.3 million, compared to a net profit of RMB22.6 million
for FY2014.
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EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA

We provide a reconciliation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to
profit for FY2015, our most directly comparable financial
performance calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS.
EBITDA refers to earnings before finance income, finance costs,
income tax and depreciation, depletion and amortization. Adjusted
EBITDA refers to EBITDA adjusted to exclude non-cash and non-
recurring items such as share-based compensation expense,
assets impairment loss, bad debt provision, geological and
geophysical expense, withholding tax arising from intercompany
loan, gains on write-off payables and any other non-cash or non-
recurring income/expenses.

The Group’s adjusted EBITDA reflects the Group’s recurring cash
flow earnings from its core operations.

We have included EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA as we believe
EBITDA is a financial measure commonly used in the oil and gas
industry. We believe that EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are used
as supplemental financial measures by our management and by
investors, research analysts, bankers and others, to assess our
operating performance, cashflow and return on capital as
compared to those of other companies in our industry, and our
ability to take on financing. However, EBITDA and adjusted
EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or construed as
alternatives to profit from operations or any other measure of
performance or as an indicator of our operating performance or
profitability. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA fail to account for
corporate tax, finance income, finance costs and other non-
operating cash expenses. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA do not
consider any functional or legal requirements of the business that
may require us to conserve and allocate funds for any purposes.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of EBITDA and | £ &% 4 EBITDA ) & #1 % EBITDAR # &
adjusted EBITDA to net (loss)/profit for the years ended December —“F—f4E+_"H=+—H Kk -F—4E+_
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014: H = — B4R 2 1 i A R

Year Ended December 31,
gE+_HA=1+—HIL4EE

2015 2014
SETE CE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR TT

Net (loss)/profit for the year ERTR (B A (1,525,288) 22,549
Income tax (credit)/expenses FTAS R (W ss) 4 H (179,233) 214,163
Finance income WS (20,496) (18,491)
Finance cost WHs 2 328,575 499,818
Depreciation, depletion and amortization reg > Yrre R ke 596,893 928,447
EBITDA EBITDA (799,549) 1,646,486
Share-based compensation expenses B3P 4 B S 22,515 12,315
Assets impairment loss B IR 724,032 154,570
Loss on disposal of property, plant and MREE ~ W ANk bl B 2k

equipment 3,885 -
Gains on oil put options HiME I HARERI 15 - (19,564)
Bad debt provision of trade and other R A 5 At JRE A R R 2K

receivables 86,673 -
Geological and geophysical expense HbEL R M BR Y HE B S

— Emir — Emir-Qil - 20,047

— Share of SGE — ¥ SGE B &643 15,934 19,842
Withholding tax on interest accrued for 7 ) [ SR T AR 1 A A A

intercompany loans 18,781 21,166
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A A R - (259,389)
Income from bond investment fEHB Gt (1,363) -
Loss on re-measurement of disposal group #4545 1 i B 41 B ik 1

classified as held for sale A B E 328,541 -
Gains on write-off payables,net TH AR R 75 (29,387) -
Adjusted EBITDA ZEHHF EBITDA 370,062 1,595,473

The Group incurred EBITDA of RMB (799.5) million for FY2015, 74 [# — & — 7 4F ¥ fYEBITDA# A K g
compared to the RMB1,646.5 million EBITDA for FY2014. The  (7.995){% 7t » #H Hb =& — DU 4F B i 49 A R
decrease in EBITDA in FY2015 was primarily due to: (i) the 16.465{% 7T » & — T 4F B 1Y EBITDA [ P& 1L
decrease in realized oil price and sales volume, (i) impairment  J3 358l it © (i) BB H 5 K &5 = 19 B 5 (i)
loss for our oil & gas properties and intangible assets; (iii) 1450 & 2 F 4T & & Wk 4R 26 5 (i) B 75 B
impairment loss for Riyadh assets and liabilities which were 4 & EEMAGRBMABLE ; Liiv) %
classified as held for sale; and (iv) the exclusion of two — A FERNWIEHMFAR @ B =Mz HE > —
subsidiaries PCR and Miao Three in FY2015, which accounted for & —JU4E & % Wi {ff 2 @) 9 EBITDA & 4F 4 A R
total EBITDA of RMB145.4 million in FY2014. ¥ 1.464 4500 -



The Group’s adjusted EBITDA decreased by approximately
RMB1,225.4 million, or 76.8%, from approximately RMB1,595.5
million for FY2014 to approximately RMB370.1 million for FY2015.
The decrease in adjusted EBITDA was also primarily due to the
decrease in realized oil price and sales volume, and the disposal of
the two subsidiaries during 2H2014.

The Group’'s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by operating segment

are set out below:

Net profit for the year

Income tax expenses

Finance income

Finance cost

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

EBITDA

Share-based compensation expenses

Assets impairment loss

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Bad debt provision of trade and other
receivables

Geological and geophysical expense
— Share of SGE

Withholding tax on interest accrued for
intercompany loans

Income from bond investment

Loss on re-measurement of disposal
group classified as held for sale

Gains on write-off payables, net

Adjusted EBITDA
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AL EBITDA

China

il
RMB’000

ARWT 7

(765,270)
(121,261)
(670)
85,950
460,984

(340,267)

5,388
473,439

18,926

328,541

486,028
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Year Ended December 31, 2015

Kazakhstan

W I i
RMB‘000

ARW T

(179,147)
(58,115)
(886)
(112,809)
130,325

(220,632)

417
233,888

3,885

2,226

19,784

R LR

USA

%K
RMB‘000

NRHET 7

4,693

(3,073)
3,414
5,127

10,161

16,705

(29,387)

(2,521)

Corporate
and
others
MR
HoA o
RMB’000
AR T

(585,564)
143
(15,867)
352,020
457

(248,811)

16,710

65,521

15,934

18,780
(1,363)

(133,229)

Total

A
RMB’000
ARHEET TG

(1,525,288)
(179,233)
(20,496)
328,575
596,893

(799,549)

22,515
724,032

3,885
86,673
15,934

18,781
(1,363)

328,541
(29,387)

370,062
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Year Ended December 31, 2014

ZEUARE
Corporate
and
China  Kazakhstan USA others Total
A
HE R AT *H Hoth 3 Ll
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT  AR¥TT AREFT AR¥TFT AR¥TT
Net profit for the year A TR S 721,702 103,149 (149,422) (652,880) 22,549
Income tax expenses JiT BB 3 169,734 44,260 - 169 214,163
Finance income RN (453) (1,629) (3,792) (12,617) (18,491)
Finance cost Wi 20,347 (32,704) 1,771 510,404 499,818
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 418 - 4146 & 4 55 806,894 97,527 23,548 478 928,447
EBITDA EBITDA 1,718,224 210,603 (127,895) (154,446) 1,646,486
Share-based compensation expenses B4 482 B 5 13,428 752 - (1,865) 12,315
Assets impairment loss R ARE 29,282 - 125,288 - 154,570
Gain on oil put options AhE B R AR - - - (19,564) (19,564)
Geological and geophysical expense B R bRk 2B
— Emir — Emir - 20,047 - - 20,047
— Share of SGE — FH SGE R4 - - - 19,842 19,842
Withholding tax arose from O] B R RS A
intercompany loan REB - - 930 20,236 21,166
Income on disposal of subsidiary I B AR (259,389) - - - (259,389)
Adjusted EBITDA 4% EBITDA 1,501,545 231,402 (1,677) (135,797) 1,595,473
Overview W

ASE T AR E R B G AR AR )
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The Group’s primary sources of cash during FY2015 were cash
flow from operating activities and cash flow from financing
activities.
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In FY2015, we had net cash generated from operating activities of
RMB326.1 million, net cash used in investing activities of
RMB1,124.4 million, net cash generated from financing activities
of RMB298 million, an exchange gain on cash and cash equivalent
of RMB14.1 million, and a net decrease in cash and cash
equivalent of RMB500.4 million.



Cash generated from operating activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB326.1
million in the year ended December 31, 2015. In the year ended
December 31, 2015, our net cash generated in operating activities
included loss before income tax of RMB1,704.5 million adjusted
for, depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB596.9 million,
net interest expenses of RMB393.9 million, impairment charge of
RMB724.0 million, loss on re-measurement of disposal group
classified as held for sale of RMB328.5 million, provision for bad
debt of RMB86.7 million, employee share option of RMB22.5
million, share of loss from investments in joint ventures of
RMB26.6 million, offset by gains on write-off payables of RMB29.4
million, exchange gain of RMB85.8 million. The cash movements
from changes in working capital which included decrease in trade
and other payables of RMB29.5 million, a decrease in trade and
other receivables of RMB344.7 million and a decrease in
inventories of RMBO0.1 million, and interest paid of RMB337.9
million and income tax paid of RMB10.5 million.

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB1,180.4
million in the year ended December 31, 2014. In the year ended
December 31, 2014, our net cash generated in operating activities
included profit before income tax of RMB236.7 million adjusted
for, depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB928.4 million,
net interest expenses of RMB514.1 million, employee share option
of RMB12.3 million, share of loss from investments in joint
ventures of RMB55.4 million, offset by gains on disposal of
subsidiaries of RMB259.4 million, exchange gain of RMB32.8
million, and gains on changes of fair value of derivative financial
instruments of RMB11.3 million, gains on oil hedge options of 19.6
million. The cash movements from changes in working capital
which included decrease in trade and other payables of RMB140.5
million, a decrease in trade and other receivables of RMB226.2
million and a decrease in inventories of RMB2.5 million, and
interest paid of RMB326.0 million and income tax paid of
RMB155.3 million.

Cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2015 amounted to RMB1,124.4 million, as a result of purchases
of property, plant and equipment of RMB644.9 million, capital
contribution to/acquisition of investments accounted for using the
equity method of RMB30.9 million, loans to investments accounted
for using equity method of RMB155.2 million, increase in restricted
cash of RMB318.8 million, release of the deposit in relation to
disposal of subsidiary of RMB48.5 million, offset by proceeds from
disposal of RMB45.2 million, net cash inflow from investment in
available for sale financial assets of RMB28.3 million, and interest
received of RMBO0.6 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2014 amounted to RMB1,311.1 million, as a result of purchases
of property, plant and equipment of RMB1,314.0 million, capital
contribution to/acquisition of investments accounted for using the
equity method of RMB269.4 million, loans to investments
accounted for using equity method of RMB163.9 million, increase
in restricted cash of RMB103.4 million, purchase of available-for-
sale financial assets of RMB72.0 million, offset by proceeds from
disposal of interest in subsidiaries net of disposal expenses, cash
and cash equivalent balance as at disposal date of RMB532.5
million, deposit from disposal of subsidiary of RMB46.4 million,
proceeds from contingent consideration receivable of RMB8.1
million and interest received of RMB14.4 million.

Cash generated from financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2015 amounted to RMB298 million primarily due to:
(i) repayments of borrowings of RMB360.1 million; (ii) payment of
fees of modification of terms in indenture of senior notes of
RMB25.9 million, (iii) payment for repurchase of shares and
cancellation of RMB17.6 million; and (iv) payment for shares
purchased under Share Award Scheme of RMB11.1 million, offset
by: (i) proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares of RMB200.0
million; (ii) proceeds from borrowings of RMB512.8 million.

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2014 amounted to RMB541.9 million primarily due
to: (i) proceeds from the issue of the 2019 Notes of RMB2,986.2
million in April 2014, (ii) proceeds from bank borrowings of
RMB411.5 million, comprising one RMB55 million and two RMB5
million short-term working capital loan from China Construction
Bank (“CCB”), US$35 million from Deutsche Bank (“DB"”), and
US$20 million from Bank of Communication (“BCM”), and (iii)
dividends on treasury shares of RMB1.0 million, offset by: (i) 2013
final cash dividend of RMB61.0 million paid in June 2014, (ii)
RMB2,465.6 million used for repayment of the 2016 Notes in May
2014 and the repayment of RMB125 million short-term and
RMB1.5 million long-term working capital loan from CCB, (iii)
RMB120.2 million used for the payment of premium related to the
repayments of the 2016 Notes, (iv) RMB10.4 million used for the
payment for settlement of share options, (v) RMB15.0 million used
for the payment of loan arrangement fees and other fees, (vi)
settlement of options to consultants for investments in
subsidiaries of RMB44.6 million and (vii) RMB13.6 million payment
for buyback of shares and cancellation.
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As at December 31, 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings and Senior
Notes amounted to approximately RMB4,954.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB439.8 million as
compared to December 31, 2014. Among which, borrowings
repayable within one year amounted to approximately RMB529.9
million, representing an increase of RMB190.4 million as
compared to December 31, 2014. All of the Group’s bank
borrowings and Senior Notes are denominated in RMB and United
States Dollars.

Our gearing ratio, which is defined as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents (“Net Borrowings”) divided by the sum of
Net Borrowings and total equity, increased slightly from 51.8% as
at December 31, 2014 to 68.3% as at December 31, 2015,
principally due to a decrease in cash and cash equivalents balance.

Our total borrowings to Adjusted EBITDA ratio, which is defined
as total borrowings divided by Adjusted EBITDA increased from
2.83 as at December 31, 2014 to 13.39 as at December 31, 2015.

Our market risk exposures primarily consist of fluctuations in oil
prices and exchange rates.

Oil price risk

Our realized oil prices are determined by reference to oil prices in
the international market, changes in international oil prices will
have a significant impact on us. Unstable and high volatility of
international oil prices may have a significant impact on our
revenue and profit.

Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s China operation sales are in US
dollars, while production and other expenses in China are incurred
in RMB. The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is
regulated by the PRC government. Limitations on foreign
exchange transactions imposed by the PRC government could
cause future exchange rates to vary significantly from current or
historical exchange rates.
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The functional currency of the Kazakhstan subsidiary is in US
dollars and all export sales are in US dollars. The transactions of
the Kazakhstan subsidiary which are denominated in the
Kazakhstan Tenge are exposed to fluctuations in the US dollars
and Kazakhstan Tenge exchange rate. Management is not in a
position to anticipate changes in the PRC foreign exchange
regulations or the fluctuations between the US dollar and
Kazakhstan Tenge exchange rates, and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the Group’s results of
operations or financial position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company had 1,684 employees, with
1,436 based in China (Mainland and Hong Kong), 244 based in
Kazakhstan and 4 based in USA. There have been no material
changes to the information disclosed in the Annual Report 2014 in
respect of the remuneration of employees, remuneration policies
and staff development.

On August 28, 2000, Ml Energy Corporation (“MIE”) entered into a
PSC with Sinopec for exploration and development of Luojiayi 64
block at Shengli oilfield in Shandong Province, which was
suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005, MIE requested an
extension from Sinopec to restart the project. On September 27,
2006, MIE received a letter from Sinopec denying the request to
restart the project and seeking to terminate the PSC on the
grounds that the extension period of the trial-development phase
had expired and MIE had not met its investment commitment
under the PSC. The Company believes its investment in the project
at Shengli oilfield had met the required commitment amount
under the PSC. The PSC with Sinopec has not been formally
terminated and the dispute has not entered any judicial
proceedings. As advised by the external legal counsel of the
Company, the probability of claim from Sinopec for unfulfilled
investment commitment, if any, in relation to the pilot-
development phase is remote as the statute of limitations has run
out.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2015 (2014: NIL).
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The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2015 including the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
has discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
of the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of MIE Holdings Corporation
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MIE
Holdings Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 90 to 236, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March, 2016
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Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Deferred income tax assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Restricted cash

Current assets

Inventories

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Trade receivables

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of disposal group classified as
held for sale

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Note
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As at December 31,

B+—A=+—H
2015 2014
—F-AfF TN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFI  ARMTIT
5,214,718 6,629,673
355,810 494,552
505,994 499,284
23,795 20,538
27,105 75,541
496,214 210,389
8,495 12,955
6,632,131 7,942,932
44,308 41,046
221,184 622,013
82,595 158,957
462,669 139,411
199,166 689,208
1,009,922 1,650,635
448,052 -
1,457,974 1,650,635
8,090,105 9,593,567
1,068,796 842,520
65,457 153,864
1,037,434 2,560,637
2,171,687 3,557,021
39,309 7,490
2,210,996 3,564,511



Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred income tax liabilities

Trade and notes payable

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and notes payable

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities

Current income tax liabilities

Borrowings

Liabilities of disposal group classified

as held for sale

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements on pages 90 to 236 were approved by the
Board of Directors on March 23, 2016 and were signed on its

behalf.

Zhang Ruilin

Director
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As at December 31,

B+—A=+—H
2015 2014
—F-AfgE TN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFIT  ARMTIT
4,424,247 4,174,878
120,130 312,971
36,589 54,739
82,340 141,350
4,663,306 4,683,938
354,151 654,373
281,933 346,841
4,412 4,449
529,872 339,455
1,170,368 1,345,118
45,435 -
1,215,803 1,345,118
5,879,109 6,029,056
8,090,105 9,593,567
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Revenue

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

Taxes other than income taxes

Employee benefit expense

Purchases, services and other direct
costs

Geological and geophysical expense

Distribution expense

General and administrative expense

Impairment charges

Other(losses)/gains, net

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of losses of investments
accounted for using
the equity method

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax credit/(expense)
(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Currency translation differences

Items that may be reclassified to profit

or loss
Change in value of available-for-sale
financial assets

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for

the year

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

Note
W %2 5
e - ke ey
BLIE (BT 1S BLBRSM) 26
B T3 a4 29
BRI~ s B A B A
R K ER ) 3R 2
B S
(=SLE ¥
R E R R 6,712
HApt 38, FE > FE 25
BB 27
BAE 2 27
AT FERE R TR AR B
IR0 %

8
K i 24 B AT Qs 48, A1
i Bis, (B 30
A 4E (H8) /1Y
A7 A (GEK)Wits :
HEA & F 5 EH e 0HEH
SN B AR
Hgnf e E 4 M E H s 1998 H

TRk e < E 1 R (Y

ALELRA OB H) a5 A AR

2015 2014
SFRE CF N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TE AR
1,032,734 2,982,909
(596,893) (928,447)
(153,971) (695,092)
(174,405) (215,634)
(169,675) (337,340)
- (20,047)
(89,435) (36,595)
(115,469) (123,733)
(724,032) (154,570)
(378,669) 302,020
20,496 18,491
(328,575) (499,818)
(26,627) (55,432)
(1,704,521) 236,712
179,233 (214,163)
(1,525,288) 22,549
(29,937 4,001
(24,762) (20,285)
(54,699) (16,284)
(1,579,987) 6,265
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Note
Bt
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: ZA4E (JE548) /P 55 8 7
Owners of the Company ANE A #H
Non-controlling interests FEHE I PERE 45
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for  A4EL A (BH) W 44
the year attributable to: B R L
Owners of the Company ANT A
Non-controlling interests FEHE I PERE £
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/ ALEAR N B B & AL
profit attributable to owners of (l8) 0 i 5 ¢
the Company for the year (Ei8),Weds (I AR ¥)
(expressed in RMB per share)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BAEER (BE1R) i 31
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share P REAERE (B 1R) i as 31

2015
“F A
RMB’000
NRHET 50

(1,523,203)
(2,085)

(1,525,288)

(1,577,902)
(2,085)

(1,579,987)

(0.59)
(0.59)

Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HIL&EE

2014
—R A
RMB’000
A B TIE

58,482
(35,933)

22,549

42,198
(35,933)

6,265

0.02
0.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated & [ 5 25 A & F BB ) 22 1 8 B8 504 -

financial statements.
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As at January 1, 2014 RN~ —R
Comprehensive income RGN
for the year
Profit for the year AR
Available-for-sale financial ik ESHERE
assets (Note 20) (W7 20)

Currency translation differences  4Mi{fH £ 4

Transactions with ownersin  BLFi% % D LA %19 5 4
their capacity as owners AT S

Employees stock option schemes {E £ i it 3t 31
— value of employee services  — { B IRES B (M7t 29)

(Note 29)
— settlement of employee - GHEER R
options (Note 20) (it 20)

Settlement of options granted &8 A7/ AR 719
for interest in subsidiaries SRR (it 20)
(Note 20)

Dividends on repurchased (R RLREA I R A3

shares held in trust il
Share repurchased and R f L B 8 (fif i 18)
cancellation (Note 18)
Dividends S
As at December 31, 2014 e a5
+ZHAZ4—H

Ordinary
shares
Lot

RMB'000

ARHF L

17,638

17,638

(105)

(105)

17,633

Attributable to owners of the Company
BEREATIEE

Share Other Retained

premium reserves earnings

WA bR B

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARE T ARETT ARETI

838,496 241,766 2,563,107

- - 58,482

(20,285)
- 4,001 -

838,496 225482 2,621,589

- 33,652

- (10,385)

- (95,855)
- 970 -

(13,509) - -
- - (60,952)

(13,509) (71,618) (60,952)

824,987 163,864 2,560,637

Total
st
RMB000
ANE®T T

3,661,007

58,482

(20,285)
4,001

3,703,205

33,652

(10,385)

(95,855)
970

(13,614)
(60,952)

(146,184)

3,557,021

Non-
controlling
interests
FEFEH
PERE £

RMB'000
INGL SO

43,423

(35,933)

7,490

7,490

Total
Equity
4
Ek

RMB'000
ARHT T

3,704,430

22,549

(20,285)
4,001

3,710,695

33,652

(10,385)

(95,855)
970

(13,614)
(60,952)

(146,184)

3,564,511
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Non-
controlling
interests Total
Attributable to owners of the Company Je i il Equity
)y NGRS HEs AR
Ordinary Share Other  Retained
shares  premium reserves  earnings Total

Wl BARE bR BRE At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARKEFR  ARMFE  ARMFE  ARNFE  ARNFE  ARNTE  AREFT

As at January 1, 2015 RoZ-HE—~H—H 17,533 824,987 153,864 2,560,637 3,557,021 7490 3,564,511
Comprehensive income RS

for the year
Loss for the year N - - - (1,523,203) (1,523,203) (2,085)  (1,525,288)
Available-for-sale financial ik &SRB (i 20)

assets (Note 20) - - (24,762) - (24,762) - (24,762)
Currency translation differences SN E %4 - - (29,937) - (29,937) - (29,937)

17,533 824,987 99,165 1,037,434 1,979,119 5405 1,984,524

Transactions with ownersin  BLFi% % D LA %19 5 4
their capacity as owners BT S

Employees stock option schemes {E £ izt %
— value of employee services  — { B IRES B (M7t 29)

(Note 29) - - 22,515 - 22,515 - 22,515
Settlement of options granted 48 & 1A AR M%7 19
for interest in subsidiaries RE A (it 18)
(Note 18) 359 43,599 - - 43,958 - 43,958
Issuance of new ordinary shares [t il (i 18)
(Note 18) 1,754 198,209 - - 199,963 - 199,963
Share purchased under Share {7 it i Rl
Award Scheme (Note 20) (Wit 20) - - (11,063) - (11,063) - (11,063)
Share repurchased and R f L B 8 (ff i 18)
cancellation (Note 18) (157) (17,488) - - (17,645) - (17,645)
Acquisition of additional interest SN 7/ Al %
in a subsidiary (Note 34) (Wit 34) - - (45,160) - (45,160) 33,904 (11,256)
1,956 224,320 (33,708) - 192,568 33,904 226,472
As at December 31, 2015 RoE—HAE
+-H=Z+—H 19,489 1,049,307 65,457 1,037,434 2,171,687 39,309 2,210,996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated 7% [ [ 5% /& A & §F BA 5 $) 35 1 & g8 3043 -
financial statements.
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Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash flow from investment in
available for sale financial assets

Receipts of proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries

Deposit (refunded)/received in relation to

disposal of subsidiaries
Capital contribution to investments

accounted for using the equity method

Loans to investments accounted for
using equity method

Increase in restricted cash

Interest received

Proceeds from contingent consideration

receivable

Proceeds from realized gain of oil option

Others

Net cash used in investing activities

Note
ik
B8 T B A A W B v
32
T B B A B 4 R
W EURBYEE ~ T M sk A
P& m] A B U A
B/J?%ﬁj’zbw
WS i BT T AR A0E

VBT E (U, i 4
B R A AR

S DURE i 5 AR 19 15 19 5 3K
2 B B 5 9 3

C AR

WA i A 3B

A1 T I HE T
HoAth

Bl 4t BT 5 308

BB B Bt A o) B 4 3

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HIL4EE

2015 2014
—F-AfF TN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt ANR¥To0
326,072 1,180,423
(644,939) (1,314,023)
28,324 (71,986)
45,152 532,479
(48,482) 46,400
(30,901) (269,375)
(155,210) (163,856)
(318,798) (103,411)
645 14,364

= 8,134

= 10,208

(235) -

(1,124,444)  (1,311,066)
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HEFR

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HIL4EE

2015

—F L4
Note RMB’000
it et ARW T

Cash flows from financing activities BEEEEENRSER

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary BT A

shares 18 199,963
Proceeds from borrowings ER R E T e 512,759
Proceeds from issue of senior notes BEAT g T AR K IE (PR EEAT

payable, net of issuance costs WA ITFAE) _
Repayments of senior notes ER e -
Payment of premium related to the SAHE R

repayments of senior notes -
Payment for shares purchased under T TS A5 558 B &1 ) () 6 e 14

Share Award Scheme 20 (11,063)
Payment for settlement of share options 7 [n] i i 15 # <7 A5F 19 3 T -
Repayments of borrowings Bk (360,095)
Dividends paid e RS -
Dividends on repurchased shares held in {Z £33 45 [ s 15 45 Wi 3] B4 13 )

trust =
Payment of loan arrangement fee and A e PR K M B 2 T

others =
Payment of fees of modification of terms 7 {\J{& % 22 416 & 5T 2

in indenture of senior notes (25,917)
Payment for repurchase of shares and A A5 ] B R 5

cancellation 18 (17,645)

Payment for settlement of options to A A AT BRI A I W R
acquire shares of subsidiaries -

Net cash generated from financing il 3% B A 2 i B 4 1 A
activities 293,002

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 3 4 & ¥l 4 2 &

equivalents (WD), B (500,370)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 4E4) Bl 4 M Bl 4 255 )

of the year 689,208
Exchange gains on cash and cash 4 N B4 25 8 Y BEE SR 35

equivalents 14,129

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the 4EK B4 R 4% E W
year 202,967

Included in cash and cash equivalents A TE IR R 4 )2

per the statement of financial position FH 4 5 {5 by o 17 199,166
Included in the assets of disposal group £ 76 154 135 8 1) i B 41 & 5 v
classified as held for sale 15 3,801

2014
TR PUAE
RMB’000
UN:L ST

411,545

2,986,181
(2,465,600)

(120,198)

(10,385)

(126,455)

(60,952)
970

(14,994)

(13,614)

(44,605)
541,893

411,250
274,529

3,429

689,208

689,208

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated & [t 53 /2 A< & Df B 5% 35 1 44 s 30 4% o

financial statements.
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MIE Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the exploration, development, production and sale of oil
and other petroleum products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Republic of Kazakhstan (the
“Kazakhstan”), and the United States of America (“USA")
under production sharing contracts (“PSC”) and other similar
arrangements. The Group currently has two producing oil
PSCs in the PRC, an exploration contract and four production
contracts in Kazakhstan and a working interest in the
Niobrara shale oil and gas assets in the USA. The Group also
participates through a joint venture in the exploration of two
unconventional gas assets located on the eastern flank of the
Ordos Basin in the PRC pursuant to two separate PSCs.

Further details of the Group’s joint operations under PSCs
and similar arrangements, and joint ventures are set out in
Notes 8(a) and 8(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK").

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB") unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (“Board of Directors”) on March 23, 2016.

MIAE I8 4% B A FR A 7 (DL iSRG [ AR 2
Al ) T EL B A T (BRE [ AL ) 2%
A 2 R IL AR (DL RS AR )
W % e 307 TE LR B (DA RS T I e i
H 1) 5 [ B O A R B A 1
oo (CSEENYE - BHEE - BB KEE A
R A e ASSE I E OET A R
FF I Y T A R A R EE 4 R A A IR
H o AL W 1 e 45 0 — sk B 4 R A
PR E A RIEE - A AR B
Niobrara B i 1 A1 K 28 50 & & O/ 64
i o AL EEB — K GG ER 5
R 2 4 A TR 2 B A v B 5T 7
22 17 3 b, A T O TR R R SR SR E Y
HhEE -

B BTE I 0 A [ SO AL e T Y
S KM S B AR SR — PR > 2
ST A 5 S iR W 8(a) A1 8(b)
o

AN TR — SR B2 B S SR O
PR ] o 5 it hhik & Maples Corporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands °

AR A B A7 A A U I 5 o B A R
F BT (DU R [ A s e ) -

A A 2 LN RS SR (B IE 5 A @t
W) o AN BATSHR 3 B 48 AR 7 o S5 g
TE—NEZA S AT



The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

A BAS 5 BF U S R PR T Y B
HAA T e A A B > HFBUR
TEJIT 3R B T AT 4 B2 A B AROE A

2.1 R

B R B 3 AR AR P A Y
W i v U 2 o A Y M R A
i ot T S R o R SV S R A
JBE SR A S S T A3t e A
il 7 DAY S (E R R H LS Bt
AR S 9 6 7 A R (L
FEAT A TR B E A AR HAERT -

BT 5 [ o B o v S
A BT E B B AR
e N B LR A AR
FEECRO AR AT B - W
T2 I s AR A M B SR
B 3SA OF B iR A ) R AR AN
THRHIHENG > FER E 4 P PR
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following standards have been adopted
by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after January
1,2015:

° Amendment to IAS 39 ‘Defined benefit
plan: employees contributions’. The
amendment distinguishes between
contributions that are linked to service
only in the period in which they arise
and those linked to service in more than
one period. The amendment allows
contributions that are linked to service,
and do not vary with the length of
employee service, to be deducted from
the cost of benefits earned in the period
that the service is provided.
Contributions that are linked to service,
and vary according to the length of
employee service, must be spread over
the service period using the same
attribution method that is applied to the
benefits.

2.1 R (A])

2.1.1 & st BRI B EE 0 52 B

(a)

A 5E B E 1R A 09 B AT A
EEe R

AEHEH T HAF—
H— B 82 4% BA s 19 S
A T 1 R Ak ) S 4
AN B AT 19 #E QI 51 7R
LU

o DR ERHEQ
395 (B0 A B
Bk TEEE =07
A E W A wH # A
B3 o BB B
fH B A ) TR Y
e %5 4 & mg
Ao LR 48 B i
i — i &
il 55 4 84 B 4t 5K
73 BH R B o B
ok A B I
#4905 A g K] e Bk
TR 5 1 = 8 T
BEEHH A
P £ 36 B 4 &
w0 PR e RS AR
A A T AT B o
2 % B AR B 4 8
A7 PR B T 5
4 4= 8 T 5 B R
Bk HI) b 26 fif
JIBEL A8 M BR ) B9
(7] B g k- AE
IR 55 39 A0 S



2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

Amendments from annual improvements
to IFRSs — 2010 — 2012 Cycle, on IFRS 8,
‘Operating segments’, IAS 16, ‘Property,
plant and equipment’ and IAS 38,
‘Intangible assets’ and IAS 24, ‘Related
party disclosures’. For IFRS 8, ‘Operating
segments’, the standard is amended to
require disclosure of the judgements
made by management in aggregating
operating segments and a reconciliation
of segment assets to the entity’s assets
when segment assets are reported. For
IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’
and IAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’, both
standards are amended to clarify how the
gross carrying amount and the
accumulated depreciation are treated
where an entity uses the revaluation
model. For IAS 24, ‘Related party
disclosures’, The reporting entity is not
required to disclose the compensation
paid by the management entity (as a
related party) to the management entity’s
employee or directors, but it is required
to disclose the amounts charged to the
reporting entity by the management
entity for services provided.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

2.1 HmBALE ()
2.1.1 & 5HBOR bl 5 0 52 B (%)

(a) ARSI O R A0 B AT F
CEny 4 (4F)
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2.1 R (A])

2.1 Basis of preparation(Continued)

2.1.1 7k BRI B Y 52 B (%)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

A 5E B E 1R A 09 B AT A
EE g (4)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by (a)
the Group (Continued)

Amendments from annual improvements
to IFRSs — 2011 — 2013 Cycle, on IFRS 3,
‘Business combinations’ and IFRS 13,
‘Fair value measurement’. For IFRS 3,
‘Business combinations’, it clarifies that
IFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting
for the formation of any joint
arrangement under IFRS 11 in the
financial statements of the joint
arrangement. For IFRS 13, ‘Fair value
measurement’, it clarifies that the
portfolio exception in IFRS 13, which
allows an entity to measure the fair value
of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis, applies
to all contracts (including non-financial
contracts) within the scope of IAS 39 or
IFRS 9.

B PR g wEOUE Al
2011-2013 & )
By A BE o - B
P B 5 4t Y4 I
EIWI EH &
fF 1~ B0 P A
HHERIEE 1395
FEEF ] - #
R B PR B R
HE R 25 3% [ 7
G0F) > ZIEBY
s T R RS
e R 5 395
KNE ARG E
7 PR A R
R A
P B 5 Sl 4t Y4 1)
E1EEEN S
WP e SR
BLUIRNE =T g7
W5 HE R 5513
AN R
W] FEE N
BT BB R
5 e I 55 1395
FOHF A — A
Tl A 4 LA
B 4 T8 T A AL
AT A AR EAEF
& 158 — Bl MG
UL W R BT A
5 & B PR g w5t
HI 55 39 9% Bk 5] [
W5 HE R 2R 9
SERLE AR (2
ke ER) -



2.1 Basis of preparation(Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

The adoption of the above new and amended
standards did not result in any significant
impact to the Group’s financial statements.

Other standards, amendments and
interpretations which are effective for the
financial year beginning on January 1, 2015
are not material to the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation during the financial year, as a
result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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2.1 R (A])

2.1.1 7k BRI 8 04 52 B (%)

(a)

A 5E B E 1R A 09 B AT A
EE g (4)
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2.1 Basis of preparation(Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations not effective for the financial
year beginning January 1, 2015 and not yet
adopted:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The complete version
of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It
replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that
relates to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments.
IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes
three primary measurement categories
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair
value through OCI and fair value through
P&L. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss with
the irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in OCI not
recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in
IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were
no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition
of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and interpretations
not effective for the financial year beginning
January 1, 2015 and not yet adopted: (Continued)

IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness by replacing the bright line
hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an
economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the
‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the
one management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared under IAS
39. The standard is effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. Early adoption is permitted.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognized when a
customer obtains control of a good or service
and thus has the ability to direct the use and
obtain the benefits from the good or service.
The standard replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and
IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and related
interpretations. IFRS 15 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018 and earlier application is permitted. The
Group is assessing the impact of IFRS 15.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations not effective for the financial
year beginning January 1, 2015 and not yet
adopted: (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the related impact of the
above revised standards, amendments and
interpretations to the Group’s financial
statements and is not expecting any
significant impact to the Group’s financial
position and results.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

2.1 R (A])

2.1.1 7k BRI B Y 52 B (%)

(b) —“F—HFE—H—HE
A 46 1 4F B B R 2
o H AR IR 09 Fr 3 J
i 3 R 19 15 2 B o FE
(#%)

AL 1 L B AR B A
e L) e F1) 9 46 ok R i
T A 2 o) P 5 5
PE AR B 5 B AT AT
filti o ST EH bl e
FUJ R 4 ) 1 16 o5 B i
ERCH B BR AN B AR
B ] 0 A 5 IR LA S A
LN PN Z

BEAh WA HoAth 1 R AR
S8 I ¢ 5 o
B [ 5 s o M R 2
BE — MELSEDY
THALEAERY
2 .

22 HEETAN

2.21 &b

EIACIECRS SETE B RN C
HRE RS BT A 8 (B4 AR
T o EALEEE LS HZ
F= T R A AT A (] R SRR
B A A] A [ Rk g AR o I
A RE ) i5 R HL R R A R
B R A
BV % B o 1A F TR
HIRER R B AL 2 H &
P ABR o 120 W 7E £ A
12 BB A F AR o



2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by IFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognized at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognized in accordance with
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognized and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.3 Joint arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Company has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures and joint operations.

2.3.1 Joint ventures

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group’s investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group'’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2.3 Joint arrangements (Continued)

2.3.2 Joint operations

The Group’s development and production
activities in the PRC are conducted, through its
subsidiaries or joint ventures, jointly with others
through PSCs. These PSCs establish joint control
over the development and production activities.
The assets are not owned by a separate legal
entity but are controlled by individual participants
in the PSCs. Each participant is entitled to a
predetermined share of the related output and
bears an agreed share of the costs.

The consolidated financial statements reflect:

o the Group’s share of any assets used in the
joint operations;

° any liabilities that the Group incurred;

° the Group's share of any liabilities incurred
jointly with the other PSC partners in relation
to the joint production;

° any income from the sale or use of the
Group's share of the output of the production,
together with its share of any expenses
incurred in the production; and

° any expense that the Group has incurred in
respect of its interests in the production.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollar (“US$”). The
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.

B Rk (8

2.3.2 KFEBE

AR A B AE v B 7 T2\ A
BEAR AL E M AR
B HC Al 7 3 () AT B R A
FEVE B o 7% %5 & IR Y b 3
o T ) i SR R -
SEE AN RS E NE
HEA - M0 E A A G
il N2 BLE ] - % 2 HE
HHEE A MBI E R E
PR3 % - SR I Bk 4 R )
A

ARG B S B R Sk

o ARLEEITRILE AL
HEMNE

o ALHCEAWEME

=
=

o IR AR A T EE A A
o A TR 2 B E AR
AT {07 £ 1 P R 22 T 1Y
a8

o R B B E S A
ASE R RHATUCA - B
LG AR BT AR AT
i3y 5 &

o RBEFHMLE S HE fi P
FERIART S -

2.4 HPEETH

(a)

Thie B & W

A B [ 8 T B A B S R
P38 H TG BR T % AL
JIr A6 M = K BRI 1 B
(TThRE & )) HEAT R & - A
NAWIMEREMEET . &
D BB R B0 5 B A
R



2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘finance income’ or
‘finance costs’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analyzed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognized in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

2.4 HPEETTH (B)

(b)

BN 22 oy TR 2 o BRUOA H
B R B Al (E B0 RO B SR A
HRIMBERN - M ER
Ty e A% 4 R A2 47 5 LA A
FHER B WEE LA FINE
B S Wi g 2 s A AR
di o B M B 4 M B 4
W A Bl 9 BEE 5 1) 72 A0 48 2k
TE& P &ra st R AR [ B8
W A VBT BA RS 2 ) ep i o

DASN S 7 B B 4 o3 2 T
6 B B LB R 2R 8 AU A
(E 52 8 - % A8 7 1 B A
A 5 1)) B 5% 6 7 R AT FO) HL
il 5 ) PT 7 A 1) 47 2 U
Fr oM o BEL 5 A 5 ) A7
B O 2 T ARG 0 AR
TE (L ) HC Al g B JU) 77 G Al 5%
A IR RS -

I B W A % B A (19
L2 fofE (A R O A )
FEAR RO REDD ) BT 5T 22
((FEFAPIN S ERIEERIE PN b
— kRt AR o JF B
SRR E (105 U5 W] it
A REDE ) BT 22 B AL AE
HAbZR AW H o



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the statement
of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognized in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortized at the
field level based on the unit of production method. Unit
of production rates are based on oil and gas proved and
probable developed producing reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the current
terms of the respective production agreements. The
Group’s reserves estimates represent crude oil and gas
which management believes can be reasonably
produced within the current terms of their production
agreements.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings and improvements 7-10 years

Office equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles and production 10 years
equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognized within ‘Other gains, net’ in profit or loss.
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2.6 Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities. Under
this method, all costs for development wells, supporting
equipment and facilities, and proved mineral interests
in oil and gas properties are capitalized. Geological and
geophysical costs are expensed when incurred. Costs of
exploratory wells (including certain geophysical costs
which are directly attributable to the drilling of these
wells) are capitalized as exploration and evaluation
assets pending determination of whether the wells find
proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas
reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil and
natural gas which geological and engineering data
demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs
under existing economic and operating conditions, i.e.,
prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made.
Prices include consideration of changes in existing
prices provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditures are evaluated for economic viability within
one year of completion of drilling. The related well
costs are expensed as dry holes if it is determined that
such economic viability is not attained. Otherwise, the
related well costs are reclassified to oil and gas
properties and subject to impairment review. For
exploratory wells that are found to have economically
viable reserves in areas where major capital
expenditure will be required before production can
commence, the related well costs remain capitalized
only if additional drilling is under way or firmly planned.
Otherwise the related well costs are expensed as dry
holes. The Group does not have any costs of unproved
properties capitalized in oil and gas properties.

Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognized
as assets at their fair value, as determined by the
requirements of business combinations. Exploration
and evaluation expenditure incurred subsequent to the
acquisition of an exploration asset in a business
combination is accounted for in accordance with the
policy outlined above.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

2.6 IR ~ BFE R

TH SR % B A 2 T B bR AR
R o ARPEULTT I BT - ILER
Til DA % T SR E B 4 L
4t 9 B AT A E F DU AL« HUH
e M BR Y PR SAS S E A R AL
BRGRHF 0 RAS (B4 T 45 B T % o8
S B 5 9 e E M B ) T AR
S S T R TR W SR AR T R
ERERTER TR TUEAR(L -
B it Se B B2 2% T AT RCIRE A R
P (BA RS BB fE A% SO T
iR K TR R AR WA R A AF B2 T
B B S AE T AN R BA PR TR0 K
RIRFWEF & - ER e EZe
7] 22 PE K€ B9 B A 5 4% 5 L 1 %
JE o TSI I R A A A A 9
1% o

T S B KR AR S Y H SR
HOER I 31 52 LS ER 1) — 47 ) R 4
REPEATATVE T AR o 4 A a%
A I SR A AT AR L AT > J
MBI TI1E Ry st o BRI A
B it SR A 7 S 0 2 i SR
FE > M HEAT BB o 2 AE AT B
e 5 FE I S AR B A SO Y
i 3o 5 BUEL A S T AT kR B R
H o M B T SR A AR T
O 1E EH BB ST SR R T A
AAL o 7RI > B SR AR T 1
Py TS o ARSI ARAGAT ] A
PRI ) A EARAL I i R
ti o

SET5 G OF 7 LAY T PR R R A AR
B BT DIRERD o WO AR 35
O BDER ~ AR S 4% R o e
T DUBRAS B o



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, mineral
extraction rights, mining rights and goodwill.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortized over their estimated
useful lives of three years.

Mineral extraction and mining rights

Mineral extraction rights and mining rights are
amortized based on the unit of production
method.

Unit of production rates are based on oil and gas
proved and probable reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the
current terms of the respective production
agreements.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)
(¢) Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Disposal groups classified as held for sale

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The disposal group, are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates), which are classified as
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.
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2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
excepted to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the statement of
financial position.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 2.10 &Rl & (4)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement 2.10.2 TR MG &

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognized at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivable are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘“financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in profit or
loss within ‘Other gains, net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in
profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains, net’ when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognized in equity are included in
profit or loss as ‘Other gains, net'.
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2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognized
in profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains, net’.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognized in profit or loss as part of ‘Other
gains, net’” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan or held- to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognized impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognized in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognized in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The Group has not designated any derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognized immediately in profit or loss with ‘Other
gains, net’.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are crude oil and materials and supplies
which are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Materials and supplies costs are determined
using the first-in first-out method. Crude oil costs are
determined using the weighted average cost method.
The cost of crude oil comprises direct labour,
depreciation, other direct costs and related production
overhead, but excludes borrowing costs.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
oil and gas and other petroleum products sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks or other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (shares held in trust), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to owners of the Company until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, and deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and joint arrangements, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.
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2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.21 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.
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2.22 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.

Asset retirement obligations (including future
decommissioning and restoration) which meet the
criteria of provisions are recognized as provisions and
the amount recognized is the present value of the
estimated future expenditure determined in accordance
with local conditions and requirements, while a
corresponding addition to the related oil and gas
properties of an amount equivalent to the provision is
also created. This is subsequently depleted as part of
the costs of the oil and gas properties. Interest expenses
from the assets retirement obligations for each period
are recognized with the effective interest method during
the useful life of the related oil and gas properties.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Group has various defined contribution plans
for state pensions, housing fund and other social
obligations in accordance with the local conditions
in the PRC and Kazakhstan and practices in the
municipalities and province in which they operate.
A defined contribution plan is a pension and/or
other social benefits plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a
fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognized as employee benefit expense when
they are due.
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2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-retirement
healthcare benefits to their retirees. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional
on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum
service period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit pension
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes
termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

2.24 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognized as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specific period of time).
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2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognizing the expense
during the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.

Cash-settled share-based compensation

Compensation under the stock appreciation rights
is measured based on the fair value of the liability
incurred and is expensed over the vesting period.
The liability is remeasured at each reporting
period to its fair value until settlement with all the
changes in liability related to the vested portion
recorded as employee benefit expense in profit or
loss, the related liability is included in the salaries
and welfare payable.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.
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2.24 Share-based payments (Continued) 2.24 VI3 % B B S A (A7)
(d) Social security contributions on share options (d) By imEnd k& DR A
gains
The social security contributions payable in WA T 1 A4 309 RE T E S A 1Y
connection with the grant of the share options is e G R T A
considered an integral part of the grant itself, and B B AH RS 4 o T BE S
the charge will be treated as a cash-settled PR B S S5 S
transaction.
2.25 Revenue recognition 2.25 Y A\ TR
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the IS 5 O W g R LA S 1Y) 2 AR E
consideration received or receivable, and represents FHE o 0 ARE ML RE B Y R
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of oo BTN~ B E MBS (R 5
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group MR o EUR AW S RAREM 1] 55T &
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be B AR AR AR 5 AR AT RE TR A B
reliably measured; when it is probable that future B RE AR EE S IEIEE TS
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when BB IRE (407N SCTadt) > ASHE [E
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s I ICATERR o

activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the H A AR [ L — I SRS TR ) R i v
Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks toh BT A RE P B AR L B A [ e e
and rewards of ownership of the goods, and retains oy HOE A R
neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective R R > HARBRC S B EA
control over the goods sold, and it is probable that the B E ARSI ~ A KRR 4
economic benefits associated with the transaction will BHAE AT SE R o MIALE[E n] TS
flow to the Group and related revenue and cost can be KPR 2 IR o e HERRIRA -

measured reliably.

With respect to the Group’s operation under PSC, TEH B > 22T EE S A TR (B
revenues are recognized upon delivery of crude oil that 8(a)) N7 T A< & 0 JE I K i
are allocated to the Group under the relevant PSCs S E AR N BB > EriERik
(Note 8(a)) and other conditions discussed above are A e
met.

2.26 Interest income 2.26 #l 2 W A
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest B e A 57 BT PR A1) 22 ok 4 TR ] bk
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the 5] L HE R R o A EE ORI A 2 B
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable PR - A A BB 5198 R AT & Tl
amount, being the estimated future cash flow ] EREE > R EH A R 2 B 4 i 3
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the #% LR E A SRR B - W4
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as SR ET A MR A ALB A -
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and B 3 (B B A0 A B e A R R TR
receivables is recognized using the original effective FIZRHERD o

interest rate.



2.27 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.28 Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are recognized as expenses in
the year in which they are incurred.

2.29 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2.30 Dividend distributions

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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2.31 Segment reporting

3.1

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors
of the Company (Note 5).

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures, but hedge accounting had not been applied.

Risk management is carried out by the Company
headquarter financial department (“Group Finance
Team”) on a regular basis under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Finance Team identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US$ and Kazakhstan
Tenge (“KZT"). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

The majority of the Group’s sales in the PRC
and Kazakhstan are transacted in US$, while
production and other expense are mainly
denominated in RMB and KZT, respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and
is regulated by the PRC government.
Limitation in foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could cause
future exchange rates to vary significantly
from current or historical exchange rates.
Management is not in a position to anticipate
changes in the PRC foreign exchange
regulations and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the
Group’s results of operations or financial
position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

On 20 August 2015 the National Bank and the
Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan
made a resolution about discontinuation of
supporting the exchange rate of Tenge and
implement of new monetary policy, which is
based on inflation targeting regime,
cancellation of exchange rate trading band
and start a free floating exchange rate. As
the result, during the period of August-
December 2015 the exchange rate of Tenge
has varied from 187 to 350 tenge per 1 US
Dollar. As at the 31 December 2015 official
exchange rate of the National Bank of the
Republic Kazakhstan was Tenge 339.47 per
USD 1 (31 December 2014: Tenge 182.35 per
UsD 1).
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated
in the relevant foreign currencies.

At December 31, 2015, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 1%(2014: 1%) against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
December 31, 2015 would have been
RMB44.0 million (2014: RMB13.2 million)
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of US$-denominated trade and
other receivables, bank deposits and
borrowings.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
the years presented.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings, including bank loans and senior
notes payable. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held
at variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. During 2015, except for the Group’s
senior notes payable and short-term bank
loans amounting to RMB529.9 million (2014:
RMB122.4 million) which were at fixed rate,
all other bank loans were at variable rate. All
the borrowings were denominated in US$
and RMB.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure
on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are
simulated taking into consideration
refinancing, renewal of existing positions,
alternative financing and hedging. Based on
these scenarios, the Group calculates the
impact on profit and loss of a defined interest
rate shift. For each simulation, the same
interest rate shift is used for all currencies.
The scenarios are run only for liabilities that
represent the major interest-bearing
positions.

The Group has no material interest bearing
cash assets. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of the changes in market rates.
The Group’s interest rates risk arises from
borrowings. A detailed analysis of the
Group’s borrowings, together with their
respective effective interest rates and
maturity dates, are included in Note 24.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Oil price risk

The Group is engaged in crude oil development,
production and selling activities. Prices of
crude oil are affected by both domestic and
global factors which are beyond the control of
the Group. The fluctuations in such prices may
have favourable or unfavourable impacts to
the Group. Therefore the Group was exposed
to general price fluctuations of crude oil.

Credit risk

As the majority of the cash at bank balance is
placed with PRC state-owned banks and major
financial institutions, the directors of the Company
are of their opinion that the corresponding credit
risk is relatively low. Therefore, credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables. The
Group has controls in place to assess the credit
quality of its customers. The carrying amounts of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
amounts due from related parties and trade and
other receivables included in the consolidated
statements of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. At
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk for its cash
and cash equivalents.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the
Group has one customer in each of China and
Kazakhstan which in aggregate accounts for 96.5%
(2014: 94.8%) of the Group’s revenue and as such,
has concentration of credit risk for its trade and
other receivables. However, the Group regards it
as low risk as the customer in China is PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”) , a PRC state-
owned enterprise with high credit rating in China,
and the major customer in Kazakhstan, Euro-Asian
Oil SA. (formerly known as “Titan Qil”), is one of
the largest trading companies in Mangistau region
(Western Kazakhstan).

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit
facilities.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group Finance Team monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs through:
(i) maintaining flexibility by placing reliance
primarily on external borrowings; (ii) periodically
evaluating banking facilities position and
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities; (iii) compliance
with borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities — for example: fixed charge
coverage ratio, limitation on restricted payments,
limitation on liens and asset sales, etc. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s
debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal balance sheet ratio
targets.

The table below analyzes the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting
period to their contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of principal amount and
interests.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Less than
1year
A
RMB’000
ANR¥ET I
At December 31, 2015 W —HAE
+=ZH=+—H
Borrowings &Kk 529,872
Interest payables on
borrowings Ef &P 341,598
Trade and notes payable &l bz JE A< 22 7% 354,151
Provisions, accruals and  MEffi ~ TEIE M HoAfth
other liabilities =K 249,712
At December 31,2014 A ~F— U4
+=ZHA=+—H
Borrowings 3Kk 339,455
Interest payables on
borrowings (TGP 330,694
Trade and notes payable M} HE 5k K MEAT 22 4% 654,373
Provisions, accruals and ¥4 - FH 2z HoAth
other liabilities AfE 109,926

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
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concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. EBITDA is
determined as profit before finance income, finance
cost, income tax and depreciation, depletion and
amortization.
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3.2 Capital management (Continued)

3.3

The Debt over EBITDA ratios at December 31, 2015 and

2014 were as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 24)

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Finance income

Finance cost

Depreciation, depletion and
amortization

EBITDA

Debt over EBITDA ratio

KSR (F At 24)
BR TR BLAT (R 1H),/FiH
HEETION

A5 2 T
P - PrRE R

EBITDA

BT A B EBITDA I L%

The Debt over EBITDA ratio decreased from 2.7 to (6.2)
was mainly due to the decrease in the profit by Group
for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to

December 31, 2014.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at December 31,
2015 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that

is, derived from prices) (level 2).
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at December 31,

2015.

See Note 15 for disclosures of the disposal groups held
for sale that are measured at fair value.

Assets
As at December 31, 2015

Available-for-sale financial
assets:
— Equity investments
— Debt investments

Assets
As at December 31, 2014

Available-for-sale financial
assets:
— Equity investments
— Debt investments

#E
L
+ZHA=+—H

At

— HEAEE
— B E

Level 1
B
RMB’000
PN T

2511

2,511

30,722

30,722

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during

the year.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the
closing price as at December 31, 2015. These
instruments are included in level 1, and represent
equity investments listed on NYSE, which are
classified as available-for-sale.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Financial instruments in level 3

With respect to the level 3 fair value measurement
for the Group’s financial assets at fair value that
are unlisted equity investments and debt
investments with no active market exists, the
Group’s finance department benchmark to the
market price of certain comparable listed
companies within the same or similar operation/
industry and apply certain adjustments/discount
for non-marketability. At December 31, 2015, the
directors of the Company are of their opinion that
there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represents the best
estimate of fair value within that range.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Estimation of proved and probable reserves

Proved reserves are those quantities of petroleum
that by analysis of geoscience and engineering
data can be estimated with reasonable certainty to
be commercially recoverable, from a given date
forward, from known reservoirs and under defined
economic conditions, operating methods, and
government regulations. Economic conditions
include consideration of changes in existing prices
provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.
Proved developed producing reserves are
expected to be recovered from completion
intervals that are open and producing at the time
of the estimate. Proved undeveloped reserves are
quantities expected to be recovered through future
investments: from new wells on undrilled acreage
in known accumulations, from extending existing
wells to a different (but known) reservoir, or from
infill wells that will increase recovery. Probable
reserves are additional reserves that are less
certain to be recovered than proved reserves but
which, together with proved reserves, are as likely
as not to be recovered.

The Group’s reserve estimates were prepared for
each oilfield and include only reserves that the
Group believes can be reasonably produced within
current economic and operating conditions.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

Proved and probable reserves cannot be
measured exactly. Reserve estimates are based on
many factors related to reservoir performance that
require evaluation by the engineers interpreting
the available data, as well as price and other
economic factors. The reliability of these estimates
at any point in time depends on both the quality
and quantity of the technical and economic data,
and the production performance of the reservoirs
as well as engineering judgement. Consequently,
reserve estimates are subject to revision as
additional data become available during the
producing life of a reservoir. When a commercial
reservoir is discovered, proved reserves are
initially determined based on limited data from the
first well or wells. Subsequent data may better
define the extent of the reservoir and additional
production performance. Well tests and
engineering studies will likely improve the
reliability of the reserve estimate. The evolution of
technology may also result in the application of
improved recovery techniques such as
supplemental or enhanced recovery projects, or
both, which have the potential to increase reserves
beyond those envisioned during the early years of
a reservoir’s producing life.

In general, changes in the technical maturity of
reserves resulting from new information
becoming available from development and
production activities and change in oil and gas
price have tended to be the most significant cause
of annual revisions.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ii)

Depletion, depreciation and amortization of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

In addition to the depletion, depreciation and
amortization of oil and gas properties, mining
extraction and mining rights using the unit of
production method (Notes 2.5 and 2.7) based on
the estimated reserves as disclosed in Note 4.1(i),
management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
and amortization charges for other property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions, or
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations according to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of intangible assets.

Management will adjust the estimated useful lives
where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on
existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next
financial year that are different from assumptions
could require material adjustments to the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iii)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and
gas properties, and intangible assets are reviewed
for possible impairments when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to
whether and how much an asset is impaired
involve management estimates and judgements
such as future prices of crude oil and production
profile. However, the impairment reviews and
calculations are based on assumptions that are
consistent with the Group’s business plans.
Favourable changes to some assumptions may
allow the Group to avoid the need to impair any
assets in these years, whereas unfavourable
changes may cause the assets to become
impaired.

For the year ended December 31, 2015 the Group
recognized an impairment charge on property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets
amounting to RMB473.4 million (2014: RMB29.3
million) , RMB16.7 million (2014: RMB125.3
million) and RMB233.9 million (2014: RMB nil) for
assets under the Group’s operation in the PRC,
USA and Kazakhstan respectively (Note 6, 7).
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

Provision for remediation and restoration

Provision for remediation and restoration included
environmental remediation costs, assets
retirements obligation and similar obligation in
relation to the Group’s operations. Provision is
made when the related environmental disturbance
and present obligations occur, based on the net
present value of estimated future costs. The
ultimate cost of environmental disturbances, asset
retirement and similar obligation are uncertain
and management uses its judgment and
experience to provide for these costs over the life
of operations. Cost estimates can vary in response
to many factors including changes to the relevant
legal requirements, the Group’s related policies,
the emergence of new restoration techniques and
the effects of inflation. Cost estimates are updated
throughout the life of the operation. The expected
timing of expenditure included in cost estimates
can also change, for example in response to
changes in reserves, or production volumes or
economic conditions. Expenditure may occur
before and after closure and can continue for an
extended period of time depending on the specific
site requirements. Some expenditures can
continue into perpetuity. Cash flows must be
discounted if this has a material effect. The
selection of appropriate sources on which to base
calculation of the risk free discount rate used for
this purpose also requires judgment. As a result of
all of the above factors there could be significant
adjustments to the provision for close down,
restoration and clean-up costs which would affect
future financial results.

The Group currently operates mainly in PRC and
Kazakhstan. The outcome of environmental and
other similar obligations under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot reasonably be
estimated at present, and could be material. Under
existing legislation, however, the directors of the
Company are in their opinion that there are no
probable liabilities that are in addition to amounts
which have already been reflected in the financial
statements that will have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(v) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognizes liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors of the
Company that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business performance
of the Group from a geographic perspective being the PRC,
Kazakhstan and USA. The PRC segment derives its revenue
substantially from the sale of oil. Revenue is realized from
the sale of the Group’s share of crude oil to PetroChina
pursuant to respective PSCs (Note 8). The Kazakhstan
segment derives its revenue from the sale of oil and gas
through the operation of an oil and gas exploration and four
production contracts in Kazakhstan. The USA segment
derives its revenue from the sale of shale oil and gas through
working interest in the Niobrara asset in the USA.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s operating
result.
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors BE - F-AE+ _H=1+—HIL&EE
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31, ) 2 F e LI AR 5 BN ¢
2015 is as follows:

Corporate
PRC Kazakhstan USA and others Total
O MRRE R FEB AR R A At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARWTFE  ARBFT ARKTE AREFT ARWTI

Segment revenue vig e 716,758 310,549 5,427 - 1,032,734
Depreciation, depletion and 75 + #7FE M S5

amortization (460,984) (130,325) (5,127) (457) (596,893)
Taxes other than income B (i3 BiFR AN

taxes (Note 26) (Kt 26) (4,334)  (130,640) (217) (18,780)  (153,971)
Employee benefit expense B T#HM A (71,672) (30,561) - (72172)  (174,405)
Purchases, services and PR~ M S HoA

other direct costs HHERA (115,687) (48,709) (5,279) - (169,675)
Distribution expense HHE S (20,516) (68,919) - - (89,435)
General and administrative &%

expense (27,304) (16,238) (3,798) (68,129)  (115,469)
Impairment charges B BER K (473,439)  (233,888) (16,705) - (724,032)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib (8%),/FIfE - FE (344,073) (2,226) 30,733 (63,103)  (378,669)
Finance income IABS A 670 886 3,073 15,867 20,496
Finance costs WAHs % (85,950) 112,809 (3414)  (352,020)  (328,575)
Share of losses of investments 4 f#E 46 15 AR

accounted for using the B R

equity method - - - (26,627) (26,627)
(Loss)/profit before income tax K fii 5 Bt i (548) /3 (886,531)  (237,262) 4,693 (585,421) (1,704,521
Income tax credit/(expense) i {3 Billias, (&) 121,261 58,115 - (143) 179,233
(Loss)/profit for the year A (B1R),/FI (765,270)  (179,147) 4,693 (585,564)  (1,525,288)
Total assets &S 3,494,762 3,036,764 47,177 1,063,350 7,642,053
Total assets includes: B AR
Property, plant and equipment  REJE ~ T ik & s 2,619,525 2,551,430 9,728 34,035 5,214,718
Intangible assets IETY G 11,304 343,738 768 - 355,810
Investments accounted for  #ifiEts i AR E

using the equity method - - - 505,994 505,994
Additions to non-current assets J: Vi B & 1 7,735 349,407 4,371 12 361,525

Total liabilities ARRAH 698,653 553,499 4519 4,577,003 5,833,674
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors WE T 4EF B =+ —HIHEE
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31, I3 A L A RS S B B
2014 is as follows:

Corporate
PRC Kazakhstan USA  and others Total
TR IATE AT FR A A Hst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETFT  ARMBETFT AR%FT AR®TLT ARWTT

Segment revenue Vig: L& 2,217,183 746,361 19,365 - 2,982,909
Depreciation, depletion and ~ 47#5  #756 S 48 44

amortization (806,894) (97,527) (23,548) (478) (928,447)
Taxes other than income BUE (T3 BLBR AN

taxes (Note 26) (M7F 26) (341,432) (331,960) (1,464) (20,236) (695,092)
Employee benefit expense B TH R A (111,163) (49,755) - (54,716) (215,634)
Purchases, services TRRE ~ s R A

and other direct costs AR (227,008) (97,430) (12,902) - (337,340)
Geological and geophysical 12 K 3 5k 4) 5 % F)

expense - (20,047) - - (20,047)
Distribution expense e (29,018) (7,577) - - (36,595)
General and administrative & 3% ]

expense (39,974) (28,989) (7,198) (47,572) (123,733)
Impairment charges B K (29,282) - (125,288) - (154,570)
Other gains/(losses), net HAAE,/ (%) - BHE 278,918 - (408) 23,510 302,020
Finance income BABS A 453 1,629 3,792 12,617 18,491
Finance costs W5 (20,347 32,704 (1,771)  (510,404)  (499,818)
Share of losses of investments =4 125 £ AR

accounted for using the BB B

equity method - - - (55,432) (55,432)

Profit/(loss) before income tax [ i 5 ¢ i A1,/ (48 891,436 147,409 (149,422) (652,711) 236,712

Income tax expense fifa B2 A (169,734) (44,260) - (169)  (214,163)
Profit/(loss) for the year AAEF, (k1) 721,702 103,149 (149,422) (652,880) 22,549
Total assets jagr3 skl 2,171,909 2,941,774 92,536 4,387,348 9,593,567
Total assets includes: BEAFML

Property, plant and equipment  REzE ~ TR FA 4,297,259 2,275,176 24,238 33,000 6,629,673
Intangible assets Y G 7,197 484,581 2,774 - 494,552

Investments accounted for R EARRRE
using the equity method - - - 499,284 499,284
Additions to non-current assets J: i B & 7 il 487,330 377,367 3,164 955 868,816

Total liabilities AEAE 976,475 660,221 50,345 4,342,015 6,029,056
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All segment information above represented segment results
after elimination of inter-segment transactions, which
primarily include interest income or expense from intra-
group accounts and loans.

The revenue reported to the Board of Directors is measured
consistently with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The amounts provided to the Board
of Directors with respect to total assets and total liabilities
are measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the
physical location of the asset.

The assets of disposal group/non-current assets classified as
held for sale are not considered to be segment assets.
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale are not
considered to be segment liabilities.

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as
follows:

Segment assets for reportable segments  #Hi 4k 755 19 43350 & 7E

Unallocated: A5 HL -
Assets of disposal group non-current FrA R B A G =
assets classified as held for sale

Total assets per consolidated & OF AR DL I B A A

statement of financial position

ot gy ER R A B A A R 2 R 22 B 4
2 RIEATIR « 2 WL 5 EBA
175 5 B A0 2 W) HR T A R A R AR G A
SUATSH -

I B 2B o A WA O R 5 IA B
el RNFRITE B MESE

ROA B EE LR RAEN e 2
N5 F P 5 AR T B R — B Oy R
[ o MEAE T I B AR PR 23 E R KRB AN
BN E R E AL

R B B R B AL A 7 S B 0
G o FRA R IR B AR B A B
oA o

As at December 31,

#+=H=+—H
2015 2014
X2 R4
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARWT 78 NG T

7,642,053 9,593,567
448,052 -
8,090,105 9,593,567
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Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total
liabilities as follows:

Segment liabilities for reportable segments it #43 #5143 3 £

Unallocated: A5 HL -
Liabilities of disposal group classified
as held for sale

Total liabilities per consolidated & B BA 5 MR DL 3% 9 1 £ (R A A
statement of financial position

Entity-wide information

Analysis of revenue by category

Sales of oil and gas BB TR 2 KSR SR

Provision of services PO RS

For the year ended December 31, 2015, total revenue from
crude oil sales in the PRC amounting to RMB707.1 million
(2014: RMB2,204.1 million) are derived solely from
PetroChina. For Kazakhstan, Euro-Asian Oil SA was the
Group’s main customer and revenue amounting to RMB288.7
million (2014: RMB624.6 million) are derived from it.
Revenues from PetroChina and Euro-Asian Oil SA accounted
for 68.5% and 28.0% (2014: 73.9% and 20.9%) of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2015,
respectively.

Frf s s B AL AL

ot o aR ) B R AR A RR E T

As at December 31,

R+ZH=1+—H

2015 2014

D S K ZF YA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW T ARHT T

5,833,674 6,029,056

45,435 -

5,879,109 6,029,056
A 3 g i s B
e H 3 43 B

Year ended December 31,
BE+H=1+—HILEE

2015 2014

B S K02 ZF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWT 6 AR IC
1,024,029 2,970,017
8,705 12,892
1,032,734 2,982,909

HEEF-FEFT _H=Z+—HIE%E
JE > A KR A A I A I 8 I A AR
MARKETO7TAHE L (ZF—UE A
Ri#2,2041H &) WAEHEL DA
THHS AU A o A 42 B 7 0 T 5 307 3H 1Y
FE X 4 Euro-Asian Oil SA » ¥ Hilg
AGCHEHNRH2887HE L (. F—N
e NR¥6246H #0) - flE X
—FRAE+F T HZ+— B IREER B A
F1Euro-Asian Oil SA S A 43 HIl Ak
A 4 ] 4800 A 11 68.5% F128.0% (&
— U4 : 73.9% 120.9%) °



At January 1, 2014 RZZ—-NE—-R—R

Cost A&

Accumulated depreciationand 2 EHITE K fE
impairment

Net book amount e K
Year ended December 31,2014  BE_F 4
TR —HIEEE
Opening net book amount ERIR (A
Exchange differences %=1
Additions s
Disposal of subsidiaries A
Disposals i
Transfers i
Depreciation charge TEER
Impairment charge BlERR
Closing net book amount FEARHR (8
At December 31, 2014 REF-MEFZAZF—H
Cost A

Accumulated depreciation and 23t # S g
impairment

Net book amount e v £

Year ended December 31,2015  HE_-ZF—H%F

FZREF—RIEEE
Opening net book amount IR (E
Exchange differences T i 5
Additions i
Disposals i
Transfers Lt
Depreciation charge TEER

Transferred to disposal group B E A HEMEEL
classified as held for sale (Note 15)  (Hff3t 15)

Impairment charge EAEEEEN

- Impairment of long-live assets - & M1 & & B (i

- Impairment loss recognized on - i & 410 & & Fa i 1%
the re-measurement of TR MBI
assets of disposal group

Closing net book amount R IR (E

At December 31, 2015

Cost

Accumulated depreciationand  ZFHITE Rife
impairment

REZ-RE+ZA=—H
WA

Net book amount SR T (A

Exploration
and evaluation
assets

By oR Rt
RMB'000
ARHET T
77,283

(822)

76,461

76,461
(7)
108,870

(42,766)

142,558

154,594
(12,036)

142,558

142,558
6,359
40,106

(98,465)

90,558

103,329
(12,77)

90,558

Oil and gas
properties

WREE
RMB'000
N SO
10,825,734

(4,273,001)

6,562,733

6,552,733
9,547
3,183

(342,404)
726,042
(901,846)
(141,704)

5,905,551

11,148,585
(5,243,034)

5,905,551

5,905,551
112517
30,146

168,957
(585,642)

(735,675)

(456,888)

(67,752)

4,311,214

9,588,019
(5,216,805)

4,311,214
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Buildings

and
improvements
S R
RMB'000
NS
13,052

(3,710)

9,342

9,342
1
11,319
2,069

(4,855)
(3,001)

14,885

19,970
(5,085)

14,885

14,885
802

1,07
(976)

(3,20;)

22,573

31,255
(8,682)

22,573

Vehicles, office
and other
production
equipment
R HAE
i B At A
RMB'000
AREF

104,051
(41,116)

62,935

62,935
70
6,366
(2,373)
(174)
1,315
(11,156)

56,983

116,624
(59,641)

56,983

56,983
1,061
M
(3,088)
(43)
(10517)

(6:210)

39,127

90,909
(51,782)

39,127

Construction
in progress

TR

RMB'000
N ST

458,689

458,689

458,689
(707)
739,078
(7,628)

(679,736)

509,696

509,696

509,696

509,696
26,744
269,886

(70,449)

(3,936)

(40,695)

691,246

732,903
(41,657)

691,246

Total

gt
RMB'000
NS

11,478,809
(4,318,649)

7,160,160

7,160,160
8,914
868,816
(352,405)
1,89

(916,003)
(141,704)

6,629,673

11,949,469
(5,319,796)

6,629,673

6,629,673
147,483
352,150

(4,064)
(599,368)
(745,821)

(497,583)

(67,752)

5,214,718

10,546,415
(5,331,697)

5,214,718
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Included in property, plant and equipment as at December
31, 2015 are certain assets directly used in and operated
under the Group’s PSCs with PetroChina in the PRC,
amounting to RMB2,609.7 million (2014: RMB4,283.1 million)
comprising cost of RMB6,735.4 million (2014: RMB8,842.5
million) less accumulated depreciation and impairment of
RMB4,125.7 million (2014: RMB4,559.4 million).

The additions of oil and gas properties of the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2015 included RMB6.1 million
(2014: RMB5.3 million) relating to the asset retirement
obligations (Note 23) recognized.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, depreciation charge
is recognized as follows:

ALk ik
EEAML A A

Charged to profit or loss
Capitalized into oil in tank

WoE—AE+HA=1+—H > RE
e LR fE T FEHARE
2,609.7 7 & T ( X —PU4E : AR
4,283.1 H B JT) I & T AR 15 A 45 (9] B
AT L A S A TR BT DA
AR HRAE o 32 B B T E A A AR
6,735.4 1 & T ( X — PU4E + AR
8,842.5 H # T ) i R 5T 85 Sl A
RH4,125.7F &L (ZF—PU4E: AR
W 4,559.4 1 #G) o

AEHPREE -F—HFET A = 1—
HIEFERENMAEE D » fERT A
6.1 AT (CE—PU4E : ARWH5.3
HE D) FEE R (M 23)

BEF-HE+_H=+—HIL%F
B T BT

Year ended December 31,

BRET A=+ —HILEE

2015 2014

ZE R e lI1EE S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR NG T
575,360 905,142
24,008 10,861

599,368 916,003



Impairment test

When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each of the CGUs, which are the individual blocks under the
PSCs held by the Group in the PRC, the oilfields under
exploration or production contracts in Kazakhstan, and a
working interest in the USA. The carrying value of the CGUs
is compared to the recoverable amount of the CGUs, which
is calculated based on value-in-use. Value-in-use calculations
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management generally covering a 5-year
period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates not exceeding the long-
term average growth rates for the businesses in which the
CGU operates.

Due to significantly lower global oil prices during the year
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 as impairment indicator,
the Group recognized impairment charges on property, plant
and equipment (Note 6) and intangible assets (Note 7) of
RMB565.4 million and RMB158.6 million respectively (2014:
RMB141.7 million and RMB12.9 million). For the year ended
December 31. 2015, impairment charges of RMB473.4
million, RMB233.9 million and RMB16.7 million are related to
blocks in PRC, Kazakhstan and the working interest in the
USA respectively, to reduce their carrying value to the
respective estimated recoverable amounts calculated based
on value-in-use. The post-tax discount rates used in the
calculations of recoverable amount for the respective CGUs
in the PRC ,USA and Kazakhstan are 11.0%, 12.5% and 13.5%,
respectively.
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CAERUE
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4 7 0 23 FSCE (R RO 8 S T B - TE T E
e U 2L A P % A E 5 [R] Y il P DA K
TE 52 8 (9 15 S RE 2 o B w1 Hh 9 (8 52
[RF - LLBE B 7 BTy R R AR AL A B
FE ~ TR D SO AR o R B A B
T Y B ThT 8 (B B HL AT () i R AT 1L
B AT [m i s A DAAE B (B A 2 R T
B o AE B (09 73 6 BUAR TH BB
U o % B 4 AL A A SR A A T AU T
TOAFE RS TS o BT AR DL B 0 ] B
TSR IRy > BT A % B
BT R R

7% 2014 K 2015 4F JiS J5 I 8 4% % 2K 2=
AERE PG AR OREE - TR
MG (5 6) AT e (K5t 7) 2 Al e
T AR 565.4 H E L AR 158.6
HEITHEME - (2014 AR¥141.7H
B mANRI129F #0) - Rk E
2015412 A 31 B 1L JE > B 550K =
RN RN EEMRR T AR
473.4H &6 > NR¥K233.9F &t kA
R16.7H & LM - ZERINERE
A3 Al 2 R B I BT HER 95 B BT A Y
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Mineral
extraction Mining
Goodwill Software rights rights Total
[+ Wl WA PR TRIHE At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMETE  ARMTL ARWTL ARETL  ARKTL

At January 1,2014 REZZ—NE—H—H
Cost A 3,128 18,355 18,066 585,891 625,440
Accumulated amortization and 2 EHIES B
Impairment - (13,686) (2,212) (65,073) (80,971)
Net book amount e T 3,128 4,669 15,854 520,818 544,469
Year ended December 31,2014  HKE_F—JU4E
FTZAZ—HIEEE
Opening net book amount AR I V(B 3,128 4,669 15,854 520,818 544,469
Exchange differences [ i 2% - (1) 114 1,830 1,943
Additions Ha - 5,965 - - 5,965
Disposal of subsidiaries R E TN (3,128) (7) - (26,324) (29,459)
Amortization charge e A - (2,908) (328) (12,264) (15,500)
Impairment charge (Note 6) WEBRK (i 6) - - (12,866) - (12,866)
Closing net book amount AR - 7,718 2,774 484,060 494,552
At December 31, 2014 RoE—-NE+-H=Z1+—H
Cost A - 24,304 18,132 555,874 598,310
Accumulated amortization and 3
impairment - (16,586) (15,358) (71,814) (103,758)
Net book amount IR A - 7,718 2,774 484,060 494,552
Year ended December 31,2015 #Z _F—H4
FTZAZ—HILgEE
Opening net book amount AR TR - 7,118 2,774 484,060 494,552
Exchange differences T 58, 4 - 29 84 22,963 23,076
Additions i - 11,195 - - 11,195
Amortization charge WS R - (2,782) (869) (7,021) (10,672)
Transferred to disposal group ~ ###  Fi A 15 A AL
classified as held for sale (Note 15) ({7t 15) - (3,716) - - (3,716)
Impairment charge (Note 6) W EAB K (Bt 6)
— Impairment of mineral — T B AR R i
extraction rights - - (1,222) (157,182) (158,404)
— Impairment loss recognized on — %} B41H & & F
the re-measurement of (B RERE R B R
assets of disposal group - (221) - - (221)
Closing net book amount L R - 12,223 767 342,820 355,810
At December 31, 2015 R-Z—HE+-H=1+—H
Cost &N - 30,878 19,241 589,905 640,024
Accumulated amortization and 2 EH#4S KR
impairment - (18,655) (18,474)  (247,085)  (284,214)

Net book amount U I A - 12,223 767 342,820 355,810



For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
amortization charge is recognized in “depreciation, depletion
and amortization” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(a) Joint operations

The Group’s development and production activities in
the PRC are conducted through its subsidiaries or joint
ventures, jointly with others through PSC arrangement.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group
has the following joint arrangements which are
accounted for as joint operation in accordance with
IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”.

Daan and Moliqing PSCs

The Group and Global Qil Corporation (“GOC”), a
limited liability company incorporated in Bahamas,
(collectively the “Foreign Contractors”), respectively
hold a 90% interest and a 10% interest in the foreign
participating interest in each of Daan and Moliging
blocks within the Daan and Moliging oilfields located in
Northeast region in the PRC. These oilfields had been in
the commercial production phase since 2005 and 2008,
respectively, the Daan PSC would expire after about 9
years in 2024, whereas the Moliging PSC would expire
after about 13 years in 2028.

Pursuant to the respective PSCs with PetroChina the
annual gross production of the crude oil shall, after
payment for value added tax and royalty, be firstly
deemed as the cost recovery oil and shall be used for
cost recovery in the following sequence:

(i) Payment in kind for the operating costs actually
incurred by Foreign Contractors and PetroChina.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

BWE_F-HFEL-F-NEFH
= HARAERE > #EHI B RS R
AU R T8 > T FE Sl ] -

(a)

e[ 58 8

A SR T T A B O LA TR
PE > 2 it LW o 7 B B A A
Hh B i S R R A A R ) o

HE X -TET_A=1+T—HI
ARRE > AEE LN LR A0 R
5 B P A T HE RSB 1 98 [ 5
LPE | L E AR o

KL ANZE R T B 2 B I

A% 45 [ B AR R ER A I 2 7
(DUN s [3REkcam ) » —xKe&or
R EWEERAT - (H8 4N &H
1) K R B B A T A B L
53 1A TR B A1 B 2 BELRE 25 1 43 Il <5
H90% K 10% 9 1 4 o K% M B4
EELP T A R B R A e gk
TR AR 8 350 P AE B R HAR R &
TAFEA PG E o KEE M
Oy A DR 2 N ER ) s A
) i A R R T 40 2 JUAR S ST
FE i 43 LA TR & N AR F
W ARFEEGAERFEHAE T =
E o

AR A B rb T A AR B E A O R
(] o i 9 4 B2 AR A SO (E
Tt B L84 T 22 4% - o SE L A
2 [T it > 0 £ 0T A BR R
- GilaEieE

(i) WA T A TR B A i R
FE A B B R B B A
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(a) Joint operations (Continued)

The remainder of the cost recovery oil shall, after
payment for the operating costs, be deemed as
investment recovery oil. Such investment recovery oil
shall be used for the simultaneous recovery of the pilot
test costs and the development costs incurred by
Foreign Contractors and predevelopment costs spent
by PetroChina in proportion of 20% by PetroChina and
80% by Foreign Contractors. The unrecovered costs of
the parties shall be carried forward to and recovered
from the investment recovery oil in succeeding calendar
years until being fully recovered.

(i)  After all pilot test costs and development costs
incurred up to that time have been recovered, the
remainder of the gross production of crude oil for
that period is referred to as profit oil and shall be
allocated in proportion of PetroChina 52% and
Foreign Contractors 48%.

(ii) The operating costs so incurred after the date of
commencement of commercial production shall
be paid respectively by PetroChina and Foreign
Contractors in accordance with the proportion of
oil allocated to each party.

(iii) GOC is entitled to a 10% share of the Foreign
Contractors’ interest in property, plant and
equipment, income and expenses. The Group
received income and paid expenses on behalf of
GOC, which has been recorded in the relevant
accounts with GOC (Note 35).

(a)

e AL ()

2 [0 T 1% 7 5 350 49 A S A A
AR o IR B BOE R o 3R
R [m] T o A R 4 A A
20% K 517 A TRl 43 45 80% 1 L
] > [R]85 [0 A J5 & R 35 BT 2 A 1
e BRI A - PR bl
BTSSR AT BR B & ] o RTA
% [RT WA s A B 25 s 2 B A% H R
AR Rl SRS AR
HEAKE AL -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

AR AT HOEAE  AE 5 ) e
il B ) A I B % T [k
1% > w300 ] i I A8 B A R
% 0 20 1 A 2% R 20 Bl Sz
H 4% b i 40 4 52% K 5hJr
&[5 # 73 Ak 48% B4 LU A T
Vol

B 6y T 246 2 AR T A Y R
18 225t 70 5 /o Ak K S 7
o [F] 2 A7 12y LAY BT
PASCAY o

TR Bk A A HE G A T A
HAEE TR - Uk
AR HBEHE10% o 4
£ ) 3R 3R ER A I i B
Ao W SCAT 3 o I AF R IE
CLRE 8RR BR Bk A B AR B
A (BFRE35) o



(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity
method

The Group's investments accounted for using the equity
method represent interest in joint ventures.

At January 1, w—H—H

Additions #m

Share of losses for the year TN A W R

Adjustment for unrealized gains JECE A8 5 7o A W R B B
resulting from downstream A5 i
transactions

Exchange differences T 53, 75 %H

At December 31, wt+—_A=+—H

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, nature of investment in
joint ventures of the Group is as follows:

Place of business/
Name of entity country of incorporation

kA LS ¢ UL Ve T3 B URIR

Sino Gas and Energy Ltd. (“SGE") PRC/Australia

Sl 8 Nl
Asia Maple Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands
(“Asia Maple”) BB RTES

SGE and Asia Maple are private companies and there
are no quoted market price available for their shares.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in its joint
ventures.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(b) F&HE 4R A MR E

AL RN LR AN S B Rk

i1 B 4 -
2015 2014
ZF R e Syutfe2
RMB’000 RMB’000

NS T ANRWT T

499,284 273,348
29,874 286,722
(26,627) (55,432)
(26,447) (5,015)

29,910 (339)
505,994 499,284

W TE—FAER AT A
=t—H > AEMBEENEEMS

HEF R -
% of interest Measurement
held indirectly method
1 F2 H5 A RE 4 LL 4l 3RS
2015 2014

SR CEE

51% 51% Equity
A Ik
40% - Equity
A ik

SGEAi1Asia Maplet B AL AT
H A% A T A -

R R IR
SR ASER AR R
b A A
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(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

In July 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of
51% interest in SGE, a limited liability company
incorporated in Australia, whose principal business
activity is the exploration and development of
unconventional gas pursuant to two PSCs, which assets
are located on the eastern flank of the Ordos Basin in
the PRC, from Sino Gas and Energy Holdings Limited, a
limited liability company incorporated in Australia.
Pursuant to the Purchase and Subscription Agreement
(“PSA"), the total consideration payable by the Group is
US$100 million (equivalent to RMB633.2 million)
comprising (a) US$10 million (equivalent to RMB63.3
million) for the purchase of certain existing SGE
ordinary shares payable in cash at completion; and (b)
US$66.3 million (equivalent to RMB420.1 million) and
US$23.7 million (equivalent to RMB149.8 million) for
the subscription of certain new converting preference
shares and loan notes of SGE (“Deferred Subscription
Price”), payable in cash progressively and
proportionally after closing. The new converting
preference shares in relation was held in escrow until
the Deferred Subscription Price being fully paid.

Upon payment of the Deferred Subscription Price for
the new converting preference shares and the loan
notes in accordance with the terms of new converting
preference shares will be released from escrow and
converted to ordinary shares and loan notes will be
issued.

At December 31, 2014, all Deferred Subscription Price
has been fully paid up and converted to ordinary
shares. No shares of preferred shares of SGE owned by
the Group are held at escrow.

(b) #RHESEENIRBIIRE (4)

AT TAEER s RERZRT
¥} SGE 51% HE 25 #9 4k % > SGE It
Hi & i Sino Gas and Energy
Holdings Limited » j&2 — R fEE KX
FlEEsE M A R EEA R > HE%E
WS BT E S AR > AE
V7 7 B T 22 1T A Hb i AR S
B BREE W RE IE BB KRR A E -
FR Y400 U I L G I Iop o (LA fiT A
[FR Mk 1) > A5 52 Y B AT AR K
HB 100 H BT (FHERAR
#633.2H &L AR - 15 : (a)
158 MR LB & 10 5o
(ZFERANR63.3H & T AR
P E SGEBUAEEAT AL 5 (b)
66.3 A # %0 (FFEN AR ¥ 420.1
HEO6) &23.7 H 85T (S E R
NR#E149.8 H & o) Bl & R
W SGE 3% %5 i) mT Bl 460 1 2 I I 1
O (LLR RS TR AL 5R A 1
) o BRI A IS 5 R 2 AR
Bz LI 4G 3AS o R AR B BRI ]
8 20 IS A A S A 0 i i s 1
HZRIATICE -

AR B 6 R S AT 94 % ) T e
e B B S PR A AT S R
% > RZAF AR S B BT
T A7 e 2 0 A e Sl BT

2,
TJ\ﬁvjﬁéﬁ °

e K ey e I
A 9 S AT 1 4 S8l e £
TEE I o A WAL AT
(¥ SGE 55 i -



(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Summarized financial information for joint venture

Set out below is the summarized financial information
for SGE, which is accounted for using the equity
method. The directors of the Company are of their
opinion that the interest in Asia Maple was not material
to the Group and therefore, its financial information is
not presented.

Summarized statement of financial position

Current b0

Cash and cash equivalents B4 MBS EY
Other current assets HoAth 37 B
Total current assets it B AR
Borrowings &

Other current liabilities HoAth 37 B £ fik
Total current liabilities ) & AR
Non-current W B

Assets HE

Loan from shareholders % A R

Net assets e 2 g7 3

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(b) FHE 4R A MR B $ 8 (4])

E AR M R B AU

SGE WM Z B &R T » HAT
DIRERS IR AR « AN T HEHRAH
Asia Maple I R 1 M 1% & B AN 4
FE A EREE  FI > LB E
BERTHIR o

WM BRI R
As at December 31,
w+_H=+—H
2015 2014
ZE—HAE e S itEe S
RMB’000 RMB’000

NS NRHBET T

24,150 123,077
75,689 25,121
99,839 148,198

- (34,707)
(295,117) (380,614)
(295,117) (415,321)

1,749,512 1,394,819

(648,401) (271,916)
905,833 855,780
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(b) 2 HE 4R A MR B $ 8 (4)

(b) Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)
WEGZFHERE

Summarized statement of comprehensive loss

Year ended December 31,

®ET-H=1—H
2015 2014
R R4 R4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ANREET T
Revenue KA 49,199 42
Depreciation and amortisation e Rk o 2
expense (14,863) (385)
Share based payment Ry S A (2,183) (3,606)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) e 5o, A, (FR2%) 888 (3,501)
Purchases, services and other PRI ~ HRs B HoAth
direct costs EREIIEN (16,766) -
General and administration expenses % J # [ (24,632) (62,334)
Geological & geophysical expenses  #i1/8 % 3k 9y ¥ 2 [ (41,941) (38,906)
Loss before income tax % i 45 B8 BT 48 2% (50,298) (108,690)
Income tax expense ey % diil = -
Loss for the year AR R (50,298) (108,690)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 7447 7 1H 2 48 % (50,298) (108,690)

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the joint venture adjusted FHNRY B (I IE R EH =R
for differences in accounting policies between the AE SRR (0 ) > 0 A A SR 1
Group and the joint venture, and not the Group’s share BG5S 2 2 M E w BUR Y 25 BLAE
of those amounts. T

D b e S BRAE 8 A SE R T B R



(b)

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Major differences in accounting policies between the
Group and SGE

SGE adopts full cost method for its gas exploration and
production activities. Under this method, all costs
incurred in exploring for, acquiring and developing oil
and gas reserves are capitalized, regardless of whether
the results of specific costs are successful, as
exploration and evaluation assets and will be
transferred to oil & gas properties, and ultimately being
depreciated on the unit-of-production basis upon
production phase of the project in future.

The Group adopts successful efforts method, and
certain expenditures incurred and capitalized by SGE
would not be qualified for capitalization under
successful efforts method; therefore, such expenditures
were expensed off to ensure consistency with the
Group’s policies.

Reconciliation of summarized financial information

Summarized financial information

Opening net assets January 1

Capital injections from shareholders [ {F &

Discounting impact of T SRR R A B
shareholder’s loan

Loss for the year ARAEH K
Currency translation differences AN TR =5
Closing net assets AR
Interest in joint venture (Note) HERERS (HaE)

Adjustment for unrealized gains

resulting from downstream )15 i %
transactions
Carrying value JUE T {40

FEYFEE — —H—H

NEL 22 7 7 A H) R BB

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(b) FHE 4R A MR B $ 8 (4])

A4 M B SGE i 32 % & Gt WSR2
L)

SGE #H K ARG B I 2B 2 7 B 4R
RERWAERSE - REHIET
YR - HEEURN B EE £ h B R SR ek
BT AR > REm AR R
SN I i A A < o N NG
AP EsEE - WA MR EER
e B AR A TE H A P B i B Ao7
BRI T o

AR BARIE A - Ik
T > SGE i & # AR 3f E AL I R E
SCHARTF G EACWRATE - FBA L
B R PR — B RS S
L -

5 TS 5 0 B i ) B
10 EL I 5 R

2015 2014
B S K02 ZF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T2 NG
855,780 655,571
- 269,894
75,729 16,829
(50,298) (108,690)
24,622 22,176
905,833 855,780
532,444 506,246
(26,447) (6,962)
505,997 499,284
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(b)

Note:

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

According to the PSA, the Group is entitled to 51% of SGE’s profit or
loss and net assets acquired after the acquisition, except for the
abovementioned loan notes provided by the Group, which was solely
provided by and entitled to the Group. As at December 31, 2015, the
Group’s subscription represents 51% (2014: 51%) of SGE’s net assets,
among which the loan notes amounted to US$23.7 million (equivalent
to RMB153.9 million) (2014: US$23.7 million (equivalent to RMB146.4

million).

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2015:

Name

a

Gobi Energy Limited
("GObi")

Riyadh Energy Limited
(“Riyadh”)

Emir-Oil, LLC (“Emir”)

Asia Gas & Energy Ltd
("Asia Gas")

Camel Oil and Gas
Technical Service
(Tianjin) Limited

Country of
incorporation

s AR

Cayman

REHE

Cayman

EME

Kazakhstan

I

Cayman

RS

PRC
HE

Kind of legal
entity
R

Limited liability
company

ARRMEAR

Limited liability
company

ARERAR

Limited liability
partnership
AREEAKEE

Limited liability
company

AREEAR

Limited liability
company

AL

Principal activities and
Place of operation

FERGRARIS

Production and sale
of oil in the PRC
T B B A

Production and sale
of oil in the PRC
B R ED

Production and sale
of oil and gas in
Kazakhstan

TEWTE A K
HE I

Investment holding

HRLE

Research and technical
development in
the PRC
TERREEES R
Hiflr g

(b)

HESR T AR ()

MR A Wk - AR 42 [ 52 47 SGE Wi i £ 48 22
B i e (B ot A 42 181 4 (1) 4% 4
H8) 51% By RE - 8 L SRR 58 2 h A 4R
BRI A A o R F A+
AZ=Z1—R o AEBREEE 15 SGE H & F
M951%( 2 —PU4F 1 51%) » H A S EEE
S 23.7 HEE G (EEIR AR 153.9H
HIT) (& —DU4E @ 23.7 | #3500 (GEE IR A
[RHs146.4 FHHT) -

R =V ER R 5

SEGIRMTE
Particulars of Proportion (%) of ordinary
issued share shares held by
At R 2 A B A i 3 4 1 b B
Non-
The The controlling
Company Group interests
A RH Jebemib
100 ordinary shares 100% 100% -
of 1 US$ each
100 L4 - Bl—%1
100 ordinary shares 100% 100% -
of 1 US$ each
100548 M - BR—%71
Charter capital of the 100% 100% -
partnership being
82,300 KZT
Ak
%782,3002 %
4,990 million ordinary 92.18% 92.18% 7.82%
shares of
0.001 US$ each
49908 Bk -
110,001 % ¢
Registered capital 100% 100% -
of US$2 million
a2 HEE T



(a) Disclosure of interests in subsidiaries
Material non-controlling interests

As at December 31, 2015, total amount of non-
controlling interests is RMB41 million for Asia Gas. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that these
non-controlling interests are not material to the Group.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of RMB and KZT held in
the PRC and Kazakhstan, respectively, are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from the countries, other than through
normal dividends.

December 31, 2015 —_EF—HhE+_H=1+—H

Assets as per statement of R 1A 551k D 3 W &

financial position

Available-for-sale financial AL R
assets

Trade and other receivables  REUCHE & HABRE IS 3K >
excluding prepayments ANEFE AT

Cash and cash equivalents Bl R &5 1EY)

Restricted cash 3 PR B 4

Total Gt

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(a)

Loans and
receivables
1-49)3

JRE Wk
RMB’000
AR T

726,582
199,166
471,164

1,396,912

0> Wl HE 25 3 B
R Y 4 i A2k HE

AE—HAFE+H=+—H> ¥k
PRI A AR HE
gt > ¥JE it Asia Gas © AN T HEH
T8 T LS I e ) R i 3 AR AR [ B
BAREK o

K FR il

3 1S v R B ey B e 4R DAL R
AN ER AR AT B & S A
JEUIRE ST S HEAE 2 0k 1) i B o
T8 O b 7 SN AR R A0k 1) B ik B B
I IE A S A HAt 1 55 E A
T BRI

Available-
for-sale Total

CIE 3
SR B At
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TE AW T8

27,105 27,105
- 726,582
- 199,166
- 471,164
27,105 1,424,017



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Liabilities as per statement of

financial position
Borrowings

Trade and other payables excluding

non-financial liabilities

Total

December 31, 2014

Assets as per statement of
financial position

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Total

Liabilities as per statement of

financial position
Borrowings

Trade and other payables excluding

non-financial liabilities

Total

R 9% B 5 R 00 3 ) £ M
i3k
JREAST B i S HAth EAS 3%
AL I 4
Hagt
Loans and
receivables
B
JRE K
RMB’000
ANR¥ET I
ZF-WEFZAZT—H
B4 A Bk e A
A 4
JRE WA R 3 S ELAth B AT
ANELETEAT 835,471
B4 KRB &5 EY 689,208
2 BR i B 4 152,366
Bt 1,677,045
R0 S 5 51K 0 3 ) £
ERe
JREAST B R S He At AT 3
LIS I 4 Rl B
HaGt

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
0t 45 £ £ -
TR RS A
RMB’000
ANR¥EF0

4,954,119
689,901
5,644,020

Available-
for-sale
A
SHEE
RMB’000
N T

75,541

75,541

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
oA 4 A
Fie B A
RMB’'000
ANR¥TFo0

4,514,333
1,046,271

5,560,604

Total
st

RMB’000
ARKF T

4,954,119
689,901

5,644,020

Total
Hast

RMB’000
ARMET T

75,541
835,471
689,208
152,366

1,752,586

Total
Mt

RMB’000
ANRHT T

4,514,333
1,046,271

5,560,604



At January 1,
Exchange differences
Addition

Net loss transfer to equity (Note 20)

Disposal
Disposal of a subsidiary

At December 31,

Represent:

Listed securities:

— Ordinary shares
— USA

— Public trading securities
— Hong Kong

— Public trading securities
— Ireland

Unlisted securities:

— Equity interest
— Corporate debenture

Market value of listed securities

®—H—H
HE 5.2 B
s m

T R A RERE (W71 20)

i E
AR /N

#t+—HA=+—H

B

bR

— HaE
— RH

— Bz 5
— FHis

— iz 5
— WM

I bR

— IHESE
— AFE

bR S G

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

2015

R 2 1K S
RMB’000
AR¥Tou

75,541
3,096
7,156

(24,762)
(33,926)

27,105

2,511

22,487
2,107

27,105

2,511

2014
&I
RMB’000
PN T
50,422
(762)
71,986
(13,942)

(4,868)
(27,295)

75,541

3,671
24,100

2,951

42,834
1,985

75,541

30,722
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The Group’'s available-for-sale financial assets are A A [ G A S R E LT A R
denominated in the following currencies: Fy BT

2015 2014

“F L e SRS

RMB’000 RMB’000

NS T AW T T

us$ ST 24,998 67,429
HKD i 2,107 1,985
RMB UNEY = 6,127
27,105 75,541
The fair value of unlisted securities are based on cash flows JFEHEENAREEERERSHRE
discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate and BT EARD R IE E s mAa nJE
risk premium specific to the unlisted securities. The fair value Bt EHE LR o N B EAE N B E
are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3). & AR A = A (R 3.3) o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is TEH 5 B > 35 R 0 & o L b AR A
the carrying value of the debt investments classified as Fy Tt B TS I IR I

available-for-sale.

None of these financial assets is either past due or impaired. ke 4 i 7 AR 2 G000 VA -



At December 31, 2015, prepayments, deposits and other

receivables are summarized as follows:

Amounts due from related parties
(Note 35 (b))

Loans and other receivables

Receivables arising from realized gain
of oil option

Interest receivable

Consideration receivables from disposal
of subsidiaries

Deposits

Advances to employees

Less: provision for bad debt (note)

Value-added-tax recoverable

Prepaid expenses

Advances to suppliers

Current income tax prepayment

Less: provision for bad debt of
advances to suppliers (note)

Current
Non-current

R W I Wt 7 K (Wit 35(b))

B HAt R Wk

A7 1 SR B B S A B ik
JE WA,

R W T )
PRt

BT &

W SEARYEA (AT

FRAEAN S (E R
(&5 =4l
AR
TR PP

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

AR -HFEF A=+ —H - FAK
UH - RS ARG T

As at December 31,

BT AT IR AR SR M (M)

TE)
i Eh

LS Ry S
2015 2014
SECRE CF W
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFE  ARMTC
488,507 375,519
107,578 128,341
= 16,925

16,867 7,698
41,307 84,071
55,196 58,131
2,715 5,829
712,170 676,514
(68,183) (1,090)
643,987 675,424
36,454 71,107
11,966 25,855
41,409 41,610
4,825 18,406
(21,243) -
717,398 832,402
221,184 622,013
496,214 210,389
717,398 832,402
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In February 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with
PEDCO and PEDEVCO Corp. (parent company of PEDCO),
pursuant to which the Group acquired all non-controlling
equity interests in Condor (subsidiary of the Company) held
by PEDCO and 10%-15% working interest held directly by
PEDCO in the Niobrara shale oil and gas asset at a total
consideration of US$4.2 million (equivalent to RMB57.6
million). The consideration is settled by offsetting to the
other receivable due from PEDCO, and PEDEVCO Corp.
assumed the remaining balance. Also pursuant to the
agreement, the remaining balance of other receivable due
from PEDEVCO Corp. amounting to US$4.9 million
(equivalent to RMB30.1 million) will bear interest at 10% per
annum and due in whole together with all accrued interest
on March 8, 2017.

In January 2015, the Company entered into an agreement
with Asia Sixth Energy Resources Limited (“Asia Sixth”, a
limited liability company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands) and Caspian Energy Limited (“Caspian”, a Canadian
listed company) pursuant to which Caspian assumed other
receivable due by Asia Sixth amounting to US$4.9 million at
December 31, 2014, and the term of the receivable is
modified from interest-free to 10% per annum and due in
whole together with all accrual interest on October 31, 2018.

At December 31, 2015, except for the receivable due from
PEDEVCO and Asia Sixth, all other receivables are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

AR —FAETH » AREME B PEDCO X
PEDEVCO Corp. (PEDCO £} /8 7] ) %%
Pk IR EALEMES A
PEDCOF A i Condor (A/A R AY T4 7])
JEHE L} PEDCO 1£ Niobrara E%ﬂzﬁ%
EE E A 10%-15% HIVE 3RS > A%
55 4.2 H 8 FEIT( #1;%}5&)\%”%57.6@
Ho0) o 5% BHE 64> i REfF PEDCO #E
&7 - #2%E H PEDEVCO Corp.7K¥E < %5
SR bk > 5% 5% PEDEVCO Corp. Y
b R R BR AR 4.9 T B 35T (S E A
R301H B FMEE10% > 24
fREE M R B AR —FE—LFE=AH
JUH# 3] o

AN A ZF— WA — A Bl Asia Sixth
Energy Resources Limited ([ Asia
Sixth |, — < 5T 7 S J A T s e S 1A
ML /A7) & Caspian Energy Limited
([Caspian]) > = M&EKRK LA AW %
FThhak > %97 H Caspian & IE A 7 #
B -PEA+ T H =+ — H il Asia
Sixth 1 4.9 8 B EIC o ;LN R
BB E 10% 1 AFFI 3R » 28 4 e 4
%%ﬂé‘%@ AR NFETH=1T—HE
1 o

A E—-hEFT+ A=+ —H > Br Ll
JEt PEDEVCO K Asia Sixth FKIJE LIS
o Ath 349 A PP~ AR S HL 2 R R
WIRR -



Note: Movements on the provision for bad debt of advances
to suppliers, loans and other receivables are as follows:

At January 1, w—H—H,
Unused amounts reversed I 4 B )
Provision for bad debt TR R A
Exchange differences e 5, 2% %8

At December 31, WrHH=+—H

The creation and release of provision for bad debt of
receivables have been included in “other (losses)/gains net”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The other classes within prepayments and other receivables
do not contain assets made bad debt provisions. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of prepayments and other
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The fair value of loans and receivables approximates to their
carrying amounts.

As of December 31, 2015, prepayments and other receivables
of RMB89.4 million (2014: RMB1.1 million) were made bad
debt provisions. The individually prepayments, deposits and
other receivables made bad debt provisions mainly relate to
debtors that have indications of experiencing significant
financial difficulty and default. It was assessed that a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The aging of
these receivables is as follows:

618 H AL

Over 6 months

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

BiFRE PR AR - L B H At BB WGk 2
tﬁﬁ&?—ﬁ“éﬂﬁﬂ

2015 2014

e 2 K2 RS

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT 58 ARMT 7T

1,090 2,106

(1,157) (1,024)

86,673 -

2,820 8

89,426 1,090

3 I S OE IR A 1 SR A R C A
FEAE G O G i R b [ HA (GRZR) /FI
AR

TR At R SRR o ) AR TR AN 6
CRHREREMEE - RIS H - &k
14 5 FH L BRI 11 2% DA b 2 R Y 2% S T
Joe Al JE VA ) R T A A < AR 4 B R
FEAALAT IS R i £F 2 R4 o

,\TA*HFELI&CEE SRR 2 o8 {8 B L AR T
BRI

R oEFE—RTEF A=+ —H > AR
T T H Al Wi ﬁAE%%4§%ﬁ
T—PUsE: ANR¥11E #oT) B et
%Eﬁo@%E%%%%%%WﬁEE
A& B TERE DL A ) 28 9 TR 85 v R IR B
B AL P o 0 B 0 0 M iR TE A ATk
(8] o g4 M AR A AR ES T T

As at December 31,

wt+=H=1+—H
2015 2014
e S XS e S itEe S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANRETT
89,426 1,090

89,426 1,090
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At December 31, 2015, the carrying amounts of other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Us$ 0
RMB AR
KZT 257

Trade receivables from PetroChina
(Note 35(b))

Trade receivables from other third parties FEU 5 = 7 iE 5k

Unbilled receivables from PetroChina R #E B RE IS oA T ER

B¢ ISR O i T A

Less: allowance for impairment
of trade receivables

JRE S B K 1

Trade receivables — net

The fair value of trade receivables approximates their
carrying amount.

A E—-hEFT+ A=+ —H > HAE
W R B TR (B LA N B B i s B

As at December 31,

LS Ry S
2015 2014
SECRE CF W
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFE  ARMTC
533,458 387,261
164,869 284,750
13,843 4,503
712,170 676,514

As at December 31,

JRE S A T B 5 K (Y 35(b))

#EZA= R
2015 2014
SECRE CF W
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFE  ARKTL
49,822 94,339
14,030 10,197
18,743 54,421
82,595 158,957
82,595 158,957

JREMSCR B 4 2 o B BEL LR 1 < BEARL T



The aging analysis of trade receivables were as follows:

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

JRE W B R AT B T

As at December 31,

wT+=_H=1+—H
2015 2014
- Sl 1< e S i<
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TI0 NE#ET T
Up to 30 days bk 30 H 73,649 158,764
31-180 days 31 %180 H 7,004 193
Over 180 days £k 180 H 1,942 -
82,595 158,957

The Group’s trade receivables have credit terms of between
30 days to 180 days. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, there
were no trade receivables past due which are impaired.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the trade receivables do not
contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

At December 31, 2015, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

uss Ft
RMB N
KZT B

AL B EUCAR A A 5 I £530 2180 H
B EF - RFE R F-MAEF A
b RAEAT o7 L A 0 T 96K 1 A
WK

B EF - RFE R F-MAE+ A
=t—H BERIACECHMEE
FE o AR H o B RS R B i 2
A SRR WS HR C F) B T M (L AR 4R B o
FRA A T4 £R i AF 5 KA

ATE-TAETH=1+—H Bk
AR R T (B DL 21 W 2 LA

As at December 31,

m+=H=+—n
2015 2014
e K2 RS
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHET I8 NRHET I

5,046 128,204
76,002 27,444
1,547 3,309

82,595 158,957
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At cost L%N
Oil in tank JH A
Materials and supplies YRl B AL I

The assets and liabilities related to Riyadh Energy Limited
(“Riyadh”), a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, has been presented as held for sale following the
approval of the group’s management and shareholders on
June 30, 2015 to sell Riyadh in the PRC. The completion date
for the transaction is expected with one year. Riyadh’s assets
and liabilities are a disposal group. However, Riyadh is not a
discontinued operation at June 30, 2015, as it does not
represent a major line of business.

At the date of initial classified as held for sale, Riyadh’s
assets and liabilities were remeasured at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell at of the date.

At the date of initial classified as held for sale, the property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and non-current
prepayments of Riyadh were written down by RMB68,045,000
to RMB750,761,000.

In accordance with IFRS 5, at December 31, 2015 where the
disposal group continues to be classified as held for sale, the
assets and liabilities of Riyadh as disposal group should be
remeasured at the lower of adjusted carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell at the reporting date following
initial classification as held for sale.

At the date of subsequent remeasurement, the property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and non-current
prepayments of Riyadh were further written down by
RMB328,541,418 to RMB 422,851,249. The change of carrying
value is recognized within “Other (losses)/gains, net” in
profit or loss (Note 25).

As at December 31,

wr_H=1+—H
2015 2014
SECEE CE N
RMB’000 RMB’000
N T N BT T8
24,123 13,902
20,185 27,144
44,308 41,046

TEAS 4R [ 47 21 A BRI —F — AR N
F = F A B A v ) ) A fE
WAl ([ FIAERRER ] > AR WA
100% 45 19 T2 7)) 1% - BLUFIHEAS AE IR
AR EEMBRCIRM A FE -
2% IHAE 5y 1 52 B H ITE RH 2 — 4R o A
3 REVR Y S AN B AR R R R B AL H
Fh 7 JHG S AN A T S R o R
T—THEANH =+ HAE RIS R
Mo

WG E > AR Z > MIAERRE
TR 7 AN B R R D ) MR T (L B
SR R TR 25 0 ) T A A
ARSI

IR BFEE R EZ B, FIHESREIR
FIARE)E -~ TRk fls - ML g E ki
18 A TR (B R HF 68,045,000 T &
AR #750,761,000 ¢ ©

R B % P 5 i e R SR B R R
—HAE A =4 B B AL A A
B Ry s A e MIHEAS RE VR Y A
BRI IR B 0 2 i A 2 H LR
19 1% ARk 2% A A o R A R i (e B
(0 9 25 i 2 ) A 2 ) AR 3 SR
RO -

NEE R EHRERE A 0 PSR
TR AT ~ T Kealetl ~ e E MR
) FEASE 3CTE A B A (o — 2 PR AR IR
328,641,418 ¢ & A [ % 422,851,249
JC o wZ AR S (E A B FE AR 65 P Y [
il ($85%),/FIAS > 1§ EE (B 25) o



The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Riyadh in the

disposal group are as follows:

Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Deferred income tax assets (Note)

REEE ~ T s

I H

JRE W Bk

TR ~ RS
A RE sk

Bl K BlESEY

oAt L )

HESE PR A3 BLE 7 (i 7t)

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

B 1 0L 0 R 3
RE R T -

4330 % ¥ A e S Y R B A
Remeasured
Initial carrying carrying
amount of amount of

disposal group disposal group
classified as classified as
held for sale held for sale
Bl B hHARE
FREREEMY R EARENG
PURIREFE  RAIRE A

As at
7
June 30, December 31,
2015 2015
TR A “EHAE
ANH=Z+H +ZHA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRWT T AW T8

745,821 419,764
3,716 2,471
16,380 8,361
9,185 3,649
6,781 3,801
11,845 10,006
9,284 -

803,012 448,052
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Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for
sale

Trade and other payables JREAST T JE At JRE A3k
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities MEff ~ FEE M HoAth & &
Borrowings i

Deferred income tax liabilities (Note) R SE T AR BB (KA )

V& AL T AR

Total net assets of the disposal group

Note:

The movement on the deferred income tax account of the disposal group
classified as held for sale has been charged to “Income tax credit/(expense)”
(Note 30).

430 % ¥ A e B Y R ELAH AL AR
Remeasured
Initial carrying carrying
amount of amount of

disposal group
classified as

disposal group
classified as

held for sale held for sale
B hHE MahRANE
FFEREMY EEAREN
PIRHR T A ST 0 R 0 (R

As at

7

June 30, December 31,
2015 2015
TR A —EhAE
ANA=Z+H +ZA=Z+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRT o AR¥T 0
34,867 19,204
10,775 8,479
3,750 -
- 17,752
49,392 45,435
753,620 402,617

Mt

W3 J 5 A T 4 R AL AN AR A T AR R A S )
[T BLscas, (F8 1) J voEq TR (FEEE30) -
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As at December 31,

LS Ry S
2015 2014
SECRE CF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AW T8 NRBET T

Current mEh 462,669 139,411
Non-current JE i Eh 8,495 12,955
471,164 152,366

Current restricted cash is interest bearing and represent bank
deposit pledged for bank borrowings and notes payable, and
is denominated in USD (2014 : RMB).

Under the laws of Kazakhstan, the Group is required to set
aside funds for environmental remediation relating to its
operations. As at December 31, 2015, the Group had
restricted cash balances amounting to US$1.3 million
(equivalent to RMB8.5 million) (2014: US$2.1 million
(equivalent to RMB13.0 million) set aside for this purpose.
Management is unable to estimate reliably when these
amounts will be utilized, and therefore, these amounts are
classified as non-current.

U B 3 R ) B 4 4 A 2 SRAT A5 K % R A+t
SR SR RAT A A RASETE (2%
—PusE  NRE) FHE -

FRAE I 1% o R A AR EZE MR
43 Y 4 R BRLHC S5 R BE A SR BRI AE
AR —FAET A= —H s A%
UL H B Z R 4 5 1.3 B3 (%
s NRHEE8.5H Hiot) (& —PU4E @ 2.1
HEFET(ZEMHMARKIB.0EET) -
T R BE RT 5 AL R A% SR A N v
B R > WSS BT

As at December 31,

wH+—_H=+—H
2015 2014
“E R TR PUAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWT 0 NG STH
Cash on hand B4 153 187
Cash at bank SRITAE X 199,013 689,021
199,166 689,208
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Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following WR4e LRSS EY LTy &M B
currencies:

As at December 31,

LS Ry S
2015 2014
SECRE CF W
RMB’000 RMB’000

AW T8 NRBET T

RMB UNGY: 24,162 69,383
Us$ FEIT 147,544 576,300
KZT B 293 11,226
HKD e 27,148 32,179
Other currencies Hofh £ ¥ 19 120

199,166 689,208
RMB — denominated deposits are placed with banks in the AN BB 09 1R A O v R B A 4R
PRC. The conversion of these RMB — denominated deposits 7 o IG5 5555 N RS M AE 250 0 M By A Sl [
into foreign currencies and remittance out of the PRC are A [ ZE S T R R AR A B T R
subject to certain PRC rules and regulations of foreign AN FREAGe 9 B L o [ BRR > A B B 2R
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. Also, P R R 7 A o

the exchange rates are determined by the PRC government.

There are also exchange restrictions and currency controls B o Bl T Ath R 11 90 8 52 3 50 4 PR 1
relating to converting KZT into other currencies. KZT is not T Gy, H — g A ] AE BRI e v iy

freely convertible in most countries outside of Kazakhstan. L DAAN I AT B i i o



Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

Number of
shares
Jit B
(Thousand)
T
At January 1, 2014 AR 4R
—H—H 2,649,291
Shares repurchase and [543 7] 1§ &% 7 5
cancellation (Note(b))  (KtzE (b)) (17,134)
At December 31, 2014 jA =& —U4g
+-H=+—H 2,632,157
Shares placing (Note (a)) 348 545y (K31 (a) 276,300
Allotment and issue of  H4#8f i F i 3245
settlement shares to &% ACAP
ACAP Limited Limited ([ ACAP))
(“ACAP”)(Note 19(d))  (Kt7#19(d)) 55,718
Shares repurchase and {5 [l Ji# % 13 &%
cancellation (Note (b)) (Kt (b)) (25,578)
At December 31,2015 A =& —Ti4F
+—-H=+—H 2,938,597

Note:

(a)

(b)

On October 16, 2015, New Sun International Energy Limited (“New
Sun”), one of the shareholders of the Company, and the Company
entered into the Placing and Subscription Agreement with six investors
(“the Investor”), pursuant to which New Sun has agreed to sell, and the
Investors have agreed to purchase, in aggregate 276,300,000 sale
shares at the placing price of HKD0.90 per share; and New Sun has
conditionally agreed to subscribe as principal for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue and allot, 276,300,000 subscription shares
at the subscription price of HKD0.90 per share. The transfer was
completed on October 20, 2015. The aggregate gross proceeds from the
subscription were HKD249 million and the net proceeds from the
subscription (after deducting the expenses in connection with the
placing and the subscription to be borne by the Company) was
approximately HKD245 million (equivalent to RMB200 million). The
proceeds is used as corporate general purpose.

In January 2015, the Company repurchased in aggregate 25,578,000
ordinary shares, all of which were subsequently cancelled, from open
market at a total consideration of HKD22.3 million (equivalent to
RMB17.6 million). The highest and lowest purchase price per share are
HKDO0.88 and HKDO.82 respectively.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

CoEAT I O e AL
Ordinary Share
shares premium Total
Jie AL e AR ¥ 15 At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT ARW¥WTET  ARWTT

17,638 838,496 856,134
(105) (13,509) (13,614)
17,533 824,987 842,520
1,754 198,209 199,963
359 43,599 43,958
(157) (17,488) (17,645)
19,489 1,049,307 1,068,796
Bt

(a) MZE—HFETHTANH > MIEHRRH Z
—New Sun International Energy Limited
(TNew Sunl) > MIEH Lk J 6 % # #5 K 115l A
Ber (TE 7 ) FEal — B R s I ik o
MR % W ek - MIEH ] 25 DL B2 0.90 ¥ JC Y
B & 8 #% [MNew Sun#f 17 ¥ # A%
276,300,000 it H New Sun [F] & 52 i - %k i
£ > New Sun [a] %t B H 8 J7 7] 2 DA ik
0.90 #E 7T 1) 57 i 158 6 4 B0 b 2t J 073 AR B A
PRGN —F—HE T T H MW - i
HRBHE Ay s WK 249 T # O - (NBRA A RIR
W0 8 iR W 8 o T N %) WA A i
245 # o0 (SR ER AR WE#200H 80 -
BB BT A A 2 w) — R T 3 o

(b) WFE—HFE—H > KRR E#22.3H
HITHE M (SR N 17.6 T 85 o0) (19 EHE
45 BT 35 [n] Bl 48 51 25,578,000 17315 48 i 37
315 LA T Y o e v R 1 [ A 4 I
H5H£0.88 75 LA 0.82 1 T -
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Details of the equity-settled share option schemes and stock
appreciation rights adopted by the Company are as follows:

(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)

The Plan was adopted on November 20, 2009 with the
purpose of providing additional incentive to employees,
directors and consultants to attract and retain the best
available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility. The Company originally reserved
6,072,870 ordinary shares for issuance under the Plan.
The Company has undertaken that no further options
shall be granted under the Plan upon its initial public
offering. Any options granted prior to the initial public
offering remain subject to the ordinary vesting and
exercise provisions set out in the award agreement. A
total of 4,422,000 shares originally reserved for the Plan
were cancelled upon the initial public offering.

(i) Stock options under the Plan

The options granted under the Plan are evidenced
by an option award agreement between the
Company and its employees that contains, among
other things, the number of shares granted and
provisions concerning exercisability and forfeiture
upon termination of employment, as determined
by the Board of the Company.

Vesting schedule. The options granted under the
Plan vest over a two or three-year period following
a specified vesting commencement date. Typically,
the options granted vest at each anniversary of the
grant date within the vesting period, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each
vesting date.

AR TBR A LR 45 S A 8 FBCHE A i
T W (e e BRI s

(a) B 5 g B <2t 380 (LA T fi A

[wt&1])

ARAFHEHEHR - EENET—A
T H TR AR B 5 I 4 5T
B BIE LRSS EERE RO
BRGEREFNTAAR - A
g B ~ % 5 K SRR AN S
AN R SE T8 6 6,072,870 i %
JBe LA FE B A B8 I <t ) o AR
) AR R LT 1 Uk B S IR
TERZRT #] AN AR T AT o] oA i i
HE o ATATTAE 2> B 552 M A 42 1 0 3
5T DAL B > SR 073 348 (e 2 )
Hi e P 1) 305 9 e % M I B T K o
JOSe By wZ v B MR OE O A
4,422,000 B B i B IR A B 55 B IRE
gy -

(i) %t b I A

AR JBE A3 5 i P < 5t ) 452 oy
1 B B HE DA AR 2 ) BRI B
2 THT B S8 s 5 T 7 o 2% TR
Ao W Mk S CHL R )
v 452 4 Je A7 1) B S Ak T
AR AT o] 0 P ) T AT G
Fe R SC (F AR 2y m
GHTEE) o

Bt J8 1 o AR B0y 5 i P
w4 R M S 1
it g B 4 1 B AR 1 T 4
AR A B o — Bk
i o BT AR H Y B BRE AE B
WY B A A R A T T
H g o e 2 8L R 4
J& B3 2R A



(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)
(Continued)

(i)

Stock options under the Plan (Continued)

Right to exercise. The term of the options granted
under the Plan will not exceed ten years from the
grant date. Upon termination by the participant or
termination of the participant without cause by the
Company, any portion of the options that had not
vested on or before such termination shall lapse
immediately; any portion of the options that were
vested before such termination to the extent not
exercised within thirty days after such termination
shall also lapse. Upon termination of the
participant due to the participant’s death,
permanent disability or injury, the options remain
subject to ordinary vesting schedule and exercise
provision where the option agreement permits.
Upon termination of the participant by the
Company for cause, any portion of the options not
already exercised lapse immediately.

Movements in the number of share options and
their expiring date and exercise prices under the
Plan are as follows:

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(a) B 52 i B <2t 380 (LA T fi A
[wt#11) (4%)

(i)

2015
G- Sk ¥
Average
exercise price
per share Options
47 6 1
53114 R
At January 1, w—H—H US$0.15 20,127,386
At December 31, #+—H
=+—H US$0.15 20,127,386
Expiry date FWH
November 20, 2019 —ZF— JL4F
+—H=-+H US$0.13 17,048,120
November 23,2020 — 2% " F4E
+—A—_+=H US$0.25 3,079,266
20,127,386

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, all the Share
options were exercisable.

it 8 e B 5 v BB ()

17 (6 o AR5 B 17y 252 i P 2
w45 ) S R ) T BR A
£ FO R S g+
AF o S I fp e A AT
Hh 2 B2 M B LA W) 1 A
i BRAR AR 2 ) S g o R 2
S 2 T T 1 B B N
W) A AT f6 S O S T A
i B A AR = — B A
Ak o s S Th i A0 W S
2 B35 Y Bl A pRR B
2455 55 SO A BRAR A1k 4%
S B o B A > ) S A R AT
JF 9 <y W 0 e L ) R AT
{0 AR 2% W) K] M 22
& > A ARAT (8 B 0 5 e B
R o

%t B e G AT (0 I A
BOH ~ HCEE R AT R
BEWT

2014
TR A

Average

exercise price
per share Options

P-4k 15
(531l HinE
US$0.15 20,127,386
US$0.15 20,127,386
US$0.13 17,048,120
US$0.25 3,079,266
20,127,386

W FE— AR R — AR
+-HA=+—H > FrHEME
A5 11 5 R X5 5 ] AT {66
JRE A o
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(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)
(Continued)

(ii)

Stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan

Stock appreciation rights granted under the plan
are evidenced by a stock appreciation rights award
agreement between the Company and employees
that contains, among other things, the number of
notional ordinary shares to which the stock
appreciation rights relate and the provisions
concerning exercisability and forfeiture upon
termination of employment or consulting
arrangement.

Vesting schedule. Stock appreciation rights
granted under the Plan vest over a three-year
period following a specified vesting
commencement date. One-third of the stock
appreciation rights granted vest at each
anniversary of the grant date within the three-year
vesting period, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee or a service provider
on each vesting date.

Right to exercise. The term of stock appreciation
rights granted under the Plan will not exceed ten
years from the grant date. When a participant
exercises the stock appreciation rights, the
Company will pay such participant an amount in
cash determined by multiplying (i) the excess of
the fair market value of an ordinary share on the
exercise date over the grant price by (ii) the
number of notional ordinary shares to which the
stock appreciation rights relate stated in such
participant’s exercise notice.

(a) B 5 i B <2t 380 (LA T fi A
[wt#1 1) (4%)

(ii)

it B v 4 5 B M 48 £

AR JBE A3 5 i P < T ) 452 1y
9 B 3 8 R0 HE DA AR 2 W) % f
B 22 TR B — 173 JBe 07 484 {E RE 5
Ve Toh e 2 B RE o W Tih kS
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(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”)
(Continued)

(ii)

Stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan
(Continued)

To recognize the contributions by certain grantees
and to give incentives thereto in order to retain
them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group, and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group,
the Board resolved to adopt on November 20,
2015 the amended Plan, pursuant to which the
Board may at their absolute discretion select any
grantee, who is an employee or consultant of the
Group or of any affiliate but is not a core connect
person or connect person (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, for participation in the
amended Plan.

Pursuant to the amended Plan, restrictions on
grant price of SARs granted after the adoption of
amended Plan are removed. Lapsed 2,178,069
SARs will be re-used and re-granted upon terms
and conditions determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company, in its sole discretion,
in accordance with the amended Plan.
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(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (“Plan”) (a) B O %% Jh P <& w1 10 (DA P 1
(Continued) [&h&]) (4)
(ii) Stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan (i) 5% w30 ep A A 0 By G 1 RE
(Continued) (%)
Movements in the number of stock appreciation W2 ET#) P AL W R AT A
rights and their expiring date and exercise prices WEREEHE - L2 E &7
under the Plan are as follows: MEME R By T
2015 2014
e Sl 1 TR AE
Average Stock Average Stock
exercise price appreciation exercise price appreciation
per share rights per share rights
3947 16 1R TR
5 1 JBE 173 346 A (53l Jie 07y 488 (R
At January 1 w—H—H US$0.13 43,930,190 US$0.13 42,066,802
Granted during AALEAR T
the year HKDO0.01 2,140,000 HKD1.40 3,000,000
Lapsed during AAEL R
the year US$0.13 (1,041,457) US$0.13 (1,136,612)
Exercised during  ZAREECATH
the year (834,290) -

At December31 #+2H
=+—H US$0.13 44,194,443 US$0.13 43,930,190

Expiry date FH A

November 20, 2019 — & — L4

+—H=+H US$0.13 38,599,799 US$0.13 40,475,546
February 26,2020 % —#4F
—“AZ+RH US$0.26 454,644 US$0.26 454,644
March 19, 2024 — YA
= H+JuH HKD1.40 3,000,000 HKD1.40 3,000,000
November 20, 2025 — % — [i4F
+—HA—=+H HKDO0.01 2,140,000 - -
44,194,443 43,930,190
At December 31, 2015, out of the 44,194,443 AN E—HE+_HA=+—H>
outstanding stock appreciation rights (2014: 44,194,443 53 1 AT 1Y B 44348 (.
43,930,190 stock appreciation rights), 42,054,443 RE (—&—PU4E : 43,930,190 /4)
(2014: 40,930,190) stock appreciation rights were 42,054,443 ( — & — T 4
exercisable. 40,930,190 1) £ nJ 47 fff JI& 14 384

HE -



(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the

Listing Rules

As approved by shareholders of the Company at a
meeting held on November 27, 2010, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (“Scheme”) in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The Company’s directors may, at their absolute
discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants, to take up options to
subscribe for the shares: (i) any employee (full time) of
the Company or any of the subsidiaries, including any
executive Director; and (ii) any non-executive Director
(including independent non-executive Director) of the
Company or any of the subsidiaries.

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme
shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall
be the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the Offer
Date; (ii) the average closing price of shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares. A nominal
consideration of HKD1.00 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an option.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of any outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.
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(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the

Listing Rules (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have been lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company) to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.
An option may be exercised in whole or in part in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period to be notified by the directors to each
grantee, which period may commence on the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made (“Offer
Date”) but shall expire on the day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary of the Offer Date.

Settlement of share options

On March 21, 2014, the Board of Directors has resolved
to offer to all holders of share option awards under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Limited adopted on November 27, 2010
for the settlement of the vested awards under the
Scheme at a cash consideration of Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD") 0.20 (equivalent to RMBO0.16) per share. As a
result, a total cash payment amounting to
RMB10,385,000 was paid to the holders of options to
acquire a total of 65,358,066 ordinary shares of the
Company for settlement. The estimated fair value of
these share awards at the date of settlement was
HKDO0.50 (equivalent to RMBO0.40). Accordingly, the
payment made to the holders of these share awards on
the settlement has been accounted for as a deduction
from equity.
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(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the

Listing Rules (Continued)
Amendment of the Scheme

At December 31, 2015, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted under the Scheme
and remained outstanding was approximately 4.2% of
the Company’s shares in issue at that date. Options
granted under the Scheme together with the options
under the Plan and remained outstanding as at
December 31, 2015 were approximately 5.0% of the
Company’s shares in issue at that date.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
options under the Scheme held by employees
(including directors) and movement in such holdings
during each of the two years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014:
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(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the (b) Vi Jie M o ) (7Y b i 58 158
Listing Rules (Continued) +L#E) (4)
Amendment of the Scheme (Continued) i 5 BE T B A 5T (%)
2015 2014
R —hA ZE Y4
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options
347 16 1 EAT AR
5313 R (53l HikE
At January 1 w—H—H HKD1.66 133,974,355 HKD2.254 107,815,000
Granted during the year 7<4E#%F - - HKD1.4 97,280,000
Lapsed during the year 742 2<% HKD1.61 (25,026,650) HKD1.66 (5,762,579)
Settled during the year AN4E [ [ i - - HKD2.254  (65,358,066)
At December 31 Rt+—-H=+—H HKD1.61 108,947,705 HKD1.66 133,974,355
Expiry date A
September 20, 2021 —F _—4
JUH —+H HKD2.254 26,962,334 HKD2.254 40,702,734
March 20, 2024 TR PIFE
=H—=-+H HKD1.4 81,985,371 HKD1.4 93,271,621
108,947,705 133,974,355
At December 31, 2015, out of the 108,947,705 options WoE—HE+_A=1+—H 1
(2014: 133,974,355 options), 26,962,334 shares (2014: 108,947,705 14 K A7 {1 14 Jif JI HE
40,702,734 options) were exercisable. (=& —Y4F : 133,974,3551)) »

26,962,334 ( — & — U 4
40,702,734 1) £ 7T 471 B A A o



(c)

2015 Share Award Scheme (Adopted on
January 6, 2015 and as amended on November
20, 2015)

Apart from above Plan and Scheme, to recognize the
contributions by certain grantees and to give incentives
thereto in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the
Group, the Board resolved to adopt on January 6, 2015
and amend on November 20, 2015 the 2015 Share
Award Scheme, pursuant to which the Board may at
their absolute discretion select any grantee, who is an
employee or consultant of the Group or of any affiliate
but is not a core connect person or connect person (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, for
participation in the 2015 Share Award Scheme and
determine the number of awarded shares to be granted
to such grantee. The 2015 Share Award Scheme does
not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary
scheme of the Company, and will be in effect in parallel
with the Plan, the Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme.

In 2015, the trustee holds 16,600,000 shares acquired
through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HKD13,972,000
(including transaction costs) in January and March,
2015, respectively.

On November 20, 2015, the Board of Directors has
resolved to offer to certain directors and employees of
the Company (the “Awarded Shares Grantees”)
14,200,000 shares under the Share Award Scheme.
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(c)

(d)

2015 Share Award Scheme (Adopted on
January 6, 2015 and as amended on November
20, 2015) (Continued)

At January 1 w—H—H

Granted during the year KAEZ T

At December 31 wt+_H=1+—H
Expiry date FH

November 20, 2025 “E HFE—H_TH

Options to acquire shares of subsidiaries

In September 2011, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, has granted to a consultant option to co-
invest with the Company or its subsidiaries for up to
9.9% of the assets acquired within 36 months from the
closing of the transaction for general consulting
services rendered to the Group in connection with its
acquisition of Emir (the “ACAP Options”). These
options will originally expire on September 30, 2014.

(c)

(d)

T T AR Ty B Wt B Ot
ZE RS AN H IR
—E -t —HZTHE
al) (#)

2015
ZERhA

Average
exercise price Awarded
per share Shares

19 47 1
534 HE It 1y
Nil 14,200,000
14,200,000
Nil 14,200,000
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— K A F R R — U
A A S E e TR $i2 1 — MR Al
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(d) Options to acquire shares of subsidiaries

(d) VT 20 2 v e A Ml Je i (4)

(Continued)

On September 16, 2014, the Company reached a
termination agreement with the holder of the ACAP
Options for the settlement of the outstanding ACAP
Options at a cash consideration of US$11.9 million
(equivalent to RMB73.21 million), of which US$3.57
million (RMB22.0 million) has been paid to ACAP as of
December 31, 2014. The ACAP Options ceased to have
any force of effect from the date of termination
agreement.

In October, 2015, the Company paid US$1.5 million to
ACAP. On December 11, 2015, the Company reached a
settlement agreement with ACAP (the “Settlement
Agreement”) for the settlement of outstanding
termination fee by means of issue of settlement shares
under general mandate (the “Settlement Shares”). As
at the date of the Settlement Agreement, the
outstanding termination fee payable by the Company to
ACAP amounted to approximately US$6.83 million (the
“Qutstanding Termination Fee”). Pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement, ACAP and the Company agreed
that the Outstanding Termination Fee will be settled by
the allotment and issue of 55,718,000 Settlement Shares
to ACAP at the issue price of HKD0.95 per Settlement
Share. The Settlement Shares are granted on December
18, 2015.
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(e) Fair values (e) 2 AfE{E
Stock appreciation rights Ji% A9y Y4 1 HE
At December 31, 2015, the fair value of stock appreciation AN E—HE+_H=+—H: K
rights outstanding is determined using the Binomial A7 HE 0 JIE 403 148 (L ARE ) 2 FOAB (B4R )
Model, the fair values and significant inputs into the TR E  HARMEELE
model are as follows: EMASHIURWT ¢
2015
2009 Grants 2010 Grants 2014 Grants Grants
“E-hk
“ERNERT “E-RERT “ENERT el
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
“BORE XN ZR-RE CFNE ZR-nF CFmE ZF4E
US$ uss$ US$ us$ HKD HKD HKD

%7t F Fi e bk ki ki

Fair value per unit BETAAEE 0.04 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.54 0.29 1.03
Share price at T AR
grant date - - - - 1.40 1.40 0.95

Fair value per share MK/ L E(H

at period end 0.14 0.11 0.14 0.1 1.05 0.82 1.05
Exercise price FTRERE 0.13 0.13 0.26 0.13 1.40 1.40 0.01
Volatility (%) Wt (B2 ) 4293 51.57 43.48 51.34 75.89 54.09% 70.72
Dividend yield (%) i L2 (7 ) 2.76 3.54 2.76 3.54 2.76 2.07 2.76
Annual risk-free R 1

rate (%) (E5r i) 1.59 1.64 1.64 1.69 1.46 1.87 1.57
Remaining term (year) FIEkHIAR (4F) 3.88 4.88 4.15 5.15 8.00 9.00 9.89
* The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously * FHLAEAE ) 1 S i 1 A A 2 T Y

compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of TR 53 AT AR A8 2 FL AR A A W] T
daily share prices over the last five years of both the Company Al LS wl A H B E R BB ET o

and comparable companies.



At January 1, 2014

Currency translation
differences

Revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets

Reclassification of
accumulated change in
value of available-for-
sale financial assets
upon disposal — gross

Reclassification of
accumulated change in
value of available-for-
sale financial assets
upon disposal — tax

Employees stock option
scheme

— value of employee

services
— settlement of employee
options (Note 19(b))

Settlement of options to
acquire shares in
subsidiaries (Note 19(d))

Dividends on repurchased
shares held in trust

At December 31, 2014

REF—-NE-A—H

ST £

T
it
BT
SRR
i) - (s

ENBRETH
hESMEEEE
ZitEE-He

fi B i -
— [EEMRAEE
— I B
(Wit (19)(b))
BT T AR
A (W2t 19(d)

GHAEIEL £C
ekl

RO
I ET

Repurchased
shares held
by trust
(Note(a))
EfiRsZe)

[ R A £
(i3t (a))
RMB'000
ARBTT

(60,794)

970

(59,824)

Currency
translation
reserve

SMEEAT R
RMB'000
N ST
(88,850)

4,001

(84,849)

Share
based
payment
reserve

et ft
it
RMB'000
ARHT T

182,417

33,652

(10,385)

(95,855)

109,829

Safety
fund
reserve

g%
it
RMB'000
ARHT T

187,356

187,356

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets

] ffi
EMAE
RMB'000
AEHT I

20,190

(13,942)

(8,457)

2,114

(95)

Others

A
RMB'000
ARHT I

1,447

1,447
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Total

st
RMB'000
ARHT I

241,766
4,001

(13,942)

(8,457)

2,114

33,652

(10,385)

(95,855)

970

163,864
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Repurchased
shares held
by trust
(Note(a))
iRl
Il i
(Wtit(a)
RMB'000
ARWF
At January 1,2015 RZZ—H4E—A—H (59,824)
Currency translation MR
differences -
Change in fair value of ATk R AR
available-for-sale AR BEEEE
financial assets -
Reclassification of EERE &
accumulated change in SR EES
value of available-for-sale 2148 — 4f§
financial assets upon
disposal — gross =
Employees stock option 1 & A 81
scheme
— value of employee - EAMEEH
services -
Acquisition of additional SN T A RERS
interest in a subsidiary -
Shares purchased under it Bt #1 A L0y
Share Award Scheme (11,063)
At December 31, 2015 REZ-T4
+ZA=+—H (70,887)

Currency
translation
reserve

SHEA
i
RMB'000

NRH T 7

(84,849)

(29,937)

(114,786)

Share
based
payment
reserve

Bt ff
it
RMB000

ARHF

109,829

225515

132,344

Safety
fund
reserve

LaRE
i
RMB'000

NRHF T

187,356

187,356

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets

ik
EREE
RMB'000
NRHEF 78

(95)

(23,920)

(842)

(24,857)

Others

L]
RMB'000
NRHEF 78

1,447

(45,160)

(43,713)

Total

it
RMB'000
NRHEF 7

153,864

(29,937)

(23,920)

(842)

22515
(45,160)

(11,063)

65,457



Notes:

(a)

Shares repurchased under Share Award Scheme

To supplement the 2009 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”)
in respect the operation of the share appreciation rights (“SAR”), the
Board of Directors of the Company resolved on May 30, 2012 to adopt a
share award scheme under which the Company will grant the SAR
holders number of awarded shares of the Company (“Awarded
Shares”) that is equal to the number of outstanding notional SAR
shares held by such holders. For the year ended December 31, 2015, no
shares were repurchased and held in trust under the 2012 Awarded
Shares (2014: nil). The Group received a dividend on shares held
totalling to nil (2014: HKD1,200,000 (equivalent to RMB970,000)). As at
December 31, 2015, total shares held in trust under Share Award
Scheme amounts to 42,065,002 shares (December 31, 2014: 42,065,002).

Under the 2015 Share Award Scheme, the trust repurchased 16,600,000
shares at a consideration of HKD13,972,000 (including transaction costs)
(2014: nil) for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Group received
no dividend on shares held (2014: nil). As at December 31, 2015, total
shares held in trust under Share Award Scheme amounts to 16,600,000
shares (December 31, 2014: nil).

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

Bt -

(a)

oy P A5 S ) o 073

B Z 38 T JUAF R0 1 J 19 55 B P <55 - )
HR 073 8 S B B DL S AR A T
HHEH F— AFELA = A RER
B — SRR S A B R 0 (i
N5 A8 T S A7 T T 452 A 2 4 D S 073 B
I FH 45 7 AR B R B PR 3 1 (B AR 1) 0 A A T
ZEMHME e W _F-HET A
oA HARAERE > 7E 2012 S8 43 F T 4
Ji 22 (0] BN P R AR R (S — PR
F) o A M B A 4 R B T R T (
F—PUAE : #E1,200,000 TG > a8 AREER
970,0007C) ° A —F—HAETH =+ —
H oo AR 3 Bt 305N th 52 46 A5G 1 AR
W /542,065,002 B (= F — U4 = H
=+—H :42,065,002%) -

HEZ-HEFTA =+ —HILEE > &
2015 B 173 4% B 51 &1 F 52 46 A LLBHE
13,972,000 JC (¥ %2 % %) [7] § 16,600,000 i
JESR (R —DUAE - ) o 1A ICE 3] 1]
SEBBHTIC(ZF—UE  F) o AF
—HEFTZA=Z+—H > RHEmEHET
22 6 A\ HE A 1 48 1% %025 16,600,000 B (—
FE—NEFZA=ZF—H &) -
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Deferred tax assets:
Deferred tax assets to be recovered
after more than 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
after more than 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
within 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities — net

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

At January 1,

Exchange differences

Tax credited/(charged) to profit or loss
(Note 30)

Disposal of a subsidiary

Transferred to disposal group classified
as held for sale (Note 15)

At December 31,

B S L DR K
AR 1218 H A5 Wi [e] 4 2 A o THU L

HE 2 At JE £ AR
IR 124 A AR R R REBLIH A

#—H—H

[ifE 53, 25 %H

W ks, (R 18 25 R
(Kt 30)

- /N

R AR E A
(K7t 15)

R+ =t —H

As at December 31,

wt=A=+—R
2015 2014
SRR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETE  ARMTE
23,795 20,5638
(120,130) (311,373)
= (1,5698)
(120,130) (312,971)
(96,335) (292,433)

EIEFT R RLAR IS B T

2015
e
RMB’000
AR T T

(292,433)
(8,078)

213,460

(9,284)

(96,335)

2014
TR AR
RMB’000
ANR¥ETIT

(220,689)
(316)

(79,330)
7,902

(292,433)
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The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during 9 JE R TE A A B N A A TR Y s
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of (WA 2% e &5 kT 72 [F] — AE B [ (A HE &)
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: wr
Deferred tax assets PRI Py 15 B s

Accelerated Asset

tax  retirement
depreciation  obligations  Tax losses Others Total
BEMENE AEREEY B A Bt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTE  ARWTE  ARWTL  ARWTE  ARKTL

At January 1, 2014 RZZ—PN4E—~H—H 39,059 12,091 53,342 47,313 151,805
(Charged)/credited to (B ) /a4 RERR

profit or loss (3,105) 460 13,191 (14,395) (3,849)
Disposal of a subsidiary R T (16,415) (981) - (124) (17,520)
Exchange differences TE £ - 29 137 232 398
At December 31, 2014 g 1L

+ZA=+—H 19,539 11,599 66,670 33,026 130,834

(Charged)/credited to (2 ),/ e 48 i 4R 26 FlERR

profit or loss (6,708) (2,030) 351,704 (11,381) 331,587
Transferred to disposal group #5148 % F5 4 15 8 1) j 41

classified as held for sale (Bt 15)

(Note 15) (8,483) (1,350) - (231) (10,064)
Exchange differences e 5. 75 38 - 407 13,107 1,477 14,991
At December 31, 2015 /I S S

+ZH=+—H 4,350 8,626 431,481 22,891 467,348



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Deferred tax liabilities

At January 1, 2014

(Charged)/credited to
profit or loss

Disposal of a subsidiary

Exchange differences

At December 31, 2014

(Charged)/credited to
profit or loss

Transferred to disposal group
classified as held for sale

(Note 15)
Exchange differences

At December 31, 2015

R=ZF—WME—H—H
(8 ),/ cas i 48 42 R

AR/
HEE 52 22 7

/g g 1! E1 3
+ZH=+—H

(1) /Wi ad 48 5 e

ERERRA RN EEL
(it 15)

ltE 5% 2 7

/A QR g K1 2
A=A

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
I 97

RMB'000
ARWET T

(256,521)

(79,789)
10,203
(348)

(326,455)

(119,531)

780
(17,199)

(462,405)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry-
forwards and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that the realization of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. At December 31, 2015, the Group
did not recognize deferred income tax assets of RMB50
million (2014: RMB55.1 million) in respect of losses and
temporary differences amounting to RMB200 million (2014:
RMB157.4 million) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. The temporary differences amounting to
RMB200 million (2014: RMB157.4 million) will expire in 2019.

B AE P 153 B AL
Fair value
gains of
mining
rights Others Total
RIHE L R
A HAts Hgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT AR¥ETLT  ARW%TC
(107,737) (8,236) (372,494)
2,896 1,412 (75,481)
8,395 6,824 25,422
(366) - (714)
(96,812) - (423,267)
1,404 - (118,127)
- - 780
(5,870) - (23,069)
(101,278) - (563,683)

S ] G 10 48 B mT I R 22 R
oy MR I 15 Bl A R Y BAE > AR IEAR AT
8 A AR 1Y) 2 2f JRE S R 30 1 B ) AR A
BiBA R FE—HFE+ A
s el = N Y ETE = SRR R
BT A5 4% S0RY i 18 R B M e LN R
200 A0 ( & — U4 NR¥157.4
HEOG) MERRAIEAE BT B E B A R W50
HEG(ZFE U4 NRH¥55.1H &
JC) o ARYIE M2 B R 200 5 BT
(. F—D4E 1674 H #J0) ik &
— JUAEEIH -
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As at December 31,

R+ _HA=1+—H
2015 2014
- Sk X2 TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANRET T
Trade payables JEASH MK 390,740 682,005
Notes payable AT B % - 27,107
390,740 709,112

Less: non-current portion of trade W FE B AT IR K

payables (36,589) (54,739)
Current ) 354,151 654,373

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the aging analysis of the
trade and notes payable is as follows:

RoF AR F - A
SF o H AT B 2 N 4

Mo~ -
As at December 31,
wr-H=+—H

2015 2014
G- S X2 TE YA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANR¥FI0
Up to 6 months Dk 6 H 184,216 427,290
6 months-1 year 61MfH =14 151,579 176,906
1-2 years 13 24F 44,359 68,275
2-3 years 2 £ 34F 6,090 19,139
Over 3 years Z i 34F 4,496 17,502
Total &t 390,740 709,112
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

22. Trade and notes payable (Continued) 22, FEAT MRS B AT 8 (4)
The carrying amounts of trade and notes payable are JREASH B S R B AT 2 2 1) B Tl 4 BE L T A1
denominated in the following currencies: B AL

As at December 31,

R A= R
2015 2014
SRR R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR  ARWTIC

RMB PN 118,887 400,864
uss ESIn 107,162 7,178
KZT 225 164,691 301,070
Total fat 390,740 709,112
The fair values of trade and notes payables approximate their JREAST B K B JRE AT B 1 2 o (1 B LB

carrying amounts. T 4 REART o



Asset retirement obligations (Note (a))

Interest payable

Salary and welfare payable (Note (b))

Special oil levy

Withholding and other tax payable

Deposit received in relation to
disposal of a subsidiary

Payable in relation to settlement of

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

B R ERD (M (a)
HEAS LS

JREAST 387 B B AR A (WY (b))
A MR AR

ARIN B B H At AT Bt
S BT R T

JEASE &5 5 T R 1 F ey

options to acquire shares of subsidiaries  fifi & ZXJE

Other payables

Less: non-current portion of
— Asset retirement obligations
— Withholding tax payable
— Other payables

Current

LAt A FRIH

W IR 2
— BE SRR
— AL
— HoAt AT R

T E

As at December 31,

e

2015 2014
SE-TE CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTE  ARMTE
41,160 54,684
93,198 75,627
30,112 47,713

= 31,910

35,000 71,409

- 46,400

= 50,971

164,803 109,477

364,273 488,191
(41,160) (54,684)
(32,892) (28,611)
(8,288) (58,055)
(82,340) (141,350)

281,933 346,841
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

23. Provisions, accruals and other liabilities
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Movements of asset retirement obligations are as follows:

23.

(a)  HEEREBRBEEHIURUT

As at December 31,

wt+-A=+—H

2015 2014

SRR CE A

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW¥EFE ANR¥ET T

At January 1, W—H—H 54,684 56,372

Additional provision HHAMEL 6,076 5,346

Disposal of a subsidiary TEE T - (3,925)

Accretion expenses g2 A 3,495 5,550

Exchange differences [ifE 5,25 %A (17,696) (8,659)
Transferred to disposal group classified as O A R AR R A

held for sale (Note 15) (Ktat15) (5,399) -

At December 31, wRt+—H=+—H 41,160 54,684

At December 31, 2015, included in salary and welfare payable was stock
appreciation rights liabilities of RMB3.7 million (2014: RMB9.2 million)
both for the Group and the Company.

(b) A E-HAET A=t B EAFHERK
A ) AR SR B AR 2 ) AT I £ 396
MM ARW 7T (ZF P4 A

R¥9.2H %0 -
The carrying amounts of provisions, accruals and other liabilities are WER - TE L S H A B AR MR T AL N S AR
denominated in the following currencies: R AL
As at December 31,
B+=HA=+—H
2015 2014
BT CE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS T AR T
RMB UNGRY: 33,346 130,654
Uss$ FI0 322,738 247,866
KZT 25 6,164 109,671
HKD i 2,025 -
Total Rk 364,273 488,191

The fair values of provisions, accruals and other liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts.

WA - TEAR S A B AR 2 Fo R (8 SURC IR

SR



Summary of borrowings

Non-current

— senior notes payable (Note (b))

— unsecured bank loans

Current

— secured bank loans (Note (a))

— unsecured bank loans

Note (a):

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(i)
FE T B
— B SE SR (WA (b))
— MEFTAPERAT K
B
— AR ERAT R (Mt (a)
— BRI AT EK

The secured bank loans totalling RMB96.1 million is secured by the
Group's right to receive its share of revenue allocated under Daan PSC.
The Group’s remaining secured bank loans totalling RMB433.8 million
were secured by Group’s bank deposits of approximately RMB462.7

million (Note 16).

Note (b):

Coupon rate

M AR
2018 Notes 2018 224 6.875%
2019 Notes 2019 ZE 4% 7.5%

Due date
FHH

February 6, 2018
April 25,2019

SR NEZARH
—F UM A A

i K BE 22
As at December 31,

R+—H=+—H
2015 2014
- Sk X2 A4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANREET T
4,424,247 4,169,243
- 5,635
4,424,247 4,174,878
529,872 122,380
- 217,075
529,872 339,455
4,954,119 4,514,333

Bt (a) «

A 42 [ A AT B O ERAT 1 o AR s AR
#96.1 H B G FR A LAASE BRI K %
I3 A TR PIT AT 1) JRE e ISt 0 45 T 43 B 19 4
PE R RARG IR o A58 [ HL 60 A7 5 (R SRAT 15 5K
HEEA N R 433.8 1 H T LA AS £ F O (R 7
SHNRNE462.7 1 EOCEAIER (HiFE16) ©

Mzt (b) -
As at December 31,
B+—HA=+—H

2015 2014

—RBHAF ZE A
RMB’000 RMB’000

A R¥T 0 ANRHEF 0
1,266,562 1,190,967

3,157,685 2,978,276

4,424,247 4,169,243
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(i)

Summary of borrowings (Continued)

Note (b): (Continued)

On February 6, 2013, the Company issued US$200 million senior notes
due 2018 (the “2018 Notes”). The 2018 Notes bear coupon rate of
6.875% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on February 6 and
August 6 annually. The net proceeds, after deduction of discounts, fees,
commissions and other expenses, amounted to approximately US$195
million (equivalent to RMB1,222 million). A substantial portion of the
proceeds from the 2018 Notes was used to repay all of existing
indebtedness of the Company’s subsidiary, MIE, to Minsheng Bank. The
remaining proceeds were used for capital expenditures, working capital
and general corporate purposes of the Group.

On April 25, 2014, the Company issued US$500 million (equivalent to
RMB3,076.4 million) senior notes due in April 2019 (the “2019 Notes”).
The 2019 Notes bear coupon rate of 7.50% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears on April 25 and October 25 annually. The net
proceeds, after deduction of discounts, fees, commissions and other
expenses, amounted to approximately US$485.0 million (equivalent to
RMB2,986.1 million). The proceeds are used to (i) to redeem in full the
US$400 million (equivalent to RMB2,461.1 million) 9.75% senior notes
due 2016 issued by the Company on May 12, 2011 and fund the related
redemption costs, including a call premium of US$19.5 million
(equivalent to RMB120.2 million) and (ii) the remaining balance for
capital expenditures, working capital and general corporate purposes.

The 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes (collectively “Senior Notes”) are
general obligation of the Company and are senior in right of payment to
any existing and future obligations of the Company and its subsidiaries
expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Senior Notes,
respectively.

The Senior Notes and the guarantees provided by the certain
subsidiaries will limit the ability of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries to, among other things (and subject to certain qualifications
and exceptions) incur additional indebtedness, issue preferred stock
and make investment.

At any time on or after February 6, 2016 and April 25, 2017, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes,
respectively, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the
percentage of principal amount set forth below, plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date, if redeemed during the
12-month period commencing on February 6 and April 25, respectively,
of any year set forth below:

(i)

fi SWEEE ()
Wt (b) : (40)

APNFRZFE—-ZAFTHARAHETR %
— /\AEFI 11200 B 8 3506 Je 22 0% (DL i Rg
[2018 5248 ]) - 162018 4% & 4 5 ifi Il % /3
B4 6.875 JE » A 2P AF R AR H N H R\
RN AT o &4nbri wgE rdra - & -
{04 B AT B34 T R LA B A S R 4% Itk gt
B0 BT A5 R R A A5 195 T #3500 (A AR
W #11,222 F 8 T) o AN F)HE BT AT R
B R B 43 A B 28 128 W MIE &5 K R ZE SR AT
20 A &S BRI R AR Sl -
e S — A& o

AT B PR A T A TR
Z—JUAEDY H #1500 B & % 70 (S5 E i AR
#3,076.4 T ) 5 EE (LUT AR 12019
PR D) o M 2019 5 HE A I I R SR S AR
7.50 )8 > BB EAEMNA A H &+ A
A H BB o B AT i
JA > A4 B AT BB AT e LA ME A S ek 4% > b
Y 11 I A5 R TE R A4 £ 485.0 R T
(ZE N4 2,986.1 H B TT) o A2 ®IG T
5 BKCTE T R TS (i) A AR I AN R
— N H T H T R KA
400 [ H 30 (SR AR 2,461.1 5 #0)
9.75 JF {8 e L UE M ST BRI [ 25 R - AL 4E
19.5 {5 95 o (G E R NRH#120.2 5 8 T)
R [ i 5 (i) B B VR A S~
A MR S AT

2018 ZE 45 % 2019 52 4% (Si il 7 [ e 4% 1)
AN — A > R EE R
AN F] S H T8 R E WTRE R R B 1E A e B
SEIRM AT AT HLA B R A TAT ©

B S SR S T W 2 W DR i R
e BRI A 2 B B Hots 7 mIE 7E AR AN
R85 - BEAT RS LA R B A T TR AE T (Ifk
TR A T RS SIS BLBR S o

AR RNETHNH K E—LFENA
T H S AT TR > AN R A AT
AR S AT SCIT AR A 4 A T 0 b B T £
3 T 2 (R S0 s R A5 LR, (il
A T SCOT AT T 4 B L H 5 B R A
B A T A T T N ) B ]
aH 4> 2018 S 1 2019 4% -



(i)

Summary of borrowings (Continued)

Note (b): (Continued)

2018 Notes: 2018 %%
2016 TN
2017 s
2019 Notes: 2019 H#E:
2017 TE LA
2018 TE AR

At any time prior to February 6, 2016 and April 25, 2017, the Company
may at its option redeem the 2018 Notes and the 2019 Notes,
respectively, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of the 2018 Notes and 2019 Notes,
respectively, plus the applicable premium and accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date.

In addition, at any time prior to February 6, 2016, the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Notes,
with the net cash proceeds of one or more sales of common stock of
the Company in an equity offering at a redemption price of 106.875% of
the principal amount of 2018 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any to (but excluding) the redemption date, provided that at least 65%
of the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 Notes issued on the
original issue date remains outstanding after each such redemption and
any such redemption takes place within 60 days after the closing of the
related equity offering.

At any time prior to April 25, 2017 the Company may redeem up to 35%
of the aggregate principal amount of 2019 Notes with the Net Cash
Proceeds of one or more sales of Common Stock of the Company in an
equity offering at a redemption price of 107.50% of the principal amount
of 2019 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
excluding) the redemption date; provided that at least 65% of the
aggregate principal amount of 2019 Notes issued on the original issue
date remains outstanding after each such redemption and any such
redemption takes place within 60 days after the closing of the related
equity offering.

All Senior Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited.
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(i)

fi SRR ()
Wt (b) : (40)

Redemption Price

VL I i 4%

103.4375%
101.71875%

103.750%
101.875%

RAT AN T —NAEZHANE %
— LAY A AT A R R o R b A
%2018 5 95 % 2019 52 4% 74 4x #8.100% 114 i
(il 5 o ek 2 M Tl O 0 ) 0 D A DA % T
Fe RATFIE, > ZEUE o] 4 3 i I 9843 2018 224
F 2019 Z4% -

BEAN > i BN E AN HAT > AR E AT
AR — R BB B B o — Rk 2 R
JB T A5 A0 B 4 VR AR DA B AR B AR EE Y
106.875% > i I 8 & (A G5 1 (] H 30 1) 1
FERAT R (A ) 22 A8 4 2 B [ (T - O
] R 3 2018 S 4% A <6z 48 #H 35% 19 3 43 o
% VL 8] AT R PR G R > R O AT I [
1% A 2D HTE R KT BB 81T
2018 95 A 4 HEH 65% 1 #0401 AR JE A > HL
WL [ A7 25 20 AH R AR 03 5 45 PR 1% 60 H IR 8
H oo

A F LR H - H AT s AR Rl
FAE — U B A7 5 rp — R B 22 Uk B 3 i
BT BAS 0 B A 0 R DL S AR & AR EE
107.50% - fin b 18 % FE (] H 0 9 JE SR AL A
S SR 7 B R A - B ] R R 4 2019 5%
PEAR & S HE 35% 1B 43 o wZ B AT A 1 i R
R R  BUCEATIE I > 5 = DA
BT H T 9817 2019 S5 AR 4 4156 65%
B4R 43 0 A ST T L OB 47 o 2 B
WAL 60 H R #E -

B S SR O AR BT N4 8 25 58 5 BT AT BRA R
e
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(ii)

Effective interest rate at the end of reporting period are
as follows:

FRA A
REF—HEFH=1—H

Effective interest rate:
As at December 31, 2015

As at December 31, 2014 A E—UE+—"H=+—H

it A

Estimated fair value

As at December 31, 2015 Ao EZ—HE+_HA=+—H

As at December 31, 2014 ATE—P4EF A =+—H
The fair values of Senior Notes are based on its closing
prices quoted on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and are within level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy; and the fair value of bank borrowings is
based on the borrowing rate from 1.5% to 8.79% (2014:
6.77% to 8.55%) and within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

(ii) FEEAE ARSI R -

Bank
borrowings Senior Notes Total
AT i K BRFEE Bt
1.5% to 8.47% to 1.50% to
7.5% 8.79% 8.79%
6.77% to 8.14% to 6.77% to
8.00% 8.55% 8.55%
529,872 2,061,718 2,591,590
345,090 3,408,283 3,753,373

P SRR AN PO A (B 5L FLAE T
I 78 75 28 o) B i M A R A T A
S B i s AR BB SR — FE AR 5 T 4R
AT A6 R B S HE i 1 30OR] R
1.5%-8.79% ( — & — 4 4:
6.77%-8.55%) T »& > 3 i J& it
SAE(EEE Bk -
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(ifi) The exposure of the Group’s floating rate bank (Tii) A S [ e MR R B R SRt 380 A0 18 S P
borrowings to contractual interest rate changes based AT B 114) 2 7 A B BR AT [R] ZE R4 1| 2%
on LIBOR and the base rate as published by the e AN REBATIR —F—HE+
People’s Bank of China at December 31, 2015 are as A= —H A 2 R R A
follows: R R A o JE B

As at December 31,
w+_HA=1+—H
2015 2014
“EhAE FEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FR ARWTT

Up to 1 year: D — 4 - 217,075
1-2 years: — WA - 2,910
2-5 years: 2 HAE - 2,725
- 222,710

The Senior Notes which bear fixed interest rates are not 20 B B ) S ) R > HORRE
subject to interest rate changes. ) 2R 0 1 el o

(iv) The carrying amount of the borrowing are denominated (iv) AR S8 N B
in the following currencies: 1 :

As at December 31,

w+=A=+—H
2015 2014
“E LA T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FR ARWTT

RMB NRY: 96,100 8,545
uss$ Ein 4,858,019 4,505,788

4,954,119 4,514,333
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(v) The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities: (v) ASEEEEA TR0 R B BER AT
RAGHE
As at December 31,
mt+=H=+—H
2015 2014
—® Tl —F U
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FR ARWTT

Floating rate: T W) F %
— Expiring within one year — A 290,000 290,000
— Expiring beyond one year — —4EDL EEIHA = -
Fixed rate: fi] 5 ] %
— Expiring within one year — A 143,900 220,025
— Expiring beyond one year — —4EDL EEIHA = -
433,900 510,025
Year ended December 31,
BEFT-H=+—HILERE
2015 2014
—F-HgE CF U
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG T NRWETo
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries BT m RS - 259,389
Gains on oil put options A E R 15 = 19,564
Gains on changes in value of financial 28 SO AB A F ) 4 Rl A P (B (E
assets at fair value 53 8 ) 15 - 11,723
Loss on fair value change of warrants FRRERE N Ao B (E A B iR - (408)
Gains on write-off payables , net H PGS, T 29,387 -
Provisions for bad debt FH RS R Ay (86,673) -
Loss on re-measurement of disposal A meEr R B E S EEEN
group classified as held WRAE (Btat 15)
for sale (Note15) (328,541) -
Others At 7,158 11,752

(378,669) 302,020
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Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2015 2014
e Sk S A4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥F It ANREET T
PRC: o -
Special oil levy R I s 4 - 328,878
Urban construction tax and education WAL B M 2
surcharge 3,849 12,110
Others FHoAth 484 444
4,333 341,432
Kazakhstan: I i sl H
Mineral extraction tax T4 B R A 18,533 44,588
Rent export tax A4 OBl 35,302 176,536
Rent export duty expenditures FHA O BB 56,703 87,328
Property tax SIE) 20,102 23,508
130,640 331,960
USA: FE ]
Withholding tax A TAw &) - 930
Severance tax BH PR 217 534
217 1,464
Corporate: FEER
Withholding tax (Note) AL (Kt 7E) 18,781 20,236
153,971 695,092

Note:

Wt -

For the year ended December 31, 2015, all (2014: all) withholding tax is related
to interest expense arising from the intra-group loans.

WEF-HETF A= HILEE . A (CF
—VUAE AT ) AR AR e B I R P R AR
Y ALE AR o
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Finance income
Interest income on deposits

Finance costs

Interest expenses at coupon rates/bank
rates

Amortization of discounts

Premium and unwinding of unamortized
costs from early redemption of
borrowings

Other fees

Exchange gains, net

Finance costs — net

BB
FEaR AL B A

Y

LS T (g 2 1 | 5 A
ATM R

R BT 8

A2 7B I P i S R
S 22 1

HoAth 2

A

it S0 R4S > VAR

an
pr:

WAEEA — A

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2015 2014
ZE—HAE TE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt NEY & ST

20,496 18,491
(352,029) (335,521)
(56,591) (33,288)
= (154,902)
(5,740) (8,903)
(414,360) (532,614)
85,785 32,796
(328,575) (499,818)
(308,079) (481,327)



Employee benefit expense (Note 29)

Depreciation and depletion of property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)
Impairment charges on property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 7)

Impairment charges on intangible
assets (Note 7)

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit and audit related services
— non-audit services

Operating lease expenses

Wages, salaries and allowances

Housing subsidies

Share options — value of employee
services (Note 19)

Awarded shares — value of employee
services (Note 19)

Stock appreciation rights expenses

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans (Note)

Welfare and other expenses

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

B TR AS (W E 29)

NENEE ~ TR 1 3 8 S AT e
(Htit6)

A ~ TR I R TR R
(Htit6)

TP MRS (WYt 7)

ETE W (ELAR K (BAE 7)

A BT A
— il M A B s
— Fe s
KBt E R

T~ Hre R

AF: 5 el

HEIBCRE — {8 B MBS (8 (5 (M aE 19)
SRS — 8 B MF E E (T 19)

e 53 4 (L HEE 22 T
BIRERA — BOE SRAT AT (ffAL)

A B oAt

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2015
—E—hH
RMB’000
NG S T

174,405

586,221

565,335
10,672

158,625
8,144

19
19,512

2014
e S lI1EE S
RMB’000
NG R

215,634

912,947

141,704
15,500

12,866
4,992

12,893

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILEE

2015
ZE A
RMB’000
AR T

124,391
3,033

15,425

7,090
3,739

12,123
8,604

174,405

2014
TR PUAE
RMB’000
NG T

171,625
2,514

33,652

(21,337)

18,409
10,771

215,634



MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Note:

The Group is required to make specific contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement plan at a rate of 20% (2014: 20%) of the specified salaries of the
qualified employees in the PRC. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liability to the retired employees.

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Directors EH
Non-director individual FEFEANL

The details of emoluments paid to the five highest
individuals who were Directors of the Company during
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 have been
included in above. Details of emoluments paid to the
remaining non-director individual are as follows:

Mt

AT A ER T A TR E TER20% (—%
—VUAE : 20%) A9 RIS T B A0 A AR fk 6
FHE o B BT A BZ AR IR KR TR T -

(a) “ARFEHAL

AEFEEE T -HLFEL-F N
E+ A=+ —HIHEE AR
AL

Year ended December 31,

BET-H=4—HILEE
2015 2014

SECGE CE N

ARAFBEF AR %F N
- H=t—HI4EEERA
HR R R AR 2 R R
FEECAE B3R o CAER N IR
HALHM SRR

Year ended December 31,
HKET-H=1—HILHEE

2015 2014
ZF g F N
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TE  ARWTT

Salaries and allowances B SOl 3,120 1,844
Discretionary bonuses W15 484 2,808 2,151
Share options granted EL 4% H i - 746
Pension costs — defined BREG A — BT H

contribution plans 14 26
House allowance and other welfare  [& J& HE R F1 = Ath 45 71 = 21

5,942 4,788



(a)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HKD) A E (M o0)
HKD5,500,001 —HKD®6,000,000
HKD®6,000,001—HKD®6,500,000
HKD7,000,001—HKD7,500,000
HKD9,500,001—HKD10,000,000
HKD10,500,001—HKD11,000,000

During the financial year ended December 31,
2015, none of the directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals:

(i) received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement upon joining the Group;

(ii) waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments.

Senior management remuneration band

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for
the year ended December 31, 2015 are set out in note
36. The senior management’s remuneration for the year
ended December 31, 2015 is within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HKD) S (T
HKD1,000,001—HKD1,500,000
HKD4,500,001 —HKD5,000,000
HKD®6,000,001—HKD®6,500,000

(a)

5,500,001 # 7 — 6,000,000 i T
6,000,001 # 7t — 6,500,000 i T
7,000,001 # 7t —7,500,000 i T
9,500,001 # 5c— 10,000,000 i 7T
10,500,001 i# ¢ — 11,000,000 i T

(b)

(c)

1,000,001 # 5t —1,500,000 i JG
4,500,001 #5755 —5,000,000 ¥ 7T
6,000,001 #7C — 6,500,000 ¥ 7T

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

EES 2 PN=E )

UEAE BN TE T S AL S S A

Number of individuals

N’
2015 2014
SECEE CF W
= 1
1 2
3 1
1 —
5 5

RBEE_F-HHE+_H
=+ B 1k 5 S AR BN
HALMIA 2 W E R B AR E
BALBRTIZHA :

(i) SO o] P <5 F 25 i A AR 42
P ey 114 B JED ;

(i) s kR B AT AT SR -

%J&%ﬂ@%’ﬁ@ﬂi%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁl%
%

KREEHE _F-HE+T_H
A LR A A S R S B
336 i E X —HAE T A
T HIEFE &SRB N
T o A

Number of individuals

IN
2015 2014
—F R T
- 1
1 1
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Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2015 2014

ZE—HAE e lI1EE S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ANR¥TI0

Current income tax — overseas HHA TR — Ak 7,191 134,833
Deferred income tax (Note 15, 21) PEIE A B (M 7+ 15, 21) (186,424) 79,330
(179,233) 214,163

Taxation has been calculated on the estimated assessable

AR i AR AR BE Al B M R AT

profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

RO LB Y A AR A K SE S BT AE B R Y
BATBIAR o

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated

7S Bl R B A T B - BRLER T
T 25 B M) TR 3 D 0 o R~ 3 R 3 T R
A LR LR 22 BN T

entities as follows:

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HIL4EE

2015 2014
—F-HgE CF U
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt NRWETo
(Loss)/profit before income tax B i 45 BE BT (M 48) ) i (1,704,521) 236,712
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates TE 4545 B 130 5% 1) 1) 1 e 3 PR %)
applicable to profits in the respective B R E A A BLIA
countries (250,099) 116,501
Tax effects of: T TE s 2
— Income not subject to tax — ETHEHELA - (1,125)
— Expenses not deductible — ANATFIRL S
for tax purposes 27,884 40,859
— Tax losses and temporary differences — 5248 4E BT 1551 & 25 1Y
for which no deferred income tax 5 M 48 B T IR 22 B
asset was recognized 49,951 55,105
— Adjustments in respect of prior years — — DIFj4F &% 9,069 1,482
— Others — Hith (16,038) 1,341
Tax charge BeIH 7 (179,233) 214,163



The weighted average effective tax rate was 11% (2014: 90%)
for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Deferred tax in Kazakhstan has been re-measured to reflect
the changes in excess profit tax rate of Kazakhstan will be
applied in the future, which is mainly caused by changes in
management forecast of future capital expenditures and
other tax rates.

The excess profit tax rate is based on rate of return on
subsurface use operations and requires estimation of future
taxable income, capital expenditures and other assumptions
which affect the estimations of amounts and periods when
deductible/taxable temporary differences existing at the
reporting date are reversed/settled.

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

BE - Z—HET A=+ —HILERE
Z NG B R B 1% (—EFE—
4 1 90%) o

S A A S I T S 2R 2 AR S B R S BT
BT I T R T LR R A
A R R 8L b E TR

DRI 25 78 L 30 O A AR S e LA i ¢
sty AL o

T ) S A 29 R A T B D Y [
Al 7 TR AR MERRBOA ~ EAME
SCHY R A € 5 BB B 5 i 1 S0 ] A4S
0,/ RERRBL W R k26 S ] 5 A
] B B Bl PO A o A i

(a) HEA

R B R RAREA A 7 P A &
WO REAG M > BR AASAE B2 A 8847
A S B IR S B R -

Year ended December 31,

BRET A=+ —HILEE

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of A<\ &) fir & & FEAS (R518) /)

the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary A3 @ B H (T1%)

shares (thousands)

(Loss)/earnings per share, Basic

(RMB per share) (5 N )

HIREEA ()i

2015 2014
SRR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETE  ARMTE
(1,5623,203) 58,482
2,599,744 2,603,617
(0.59) 0.02
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(b) Diluted (b) k¥

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share
options outstanding which are potentially dilutive. A
calculation is performed to determine the number of
ordinary shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the weighted
average number of outstanding share options. The
number of ordinary shares calculated above for basic
earnings per share is increased by the number of
ordinary shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options at the date later of
beginning of the relevant period or the date of issue.

(Loss)/earnings (%K) MW

o SRR R WA A ) 1B B P A R A
Wl O SRR > REIRE T
BRI RE- S BGET o A R i
ARAT o 2 B B HE A R AE TR K
JE o ZE A A ICHE - ARABORAT G AL
R4 Ton AR -5 S I 3 )
fE(E - /B E AT REC 4% S (B
R T B~ P A T ) A
Y B o 1 DA BRIl
4t 77 AEH A B R E > @ b
AR S SRR T A ) 3 ] S0 T
AT H W 2 g H AT i
PR T R AT (9 5 8 I O -

Year ended December 31,

BRET A=+ —HILEE

2015 2014
SRR R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FR ARWTT

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners FRA T8 7 1 RO TR T 4 1) A 2 )
of the Company used to determine Fir A & AL (182%) /i
diluted earnings per share (1,523,203) 58,482

Weighted average number of JEE ¥ (T8
ordinary shares (thousands) 2,599,744 2,603,617
Adjustments for: b
— share options (thousands)

e
&

W JBERE (T 13) 1,595 3,461

Weighted average number of diluted 73 #4545 B FR I 25 HO 76 FRVE L
potential ordinary shares for diluted 3@ & AT~ 2485 (T %)
earnings per share (thousands) 2,601,339 2,607,078

(Loss)/earnings per share, BEEA R (R, A
Diluted (RMB per share) (B N R ) (0.59) 0.02
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Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HILEE

2015 2014
SRR R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FR ARWTT

(Loss)/profit before income tax B ETARBLET (B8 /R (1,704,521) 236,712
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation, depletion and e ~ JrFe ks
amortization 596,893 928,447
Interest expenses — net (Note 27) FRE ST (Mt 27) 393,864 514,122
Exchange gains (Note 27) R 58, R 45 (Bt 7t 27) (85,785) (32,796)
Impairment charge ERIEREEN 724,032 154,570
Loss on re-measurement of disposal RPN R B A EHNE
group classified as held for PE A AR (Kt 7% 25)
sale (Note 25) 328,541 -
Gains on disposal of BTN RIS (BtaE 25)
subsidiaries (Note 25) - (259,389)
Gain on change in fair value of AL A 4l S A (B B
available-for-sale financial assets i £ - (11,314)
Gains on oil hedge options I E B HARE A S AE (RIS - (19,564)
Gains on write-off payables (Note 25) T AT (FfFt25) (29,387) -
Value of employee services under stock  FICHERT 8 F @ B KBS M4
option schemes 22,515 12,315
Share of losses of investments A R 4 TR AR A Y s 4R
accounted for using the equity R
method 26,627 55,432
Provision for bad debt (Note 25) FHRSIRYEM (B 71 25) 86,673 -
Changes in working capital: WEE S
Inventories ety (123) (2,478)
Trade and other receivable JRE WA e LAt JE TR 344,686 226,175
Trade and other payable JREAST T LAt JREAST K (29,518) (140,530)
Cash generated from operations s E B 4 674,497 1,661,702
Cash flows from operating activities KBEWMBEAENR SRR
Cash generated from operations g EAEN B4 674,497 1,661,702
Interest paid CATALE (337,903) (326,022)
Income tax paid AT 5Bl (10,522) (155,257)
Net cash generated from operating BT B B A T B 4 v

activities 326,072 1,180,423
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(a) Commitments (a) &G
(i) Capital commitments for the purchase of (i) WEAHE - LREAREZ
property, plant and equipment - N A )

As at December 31,

wt=A=+—R
2015 2014
SRR R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FR  ARWTT

Authorized by the Board of G C AR AL
Directors but not contracted for 598,993 409,072
Contracted but not provided for B2 K0 (E R 31,377 236,400
630,370 645,472
(ii) Operating lease commitments (ii) HEMERE
The Group has operating lease commitments 7 AR ] R 28 ] B N Em
related to its non-cancellable operating leases for VA S ] fUBE i &8 25 FH 4 &
offices. The future aggregate minimum lease oo AR TEH N R AR A
payments under these operating leases are as (KA AT & S R
follows:
As at December 31,
wH+_H=+—H
2015 2014
SER-HAE ZE U
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥T T ANRWT It
Less than 1 year DR —4F 10,662 13,195
Within 1-2 years — B 7,680 5,733
Within 2-5 years TR 7,373 693
Over 5 years AEDE 52 -

25,767 19,621



(a) Commitments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

According to the production contracts for four
blocks in Kazakhstan, the Group is obligated to
perform minimum work program during the life of
the production contracts. Set out below is the
commitments for the minimum work program:

Less than 1 year D — 4
Within 1-2 years — B WAE
Within 2-5 years TEAA
Over 5 years AR E

The minimum work program includes capital
expenditure of RMB1,915 million (2014: RMB2,022
million) to be incurred over the life of the
production contracts expiring in 2036. Other
commitments represent mainly other direct
operation and maintenance costs of wells and
related facilities.

The Group has a commitment to provide funding
if called by SGE in accordance with the 2016 SGE
annual budget as approved by its board of
directors up to US$19.9 million (equivalent to
RMB129.2 million).

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(a) 7Rk (#)

(iii)

(iv)

AR Ve T v 307 2L I ] [ L )
EEAR - ALELALES
[F] 90 BRE 1A LA o I T A it 8
FIARIE

As at December 31,

m+—-H=+—H
2015 2014
ZE A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT  ARWTT
571,278 578,409
525,628 538,322
1,446,634 1,419,575
4,791,292 4,953,807
7,334,832 7,490,113

7 I AR = w8 P A
B EAREEESF I
H R84 i g A v S i R
#1,915F B0 (R —PY4E
NEH2,022H &J0) - HAt
AR S R AT A
WA R it ) S 1 T D AR A

A AR B ARG > IR AR SR E
HEMCEPRIEEE R
WM —FE— NAFAEEEE
R p R IE H O SR
Ko BMEE19.9 B KT (%
B NEH129.2H #J0) 1Y
KIH o
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(b) Contingencies

On August 28, 2000, MIE entered into a PSC with
Sinopec for exploration and development of Luojiayi 64
block at Shengli oilfield in Shandong Province, which
was suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005, MIE
requested an extension from Sinopec to restart the
project. On September 27, 2006, MIE received a letter
from Sinopec denying the request to restart the project
and seeking to terminate the PSC on the grounds that
the extension period of the trial-development phase
had expired and MIE had not met its investment
commitment under the PSC. The Company believes its
investment in the project at Shengli oilfield had met the
required commitment amount under the PSC. The PSC
with Sinopec has not been formally terminated and the
dispute has not entered any judicial proceedings. As
advised by the external legal counsel of the Company,
the probability of claim from Sinopec for unfulfilled
investment commitment, if any, in relation to the pilot-
development phase is remote as the statute of
limitations has run out.

Apart from the above, the Group has contingent
liabilities in respect of claims or other legal procedures
arising in its ordinary course of business from time to
time. As at December 31, 2015, the directors of the
Company did not anticipate that any material liabilities
will arise from the contingent liabilities other than those
provided for in the financial statements.

(b) A AR

A EREFENA -+ /\H > MIE
SR AT S E S AR - LAY
T B BREE 57 7 11 B s A1l ) 2
FE64lmM - ZHEHED A %
PUAE KB o F TR AEN
A > MIE [ H 7 b 23R 4E = I R LA
I RE S FMEIEE o EF
NENLA +HEH s MIEZ#ES 4
b 75 P B R % 0 H BRI
4> H A Al DA B B A Rk B it =
WIFRE i M MIE 3if R J8 17 2 &40
AR RS RE Bl BR
IR Ay A TR o MIE 32 2 74 T
Flh FHIE B P ERE B AR
A TR] B BT B 78 B R ot 44 - Bl
AL B EE S o A TR G AR GE A&
1E > HL %50 M R HE AT o] R AR
T o MR AR T T A AN I A R
k> P b B B R R B B
A T8 AR E ARG R () B9 AT RE
PERIN 5 AR AR AR SR RARRRL o

B Bt DAL - A EIALE H R SEH
IR T 3% A BEL AR sl At i e
JPARB Y SO B o R S F TR
ToA=t—H AAFAEREEY
B % BB R AL > AN AEAE
AT AT A B OIS R R B A
IH o



Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

In February 2015, the Group acquired all non-controlling
equity interest of in Condor (subsidiary of the Company) for
a purchase consideration of RMB11.3 million. The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests in Condor on the
date of acquisition was RMB33.9 million, negative. The
Group recognised an increase in non-controlling interests of
RMB33.9 million and a decrease in equity attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB45.2 million.

The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Condor on
the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the
period is summarised as follows:

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

W B - 2 ) LA BE 4

AR —HAETH AEEDANRK
11.308 & o/E & ¥HME #1514 Condor (4
AN /AT DI U | S 2 ol T
Condor [ FE F il 14 HE 25 15 J7 B BRI Wi
HMR IR 5 ANRIE33.9H Hot - &
4 T 1 0 e R R 5 o R 25 N R 9 33.9
OG> S AR T RE £ R A EAS
MR AR 45.2 F H T o

A N % Condor [T £ 1) 588 ) 35 AR 3 )
RELS A AL HE SR A S B BT -

Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HILEE

2015 2014
SE-TE T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FR  ARWTT

Carrying amount of non-controlling B A5 48 PR A 2 P B T

interests acquired

(33,904) -

Consideration paid to non-controlling AT I RE 75 Y B

interests

(11,256) -

Impact in equity of carrying amount of  HEFEHESE H HUIS JF 22 1 25 1Y

non-controlling interests acquired IR T {1 ) 2

(45,160) -
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The Group is controlled by Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL"),
which owns 48.13% of the Company’s shares and is also the
ultimate parent company of the Group. FEEL is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate
benefit owners are Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Mr. Zhao Jiangwei and
Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”, Mr. Zhang's spouse).

Zs 42 B %% Far East Energy Limited ( D)
R [FEEL]) B E2FE N - FEEL¥EA 4
N T AR 1 48.13% > 3lf7 FL IR A 42 [ 1) f
BRI T o FEEL By — RIE W sE M a0 A
MRITAE AR > Hod 4 52 g 5 27 i 3k 56
A~ VT oA MO YT & GRIEEZ
Bie s > LA RS [sRR A D) -

(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (@) B T BA5 R 2 HoAth b 7 B 22 4b »
statements, the following transactions were carried out BLBRES A S H R
with related parties:
Year ended December 31,
BELT-A=+—HIiLEE
2015 2014
e Sk S A4
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F 7t ANREET T
Transactions with PSC partners B 4 A KPR AR 5
Global Oil Corporation (“GOC") IRER A1
— Cash receipts from the PSCs — MR W A TR A SR B Bk
received by the Group on A H SR B
GOC's behalf 82,498 223,180
— Advances to GOC — T AT ERER A T EIE (45,869) (55,886)
— Repayment received from GOC — I B BRER A T R 25,462 -
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred — MR P T 20 L R A R ER Bk
on GOC's behalf AT AT A E A A (25,874) (136,245)
— Deposit paid on GOC's behalf —fREREA AT S B LT
JEL B O 7 4 (18) (621)
PetroChina RPN
— Sales to PetroChina — B ey g5 A 708,053 2,204,292
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred — MR B A EAER
on PetroChina’s behalf ol BT S AT i A EE (207,748) (288,751)
Transactions with joint ventures HEBNENRS
SGE HHRTE H
— Shareholder’s loan to SGE (Note)  — #2{itF A IE H 1Y % &K
(Mffat) (186,111) (159,093)
— Cash call paid to SGE for — BATSGE G ER LI
non-qualified expenditures B it = (4,764)



(a)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following transactions were carried out
with related parties: (Continued)

Note:

In 2014, the Company entered into a shareholder’s loan agreement with
SGE, pursuant to which the Company will provide loan to SGE at a fixed
interest rate of 6.15% per annum with no fixed term of repayment.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, US$28.7 million (equivalent
to RMB186.1 million) (Note 35(a)) loaned to SGE under this agreement.
The excess of fair value estimated based on the prevailing market rate
on the date of the loan over interest rate per the loan agreement
amounting to US$4.8 million (equivalent to RMB30.9 million) was
accounted for as an investment in SGE (Note 8).

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(a)

Transactions with controlling
shareholder of the Company’s

B 4y W S5 R4 I 4 W A
e S AR 2 W) dge e i BB 2

ultimate holding company and/or a Ecd e ] ] N N W ]
company/person related to the R 5 (%)
controlling shareholder of the
Company’s ultimate holding
company (*)
— Purchases of spare parts — DRI S
— Purchase for oilfield services — Jif S s
— Sales of vehicles — i
— Rental of vehicles and office — KR 2 AL
premises
— Loan advanced during the year — ARAER AL 2
— Loan repayment received during the year — AR R
* All amounts disclosed above represented gross amount

transacted between the Group’s subsidiaries, acting as operator
for Daan, and Moliging with Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development
Company and its subsidiaries, and Wide Reliance (Hong Kong)
Limited which are controlled by Mrs. Zhang.

W T B SR A 3t BT BB AL
SLBRI )T R SE Z SR R (A)

ARG — DU AR B SGE Z5HT T IR R B K
T AR A% 1) ek A 4 [0 1] SGE 1 Hk i 72 Fl
K 6.15% ~ MEFE & B A 0I5 SR - s
SR -RAET A= HIREE > BT
SGE I 3k 4 %1 5 28.7 T 15 26 78 (£ [ A
[ 186.1 F #570) (FiHsE35(a)) » HHAHERCH
BLAT T 35 R 5 5T A5 B (19 20 Fo A8 (1 B AR B 52
TR R 5 G A5 31 1 8 3k S B 2 I 1 22 3 4.8
HHE I EEN AR ¥ 30.9 0 & o) 1E 2 ¥
SGE M &5 (ffsk8) -

Year ended December 31,

BETZH=+—HIE4E

2015 2014
SR -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T 6 AR T8
(81) (272)
(74,103) (243,307)
(494) -

(820) (4,000)
(1,080) -
1,080 -

* AL FT45 28 19 S AU AR SR T T R (fFF:
TR BN 5 B A S ) BB W
38 5 W MU o MO I 2R i R R
ARAFRRIET AR > LULAERE (F
W) A R R AR R A FTHER]
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(b) Year-end balances with related parties are summarized (b) B2 5 ER GBI T

as follows:

As at December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HILEE

2015
- Sk X2
RMB’000
AR¥F It
Included in ‘trade and other [ )78 W e 3Lt JE WS M 3k | AL 4G -
receivables’:
Trade receivables from PSC partner  REUEE 520 BL A R A 2 0E 68,565
Other receivables from PSC partners oAb RE IS 2 43 B[R AK B 3R0E 145,541
Cash call and interest paid to SGE for .} SGE k& & 32 H 1 8 4
non-qualified expenditures IR K F B, -
Shareholder loan receivable and TR A 4R B G v A SE IR A R
interest from joint venture FIE 330,647
Other receivables from SGE H A SGE 3K H -
Other receivables from companies HoAth RE U 32 A & B S AZE T
controlled by the controlling 22 I e SRHE ) 8 2 ) Y 3
shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company 14,066
558,819

2014
i
RMB’000
NRMET

148,759
216,057

16,940

142,264
258

524,278

As at December 31,

BET-A=Z+—HIL4EE

2015
e Sk 2
RMB’000
AR¥ET 0
Included in ‘trade and other payables’: [ i} J H{th i ff 2% | .4 :
Trade payables to companies JE AT 52 A% ) B A S Ty
controlled by the controlling JE SRz A 1) 2 1 1) 3K OE

shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company 5,268

2014
A
RMB'000
ARHTT

7,765
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(b) Year-end balances with related parties are summarized

(b) B Ir 2 5 AF R R B AR A

as follows: (Continued)

Other receivables from PSC partners represent
advances to GOC and PetroChina mainly from cash
receipts received by the Group on the behalf of GOC
and expenditures incurred from and for the respective
PSCs by the Group on the behalf of GOC and
PetroChina, respectively.

Cash call paid to the Group’s joint venture represents
the loans to the Group’s joint ventures for their
development and operation.

Trade payables to companies controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate
holding company represent payables for oilfield related
services from Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development
Company and its subsidiaries, Songyuan Guotai
Petroleum Technology Service Company and Jilin
Guotai Drilling Engineering Technology Service
Company.

At December 31, 2015, all (2014: all) cash call balances
are interest-free and unsecured, and all (2014: all)
balances of shareholders’ loans are unsecured, carrying
nominal interest rate of 6.15% per annum.

(#1)

[ HC At B W 2E i 23 BB TR PR AK
FIE | A e BRER A A AR oA
WY RRIH - EBAR AR AR 4 H % IR ER
BRI B A 0 1 BLAER R A TH U
B T R AR E i 23 A ) AR
82 PR E I epaRTiifAve N0k JAEID

[BlEBARAERGERE] R
BIAR L G8 R A B I

Ee
wA °©

[ AST 52 7% ) i 46 22 S O 42 B
SR 23 w9 EE | A 1 5 AR
I 2% 7 it B A R W) A R
i i T 1 28 A 3 R s A R
Je 75 MR 7 bR TR 0 R 5 A
BIR 2% 5 S A ik FE AR R B B4 B A+ 3k
IA o

R F—HAET A= —H - B
A (EF A ) Bl o
TH AR HAFALR - Br
(& — VU - AT ) JOR i 3k 7 Ji
HRATPE B H A A5 15 6.15% o
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(c)

Loan to related parties

(c) T Bl &k

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILFE

2015 2014
“EhA CE Y4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFI ARHET o
Loans to joint ventures: TAEEMSERNR

At January 1, w—H—H 159,204 12,133
Loans advanced during the year FERTETE R 186,111 163,856

Discounting impact of JRE SRR B T B R
shareholder’s loan (30,901) (16,829)
Loan repayments received CE R R (16,940) -
Interest charged JE AT AL, 23,434 -
Exchange difference REE 54, 7 %6 9,739 44
At December 31, Bt+—H=+—H 330,647 159,204

BoFE—HAET A= —H &
SEHIR T 58 A S BOR R O 1

The shareholders loans to joint ventures as at December
31, 2015 is unsecured, carries interest at 6.15% per

annum. HEHPEEE » A5 6.15% ©
(d) Key management compensation: (d) FEBFHABMEHRWT :
Year ended December 31,
BETH=1T—HIL4FEE
2015 2014
R A T PULE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ET AR
Salaries H4 23,518 22,750
Bonuses 14 6,864 11,742
Value of share based payment — RO S 40 — 8 B IRGSE(H
employee services 11,423 4,749
Benefits in-kind HoAth A5 F) 1,647 1,721
43,452 40,962

Bonuses fall due wholly within twelve

months after the

end of the reporting period in which management

rendered the related services.

< A0 B e SR R IS 1%

RN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

36 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive officer for the years ended December 31, 2015
is set out below:

Salariesand Discretionary  Housing
Fees allowances  bonuses allowance

Name of Director EFES e Hekil  RERE  RERM
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETFE  ARWTE  ARWTE ARKTL

Share
options
expenses

(a) EFLHERATHHNE

BE-F-HFETH=1t—HI
AEBE > (T AT R
BRI

Employer's Stock

Awarded contribution appreciation

Shares  to pension Other rights
expenses scheme  benefits granted Total

pid g ] it i

RRERN SERRARA  BEfE RREN paR it

RMB'000
NS

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
MRHFR ARBFT  ARBTFR  ARETFE  ARETR

For the year ended REZZ-1%
December 31, 2015 FZRZEA-H

R34
Zhang Ruilin* T - 3500 3120 365 507 - 2 306 - 7821
Zhao Jiang Wei bl | - 3,000 624 268 507 1148 61 3mn - 5,980
Mei Jianping xaa 250 - - - - - - - 9% 38
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard

Miller 312 - - - - - - - %8 410
Sing Wang*** S had - - - - - - - - - -
Hung Leung*** oA - - - - - - - - - -
Cai Rucheng*** A e 216 - - - - - - - - 216
Guo Yanjun** DR+ 3 - - - - - - - - 3
Xie Na** it e - - - - - - - - - -
Tao Tak Yin Dexter Ry - 2,496 - - - 2397 14 - 43 5,650
Andrew Sherwood Harper ~ Andrew Sherwood

Harper - 3,045 - - 576 - - - - 3,621
Tian Hongtao ifiia= - 1,872 = 28 561 2,391 4 29 - 4,934

811 13913 3,744 661 2,151 5942 145 107 939 29,013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

36 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 36. % 31 F] 25 fu e 25 (B B
2

required by section 383 of the Hong Kong w] I (55 622 %) 55 383 5 K
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies Aual(BEEEMGEER) M
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of By (5 622G &) & 0 # 8%)
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK (%)
Listing Rules) (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFKEEREAITEHE (H)
(Continued)
Certain of the comparative information of directors’ Z HTARE R S A TR E
emoluments for the year ended December 31, 2014 E—WE+H=+—HIFFEFH
previously disclosed in accordance with the EIESREMENE TSR H D
predecessor Companies Ordinance have been restated Ll LA A A U R (57 622
in order to comply with the new scope and &) HUE R S A E o
requirements by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).
Employer's Stock
Share ~ contribution appreciation
Salaries and Discretionary ~ Housing options o pension QOther rights
Fees allowances  bonuses allowance  expenses scheme benefits granted Total
RIRSHHIR Tetsse
Name of Director EHIES, e FEREM Mg REER RREER O EER AeEA MK it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETL ARETC ARETL ARETL ARBTCT ARETLE AR®TL ARETL
For the year ended REZZ-Wk
December 31, 2014 (Restated) ~ +=H=+—H L4
(i)
Zhang Ruilin* i - 3,500 3,073 365 1,020 8 446 - 8,412
Zhao Jiang Wei FGbIE | - 3,000 922 265 1,020 4 369 - 5,618
Mei Jianping aa 246 - - - - - - - 246
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 307 - - - - - - - 307
Sing Wang T - - - - - - - - -
Hung Leung o - - - - - - - - -
Cai Rucheng it 26 - - - - - - - 26
Tao Tak Yin Dexter iy - 2,458 2,151 - - 13 - 329 4,951
Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood Harper - 3,009 - - 560 - - - 3,569
Tian Hongtao**** kg e - 1,725 2,151 25 746 v 25 - 414
799 13,692 8,297 655 3,346 105 840 329 28,063
* Mr. Zhang Ruilin is also the chief executive officer. * SRERR TR E I HATE -
**  Appointed with effect from November 13, 2015 ** W E—FAET—H T = HEZE -
***  Resigned with effect from November 13, 2015 *xx o AT R-FAET— A= HEHE -

*x%%  Appointed with effect from December 5, 2014 *xxx o R R—PUE+ ] T H R -



(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhang Ruilin, during
the year ended December 31, 2015 by a defined benefit
pension plan operated by the group in respect of Mr.
Zhang Ruilin’s services as a director of the company
and its subsidiaries is RMB22,890 (2014: RMB7,522).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
during the year ended December 31, 2015 by a defined
benefit pension plan operated by the group in respect
of Mr. Zhao Jiangwei’s services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is RMB 61,024 (2014:
RMB41,710).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Dexter Tao, during
the year ended December 31, 2015 by a defined benefit
pension plan operated by the group in respect of Mr.
Dexter Tao’s services as a director of the company and
its subsidiaries is RMB14,490 (2014: RMB13,272).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Tian Hongtao,
during the year ended December 31, 2015 by a defined
benefit pension plan operated by the group in respect
of Mr. Tian Hongtao’s services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is RMB46,534 (2014:
RMB41,710).

MI BERIERBER DR « — T —HFFH

(b) #F AR fh A

wHEF—HAF+_HA=+—HI
AERE > AR AR EE R E U AR AR
PR ) o o i e A R LR B A Y
) S HL A ) HE S R A RS 1 ()
FAT R IR R AR A A AN R ¥ 22,890
JC(F U4 - ANR¥7,62270) -

wHEF—HAF+_HA=+—HI
AERE > AR AR EE R E Ui AR AR
PRSI 1) T8 e S A B AR
A B A ) HE R RS 1 1 L
T AT R R AR AR A 2 N R 61,024
JL( =& — 4 s AR ¥41,710
Jo) °

wHEF—HAF+_HA=+—HI
AERE > AR AR EE R E Ui AR AR
PR E 1a) B A e s A B AR
A B A ) HE R RS 1 1 L
FAT R IR AR AR A A AN R ¥ 14,490
JL( =& — 4 s AR #513,272
Jo) °

wHEF—HAF+_HA=+—HI
AERE > AR AR FE R E Ui AR AR
PREEE ) H SR e st A E B AR
A B A T HE R AR 1 1 L
X AT R R AR AR I 2 N R 46,534
JL( =& — 4 s AR ¥41,710
Jo) °
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Statement of financial position of the Company

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Loans to subsidiaries

Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions, accruals and other
liabilities

Current liabilities

Provisions, accruals and other
liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

v
It 0 %
RINE - TR e
Tl
TS

RL RN

i Bh
JE T R AR

FEATER - PR KA R O

32 PR B 4
B kB E%EHEY

7 E

i
B A 2 7 A 0
s

Sttt

B A7 1

e 2 4

fifi
FE B £
fHK

Wy~ TR AR R

i B £ 1
ey~ TR S H AR

A
HE 4 K £1 AR

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2016 and

was signed on its behalf.

Zhang Ruilin
R
Director

#wF

AR v B SR DL 3R
As at December 31,
wr-H=1+—H
2015 2014
e Sk Y T PULE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5t AR T AR
1,567 2,405
4,109,400 4,078,353
1,862,992 2,626,424
4,618 32,707
5,978,577 6,739,889
170,048 -
69,541 197,385
259,744 132,272
132,213 218,681
631,546 548,338
6,610,123 7,288,227
1,068,796 842,520
a 1,352,461 1,212,941
(409,230) 892,225
2,012,027 2,947,686
4,424,247 4,169,243
32,891 7,663
4,457,138 4,176,906
140,958 163,635
140,958 163,635
4,598,096 4,340,541
6,610,123 7,288,227

,
I
sl

NAMBRNRC I —F—NE=H
%E HE s sttt > IWUREHG

Tao Tak Yin Dexter
) 7k g
Director

#wE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o BF A 05 e 3 Bt (%)

37. Statement of financial position and reserve 37. A E) BB DL 7 B bl i A
[0

movement of the Company (Continued) i (%)
Statement of financial position of the Company AR oy i) g A 5 R Dl (4])
(Continued)
Note (a): Other reserve movement of the Company BT (a) © A= 28 w1 i HAl ot 5 )y
Repurchased Available-
shares held Currency Share based for-sale
by trust Capital  translation payment financial
(Note 20(a)) reserve reserve reserves assets Total
R
o] It 5 Hhifg JiE Wt i
(M7t 20(a)) Jsg N1 bR 2] i B Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIE  ARWTE ARWFT AR¥EFT  AR¥TLE  ARWFC
At January 1, 2014 R oFE—NE—A—H (60,794) 1,366,956 (205,349) 86,854 13,847 1,201,514
Currency translation differences ST R - - 12,211 - - 12,211
Employees stock option scheme 1 5 W 31
— value of employee services — R BB (E - - - 19,472 - 19,472
— exercise of employee options — ATHHR BB A - - - - - -
— settlement of employee — IR B IR
options (Note 19(b)) (Kt (19)(b)) - - - (7,284) - (7,284)
Revaluation of available-for-sale AT A
financial assets A A - - - - (13,942) (13,942)
Dividends on repurchased {5 FEHEA Il i P A7
shares held in trust Wi 30 g PR 970 - - - - 970
At December 31, 2014 /e S 112

+ZH=+—H (59,824) 1,366,956 (193,138) 99,042 (95) 1,212,941
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Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

Note (a): Other reserve movement of the Company (Continued)

Repurchased
shares held
by trust Capital
(Note 20(a)) reserve
Eizie]
[0 i it Ay
(M7t 20(a)) A it
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥TE AR¥BTE
As at January 1, 2015 HoF—HAE—H—H (59,824) 1,366,956
Currency translation differences SN RS B =
Employees stock option scheme 1R B B PR
— value of employee services — R BB (E =
Reclassification of E0ip K
accumulated change in il O
value of available-for-sale
financial assets upon
disposal -
Revaluation of available-for-sale T fi 8 4 il & 7
financial assets A (E =
Shares purchased under Share I 53 S8 R ) B A £
Award Scheme (11,063)
At December 31, 2015 /I S 2
+=ZA=+—H (70,887) 1,366,956

On March 5, 2016, the Company, Palaeontol Cooperatief U.A.,
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Seller”) and Reach Energy Berhad (the “Purchaser”) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
disposal of the shares in 60% equity interest in Palaeontol
B.V., which holds 100% interest in Emir-Qil, by the Seller to
the Purchaser and the assignment and transfer of the
shareholder loans in proportion to the relevant percentage
by the Company to the Purchaser at a consideration of
US$154,889,000.

The transaction is subject to fulfillment of certain conditions.
As conditions of this transaction did not exist at year end, the
corresponding financial impact will be reflected upon
completion of the transaction.

AR 2y v vy B 51K O (A7)

B3 (@) = AS 2 R HoA (ot 52 8 (A8)

Available-
Currency Share based for-sale
translation payment financial
reserve reserves assets Total
b Bty LR
PGk i S ik i B -
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARWTE ARWTE AR¥TE
(193,138) 99,042 (95) 1,212,941
131,736 - - 131,736
- 20,119 - 20,119
- - (842) (842)
- - (430) (430)
= = = (11,063)
(61,402) 119,161 (1,367) 1,352,461

—&F — N4 = H fi H > Palaeontol
Cooperatief U.A A2 AR — K M4 &
% Wit & 2 7 ([ & 77 1) L Reach Energy
Berhad ([ B J5 1) %038 W6 ok - A )
B B E A 2 E M E A F PBV
60% ([ H 1872w 1) £5 % Iy - PBVH#
Emir-Oil #EH 100% 4 o B 7 1% [n B 7
L% NN S RE R R A ) i = G
A T3 AR B T 40 L IS SRR e 1) S
fE %4 £ 154,889,000 3 It °

VU I AZ 5y 5 1 2 4 S A o TR Z T 5C
Zy WM AFAE 2015 4R 4R JE A AR AL - JLAH
R 114 B 5 5 B AE 5 B SE IR B .
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